## КАЗАНСКИЙ (ПРИВОЛЖСКИЙ) ФЕДЕРАЛЬНЫЙ УНИВЕРСИТЕТ

# ИНСТИТУТ МЕЖДУНАРОДНЫХ ОТНОШЕНИЙ, ИСТОРИИ И ВОСТОКОВЕДЕНИЯ

Кафедра английского языка в социогуманитарной сфере

А.А.Кадырова, Р.Р.Закирова

## ГРАММАТИКА АНГЛИЙСКОГО ЯЗЫКА

Учебное пособие для студентов 1-2 курсов неязыковых направлений

УДК 811.111 ББК 81.2 Англ-922

### Кадырова А.А., Закирова Р.Р.

«Грамматика английского языка»: учебное пособие для студентов 1-2 курсов неязыковых направлений / А.А.Кадырова, Р.Р.Закирова. — Казань: КФУ, 2016. - 160 с.

### Рецензенты:

к.п.н., доцент кафедры английского языка в социогуманитарной сфере О.А.Николаева

к.ф.н., доцент Казанского филиала РМАТ (Российская международная академия туризма) Л.А.Гарифуллина

Предлагаемое учебное пособие, предназначено для студентов 1-2 направлений, обучающихся неязыковых курсу «Иностранный язык». Пособие может быть полезно для студентов учебных высших заведений, всех a также ДЛЯ желающих самостоятельно овладеть навыками практической грамматики. Учебное пособие построено в форме правил и упражнений.

Рекомендовано к изданию решением учебно-методического совета Института международных отношений, истории и востоковедения К(П)ФУ
Протокол № 8 от 15. 06. 2016

Кадырова А.А., Закирова Р.Р., 2016

| Contents   | page |
|--|------|
| 1. The noun. The category of number                              | 5    |
| 2. The adjective. Degrees of comparison                          | 10   |
| 3. The article   | 16   |
| 4. The preposition   | 26   |
| 5. The Active Voice: Present Tenses                              | 33   |
| 1. Present Indefinite Tense                                      | 33   |
| 2. Present Continuous Tense                                      | 34   |
| 3. Present Perfect Tense   | 35   |
| 4. Present Perfect Continuous                                    | 36   |
| 6. The Active Voice: Past Tenses                                 | 39   |
| 1. Past Indefinite Tense   | 39   |
| 2. Past Continuous Tense   | 40   |
| 3. Past Perfect Tense  | 42   |
| 4. Past Perfect Continuous                                       | 43   |
| 7. The Active Voice: Future Tenses                               | 47   |
| 1. Future Indefinite   | 47   |
| 2. Future Continuous Tense                                       | 48   |
| 3. Future Perfect Tense  | 49   |
| 8. The Passive Voice: Present Tenses                             | 54   |
| 1. Present Indefinite  | 54   |
| 2. Present Continuous  | 54   |
| 3. Present Perfect   | 55   |
| 9. The Passive Voice: Past Tenses                                | 56   |
| 1. Past Indefinite   | 56   |
| 2. Past Continuous   | 57   |
| 3. Past Perfect  | 57   |
| 10. The Passive Voice: Future Tenses                             | 59   |
| 1. Future Simple   | 59   |
| 2. Future Perfect  | 60   |
| 11. Reported Speech. Sequence of tenses. The Future in the Past. | 65   |
| 12. Conditional sentences 1,2,3. Mixed conditionals              | 67   |
| 13. Modal Verbs  | 71   |
| The Active Voice. Revision                                       | 74   |
| Conditional Sentences. Revision                                  | 95   |
| The Reported Speech. Revision                                    | 98   |
| The Passive Voice. Revision                                      |      |
| Tests  | 114  |

### Пояснительная записка

Содержание данного учебного пособия определяется его функцией в учебном процессе: постановка учебных целей, средств и способов их достижения в области одной из основных дисциплин — практической грамматики английского языка. Основной целью является — помочь студенту вспомнить основные правила и закрепить их практически.

Пособие включает правила, упражнения и тесты по пройденному материалу.

Основной задачей курса является сформировать у студентов основные грамматические навыки. Для достижения этой цели студенты должны изучить грамматический строй языка. Учебное пособие по грамматике английского языка предназначено для студентов 1-2 курсов неязыковых направлений, а также лиц, желающих усовершенствовать свои знания по английскому языку.

В результате обучения, студенты должены овладеть знаниями об основных грамматических явлениях языка.

Главным достоинством данного учебного пособия является обилие материала для повторения и активизации всех глагольных форм, а также тесты, которые позволяют закрепить результат повторения грамматического материала.

Весь грамматический материал строится на сравнительно простой лексике, что позволяет полностью сосредоточиться на грамматическом явлении.

Пособие рассчитано как на работу в аудитории под руководством педагога, так и на самостоятельную работу.

### 1. The Noun. The category of number

Существительные обозначают предметы, включая названия веществ, действий, качеств, абстрактных понятий и т.д., например: weather, water, beauty, walk, reading, condition, formation, reading, relation, culture, iron, love, house и др.

Существительные подразделяются на:

**Нарицательные** (common) существительные которые выражают общие понятия, целые классы предметов (абстрактные понятия, вещества, качества и тд.): dog, table, snow, cotton, family, idea, youth и др.

*Собственные (proper) существительные* которые выражают единичные понятия, обозначающие единичные, индивидуальные в своем роде предметы:

Имена людей: Tom, Ann, Jean Webster, Shakespeare, Hemingway.

<u>Географические названия</u>: Kazan, London, the Thames, the Caucasus.

Названия улиц, площадей, зданий: the Capitol, the Strand, Whitehall Названия дней недели и месяцы: February, May, July, Monday, Friday и тд.

Так же существительные подразделяются на исчесляемые (countable) и неисчесляемые (uncountable):

*Исчесляемые (countable) существительные*: boy, girl, book, pen, ship, table, day, house, student, brush, city, watch, cup, roof, box, glass, address и тд.

*Heucчесляемые (uncountable) существительные*: music, bread, blood, travel, traffic, excitement, silver, money, furniture, information, work, advice, news, accommodation и т.д.

Исчесляемые существительные английского языка имеют два вида числа:

Singular (единственное число) и Plural (множественное число)

1. Основная группа: в конце слова в единственном числе

добавляется окончание -s:

### [z] – после звонких согласных и гласных:

car - cars, game – games, table – tables, tie – ties, plan – plans, bed – beds, dog – dogs, flower – flowers, и др.;

### [s] – после глухих согласных:

book - books, cap - caps, hat - hats, roof - roofs

### [iz] – после шипящих и свистящих звуков:

 $rose-rose\underline{s}$ , garage — garage $\underline{s}$ , nose — nose $\underline{s}$ , horse — horse $\underline{s}$ , house — house $\underline{s}$  и др.

2. Если существительные заканчиваются на шипящие -s, -ss, -x, -sh, -ch и гласную -o, добавляется окончание -es [iz]:

bus — bus<u>es</u>, glass — glass<u>es</u>, dress — dress<u>es</u>, class — classes, box — box<u>es</u>, fox — fox<u>es</u>, brush — brush<u>es</u>, dish — dish<u>es</u>, bench — bench<u>es</u>, match — match<u>es</u>, watch — watch<u>es</u>, potato — potato<u>es</u>, cargo — cargo<u>es</u>, hero — hero<u>es</u>, tomato — tomato<u>es</u> и др.

Ho: radio – radio $\underline{s}$ , piano – piano $\underline{s}$ , photo – photo $\underline{s}$ , cuckoo – cuckoo $\underline{s}$ , video – video $\underline{s}$ , zoo – zoo $\underline{s}$ .

3. Семь существительных во множественном числе меняют (чередуют) только гласную в корне:

 $m\underline{a}n - m\underline{e}n$ , wom $\underline{a}n$  ['wom $\underline{a}n$ ] - wom $\underline{e}n$  ['wom $\underline{i}n$ ],  $\underline{m}\underline{o}\underline{u}$ se -  $\underline{m}\underline{i}$ ce,  $\underline{l}\underline{o}\underline{u}$ se -  $\underline{l}\underline{i}$ ce,  $\underline{f}\underline{o}\underline{o}t$  -  $\underline{f}\underline{e}\underline{e}t$ ,  $\underline{t}\underline{o}\underline{o}th$  -  $\underline{t}\underline{e}\underline{e}th$ ,  $\underline{g}\underline{o}\underline{o}$ se -  $\underline{g}\underline{e}\underline{e}$ se.

4. Два существительных во множественном числе имеют окончание – en:

ox - oxen, child – children.

5. Некоторые существительные пишутся одинаково как в единственном, так и во множественном числе:

deer – deer, sheep – sheep, swine – swine, fish – fish, trout – trout, aircraft – aircraft, salmon – salmon, dozen – dozen, score – score.

Ho: pack the cards in dozen, scores of people.

6. Существительные взаимствованные из латинского и греческого языков имеют сохраненные формы множественного числа этих же языков:

formul<u>a</u> – formul<u>ae</u>, ind<u>ex</u> – ind<u>ices</u>, antenn<u>a</u> – antenn<u>ae</u>, dat<u>um</u> – dat<u>a</u>, cris<u>is</u> – cris<u>es</u>, stimul<u>us</u> – stimul<u>i</u>, errat<u>um</u> – errat<u>a</u>, termin<u>us</u> – termin<u>i</u>, seri<u>es</u> – seri<u>es</u> и.тд.

- 7. У существительные сложного типа суффикс множественного числа присоединяется ко всему слову:
- 1) к главному слову: editor-in-chief editors-in-chief, brother-in-law brothers-in-law, looker-on lookers-on, passer-by passers-by и др.;
- 2) в конце сложных существительных: watch-maker watch-maker<u>s</u>, boy-friend boy-friend<u>s</u>, housewi<u>fe</u> housewi<u>ves</u>, postm<u>a</u>n postm<u>e</u>n и др.;
- 3) сложные существительные с первым компонентом **man-** и **woman-**, то форму множественного числа принимают обе основы: man-servant men-servants, woman-doctor women-doctors, woman-journalist women-journalist и др.
- 8. Если существительные заканчиваются на согласное + -y, то во множественном числе -y меняется на -i перед -es:
- $fly fl\underline{ies}$ , lady lad $\underline{ies}$ , baby bab $\underline{ies}$ , city cit $\underline{ies}$ , copy cop $\underline{ies}$  и др.
- 9. Если существительные заканчиваются на гласное + **-у**, то во множественном числе **-у** не меняется:
- play plays, day days, key keys, toy toys, boy boys, holiday holidays и др.
- 10. Если существительное заканчивается на **-f**, **-ef**, то во множественном числе меняется на **-v**:

Calf – calves, half – halves, leaf – leaves, wife – wives, knife – knives, thief – thieves, life – lives, wolf – wolves, sheaf – sheaves, shelf – shelves и др.

В английском языке есть существительные, которые

- употребляются как в единственном, так и во множественном числе: watch watches (в русском языке только во множественном числе часы), clock clocks (часы), gate gates (ворота);
- только в единственном числе: knowledge (в русском языке употребляется и в единственном и во множественном: знание –

знания), advice (совет – советы), progress (успех – успехи); ink (на русском языке употребляется только во множественном числе: чернила), money (деньги);

- только во множественном числе: trousers (брюки), spectacles (очки), tongs (щипцы), scissors (ножницы), scales (весы), jeans (джинсы), contents (на русском языке употребляется только в единственном числе: содержание), wages (заработная плата), clothes (одежда), stairs (лестница), arms (на русском языке употребляется и в единственном и во множественном числе: рука – руки), goods (веешь – вещи).

Но: существительное people — люди — множественное число, people — народ, нация — употребляется и во множественном и в единственном числе: people — народ, peoples — народы.

# 1. Put the words into the correct column according to the sound it has in plural -s, -es. ([z], [s], [iz])

pens, trees, caps, foxes, beds, stars, clocks, boxes, jugs, pets, doors, buses, dogs, streets, floors, benches, queens, maps, cars, roses, pies, cocks, dolls, cranes, desks, eggs, lamps, ships, ponds, arms, tulips, pupils, students, bikes, stones, cakes, bones, horses, chicks, flats, kites, hens.

### 2. Use the required form of the nouns in the following sentences

- 1. This is (star / stars / a star).
- 2. This isn't (a mountain / mountain / mountains).
- 3. There are (a pictures / picture / pictures) in the book.
- 4. Are there any English (a book / books / book) on the desk?
- 5. This (house / a house / houses) has (balcony / a balcony / balconies) looking out on the street.
  - 6. This is (new district / a new district / new districts) of Kazan.
- 7. There is (a shop / shops / shop), (cinema / a cinema / cinemas) and (theatre / a theatre / theatres) in the new district.
  - 8. We hear the sounds of (child's / a child's) voice.
- 9. Are there any (a new students / new students / new student) in your group.
  - 10. There is (a tea / tea / teas) in the cup: this (tea / teas / a tea) is black.

### 3 Choose the correct plural form of the word

- 1. a baby
- a) babyes
- b) babys
- c) babies
- 2. a man
- a) mans
- b) man
- c) men
- 3. a mouse
- a) mouses
- b) mouss
- c) mice
- 4. money
- a) moneies
- b) moneys
- c) moneyes
- 5. a city
- a) cityes
- b) cities
- c) citys
- 6. a foot

- a) footes
- b) foots
- c) feet
- 7. a photo
- a) photos
- b) photoes
- c) photoes
- 8. a watch
- a) watch
- b) watches
- c) watchs
- 9. a knife
- a) knifs
- b) knives
- c) knives
- 10 a brush
- a) brushs
- b) brushes
- c) brush

## 4. Translate sentences into English

- 1. Это были самые счастливые дни в моей жизни.
- 2. Он самый лучший доктор в нашей больнице.
- 3. Я прочитал историю о самом счастливом человеке.
- 4. Это очень трудная задача. Дайте мне более легкую задачу.
- 5. Шляпа Аллы, конечно, очень красивая, но моя шляпа красивее.
- 6. Это самая плохая шутка, которую я когда-либо слышала.
- 7. Сегодня вода в бассейне не такая теплая, как вчера.

- 8. Волга такая же красивая как Темза.
- 9. В этом году декабрь был теплее января.
- 10. В прошлом году июль был самым жарким месяцем лета.
- 11. Я купила себе обувь теплее, чем у Сергея.
- 12. Невеста выглядит счастливее, чем жених.
- 13. Твои руки грязные, пойди и умой их. Нет, они чистые, я не буду их мыть.
- 14. Ферма мистера Мейсона дальше от леса, чем наша, пошли туда вместе.
  - 15. В мою чашку с кофе клади меньше сахара, пожалуйста.
  - 16. Эта глупейшая история! Не рассказывай ее мне больше никогда!
- 17. Сегодня я чувствую себя хуже, чем вчера. Можно я не пойду в школу?
  - 18. Вставай, уже очень поздно! Опоздаешь на экзамен.
- 19. Саша Смирнов подарил красивейшие цветы своей учительнице. Они ей очень понравились.
- 20. Здание Казанского федерального университета самое высокое в центре города.

### 2. The adjective. Degrees of comparison

Прилагательное обозначает значение качества (свойства) того или иного предмета, например: возраст (old, young), местоположение в пространстве (far, inner), психологическое состояние (sad, glad), размер (big, small, little), цвет (white, black) и тд.

Степени сравнения прилагательных выражают сравнительную интенсивность данного качества у того или иного предмета. В английском языке формы сравнительной степени имеют односложные (простые прилагательные, состоящие из одного слога: hot, good, small, green, pink и silver (clever, lucky, narrow, noble, тд.) двусложные тд.) И прилагательные.

Существут три типа степени сравнения прилагательных:

- 1) положительная степень (качество предмета вне сравнения с другим предметом): cold;
- 2) сравнительная степень (большая степень качества по-сравнению с качеством какого-нибудь другого предмета), добавляется суффикс -er:

colder;

3) превосходная степень (наивысшая степень качества предмета среди других предметов, обладающих тем же качеством), добавляется суффикс - est: coldest.

Односложные и многосложные прилагательные с окончаниями **-y**, **-er**, **-ow**, **-le** (простая форма): small - smalle<u>st</u>

```
dirty — dirt<u>ier</u> — dirt<u>iest</u>
clev<u>er</u> — clever<u>er</u> — clever<u>est</u>
narr<u>ow</u> — narrow<u>er</u> — narrowest
simpl<u>e</u> — simpl<u>er</u> — the simpl<u>est</u> и др.
```

Двусложные и многосложные прилагательные образуются добавлением слов **more** в сравнительной степени и **most** в превосходной степени:

```
active — more active — the most active interesting — more interesting — the most interesting important — more important — the most important comfortable — more comfortable — the most comfortable famous — more famous — the most famous и др.
```

У некоторых прилагательных сохраняются нерегулярные (непродуктивные) формы степени сравнения:

```
good – better – the best
bad – worse – the worst
little – less – the least
old – older – the oldest
elder – the eldest
far – farther – the farthest
further – the furthest
much, many – more – most
```

Правописание окончаний простых форм степени сравнения

```
Опускается немая -e: large – larger – the largest После краткой гласной согласная удваивается: big – bigger – the biggest
```

fat – fatter – the fattest hot – hotter – the hottest После согласной **-у** меняется на **-i**: busy – busier – the busiest heavy – heavier – the heaviest happy – happier – the happiest и др.

# 1. Form the comparative and superlative of the following adjectives

F.e: happy – happier – happiest:

narrow, great, quiet, yellow, busy, easy, tall, small, new, hot, good, far, thin, thick, big, light, clean, young, heavy, slow, noisy, interesting, comfortable, beautiful, miserable, simple, regular, significant, cheap, accurate, difficult, careful, attentive, attractive, expensive, crowded.

### 2. Use the required form of the adjective in the following sentences

- 1. This boy is (tall) than that one.
- 2. My brother speaks French (bad) than I do.
- 3. This girl is the (good) student in our group.
- 4. Linda's work is (good) than mine.
- 5. Robert is the (old) in our family.
- 6. I bought the (cheap) watch in the shop.
- 7. She is the (clever) person I know.
- 8. The houses in London are (high) than in his place.
- 9. The weather in London is (sunny) than in the north.
- 10. What is the (long) river in the world?
- 11. My story is (interesting) than Peter's story.
- 12. Harold's souvenir is (good) than my souvenir.
- 13. Little Billy is (weak) than his brother.
- 14. What is the (cold) place in the world?
- 15. My trip to Kirsch was (pleasant) of all.

#### 3. Choose the correct form

- 1. I met my (good) friend yesterday.
- a) goodest

- b) better
- c) best
- 2. Julia is (strong) than her elder brother Bob.
- a) so strong as
- b) strong as
- c) stronger
- 3. It isn't very warm today, is it?
- − No, it was (warm) yesterday.
- a) more warm
- b) warmer
- c) the warmest
- 4. Your friend looked upset yesterday. I'm glad he looks (happy) today.
  - a) more happy
  - b) happier
  - c) happy as
  - 5. Baseball is (popular) sport in America.
  - a) popularer
  - b) more popular
  - c) the most popular
  - 6. I would like to ask your opinion about (late) film if you saw it.
  - a) later
  - b) more later
  - c) latest
  - 7. He was the (practical) of the family.
  - a) more practical
  - b) most practical
  - c) practicalest
  - 8. Sara's answer is (correct) then yours.
  - a) more correct
  - b) the most correct

- c) the correctest
- 9) Today I'm no (wise) than yesterday.
- a) wiser
- b) as wise
- c) more wise
- 10) My toothache is (painful) than it was yesterday.
- a) most painful
- b) painfuller
- c) more painful.
- 11) My book is interesting. But your book is (interesting).
- a) interesting
- b) more interesting
- c) the most interesting.
- 12. The weather is hot in summer in our country. But in Australia the weather is the (hot).
  - a) hot
  - b) hottest
  - c) hotter.
  - 13. You are tall. I am (tall) than you.
  - a) the tallest
  - b) taller
  - c) tall.
  - 14. My friend is a smart girl. She is (smart) in our group.
  - a) smarter
  - b) smart
  - c) the smartest.
  - 15. You are a lazy boy. But Albert is (lazy) than you.
  - a) lazy
  - b) the laziest
  - c) lazier.

- 16. Our car is comfortable. Their car is (comfortable) than ours.
- a) the most comfortable
- b) comfortable
- c) more comfortable
- 17. This music-group is very popular. But the (popular) group is the "Scorpions".
  - a) popular
  - b) most popular
  - c) more popular
  - 18. I work hard, but you work (hard) than me.
  - a) the hardest
  - b) harder
  - c) hard.

### 4. Translate sentences into English

- 1. Сегодня жарче, чем вчера.
- 2. Я чувствую себя хуже сегодня. Вчера было лучше.
- 3. В этой чашке меньше сахара, чем в той.
- 4. Это дерево самое высокое в нашем саду.
- 5. Азия больше, чем Австралия.
- 6. Цветы в нашем саду красивее, чем на улице.
- 7. В прошлом году июль был теплее, чем август.
- 8. Королева самая богатая женщина в мире.
- 9. Его брат талантливее, чем он.
- 10. Лето 2010 года было самым жарким.
- 11. Это правило несколько труднее.
- 12. Это кресло мягче и удобнее.
- 13. Это мой лучший друг.
- 14. Сегодня счастливейший день в моей жизни!
- 15. Собака большая, а муха маленькая.
- 16. Моя тетя полная, а ее тетя худая.
- 17. Твой портфель очень тяжелый, а мой совсем легкий.
- 18. Мой дедушка самый старший в нашей семье.
- 19. В Америке баскетбол популярнее, чем теннис.
- 20. Улица Баумана одна из самых красивейших улиц Казани.

### 21. Какая из этих книг самая интересная?

### 5. Translate sentences into English

- 1. Это были самые счастливые дни в моей жизни.
- 2. Он самый лучший доктор в нашей больнице.
- 3. Я прочитал историю о самом счастливом человеке.
- 4. Это очень трудная задача. Дайте мне более легкую задачу.
- 5. Шляпа Аллы, конечно, очень красивая, но моя шляпа красивее.
- 6. Это самая плохая шутка, которую я когда-либо слышала.
- 7. Сегодня вода в бассейне не такая теплая, как вчера.
- 8. Волга такая же красивая как Темза.
- 9. В этом году декабрь был теплее января.
- 10. В прошлом году июль был самым жарким месяцем лета.
- 11. Я купила себе обувь теплее, чем у Сергея.
- 12. Невеста выглядит счастливее, чем жених.
- 13. Твои руки грязные, пойди и умой их. Нет, они чистые, я не буду их мыть.
- 14. Ферма мистера Мейсона дальше от леса, чем наша, пошли туда вместе.
  - 15. В мою чашку с кофе положи меньше сахара, пожалуйста.
  - 16. Эта глупейшая история! Не рассказывай ее мне больше никогда!
- 17. Сегодня я чувствую себя хуже, чем вчера. Можно я не пойду в школу?
  - 18. Вставай, уже очень поздно! Опоздаешь на экзамен.
- 19. Саша Смирнов подарил красивейшие цветы своей учительнице. Они ей очень понравились.
- 20. Здание Казанского федерального университета самое высокое в центре города.

### 3. The article

Артиклями называются особые слова-определители, которые используются перед существительными и субстантивными словосочетаниями.

В английском языке существует два вида артиклей: неопределенный артикль (the) и определенный артикль (a/an).

Неопределенный артикль a (an), который произошел от слова one –

один какой-то, употребляется только в единственном числе с исчисляемыми существительными. Артикль **a** ставится перед словом, начинающимся с согласного звука: a story, a green apple, a lovely day. Артикль **an** ставится перед словом, если слово начинается с гласного звука: an honest boy, an hour, an information.

Неопределенный артикль a (an) ставится:

1. Когда предмет или человек употребляется в первый раз:

I see a dog (ничего про эту собаку еще не знаем).

# 2. С предикативными существительными, которые часто обозначают профессию или характеризует кого-то:

She is a teacher. I am a pupil.

I am an artist.

Your brother is a nice man.

### 2. В некоторых случаях вместо предлога «в»:

Two times a month

Five times a day.

## 3. Для выражения «какой-нибудь», «какой-то, один», «некий»:

It happened in a small town in Altai.

He bought a copy-book two days ago.

# 4. Когда существительное используется в качестве подлежащего в предложении:

A girl can understand it.

**A** white moon smiles through the green trees.

## 5. A/an сохраняет свое первоначальное значение «один»:

She had hardly spoken a word since we left the school.

## 6. С существительными обозначающие время, вес, меру:

A week or three passed.

I go to the shop twice a month.

It is 50 rubles a kilo.

The motorcycle makes 80 km an hour.

# 7. Ставится (если он нужен) перед существительными впереди всех его определений;

This is rather fanny story.

It was a warm wonderful day yesterday.

We had a beautiful little dinner (Ch. Dickens).

### 8. В восклицаниях:

What a clever man!

What a pity!

What a lovely day we are having today!

Но без артикля: What lovely weather!

# 9. A/an используется после некоторых выражений как: such, quite, rather:

It was such a difficult work.

My father is quite a young man.

It was rather a difficult decision.

# 10. А/ап используется перед названиями разновидностей болезней:

a cold, a headache, a sore throat, catch (a) cold, to have a/an earache, toothache, backache, stomach-ache.

Ho не используется артикль во множественном числе: measles, mumps, shingles и в некоторых других конструкциях: (high) blood pressure, flu (influenza), gout, hepatitis и др

**Определенный артикль the** произошел от таких слов, как this (these), that (those).

Артикль **the** считается индивидуализирующим артиклем. Если существительное сочетается с артиклем the, то предмет единичный, отличающийся от других, специфичный, особенный. И это особенно видно, когда the употребляется с существительными, как the universe (вселенная), the sun (солнце), the moon (луна), the Earth (Земля), the осеап (океан), the North (север), the South (юг), the East (восток), the West (запад) и др.

Определенный артикль **the** ставится:

# 1. Если мы уже что-то знаем о предмете, о человеке и это уже не любой, а определенный:

The dog is gray.

### 2. Если упоминается повторно:

**The** dog is sleeping on **the** floor.

### 3. Если объединяем все в одну группу, категорию:

I've read all **the** magazines in my grandmother's house.

The Japanese live on islands.

All **the** flowers in their garden were planted by Julia.

### 4. Перед фамилией всего семейства (во множественном числе):

**The** Ivanovs went to the forest.

**The** Kents lived in the next-door house.

Так же, если фамилии употреблены как олицетворение всех черт, присущих данной семье, роду и др.:

In the boy, the Dartie and the Forsyte were struggling (J. Galsworthy).

# 5. После таких общих, собирательных выражений, как most of (большинство из), one of (один из), some of (некоторые из):

Most of the mistakes were made by the Browns.

One of the students left the classroom.

Some of the dictations were not very good.

# 6. С существительными, которые единственные, особенные в своем роде: солнце на небе, президент страны, сердце у человека, луна, солнце, столица в стране, море, небо и др.:

It takes me thirty minutes to go to **the** centre of **the** city.

Kazan is **the** capital of our republic.

The moon in the sky is bright.

## 7. Ставится перед порядковыми числительными:

The first of November.

She is the second runner.

# 8. Перед существительными, которые показывают родство, родственную связь:

**The** daughter was as beautiful as **the** mother.

Jasper was the son of an artist.

### 9. Перед превосходной степенью у прилагательных:

The best wishes for you.

It was **the** most interesting article on the conference.

10. Употребляется также в некоторых устоявшихся словосочетаниях, как: to go to the theatre, to go to the cinema, to the forest, to the club, to the country; to play the piano, the guitar, the violent и др.

Ho без артикля: to play football, volleyball, hockey и др. Her daughter learned to play the piano at the age of 5.

11. Если предмет выделен придаточным предложением:

The right which I need.

- 12. Перед названиями исторических событий: the French Revolution, the World War и др.
- 13. названия газет и журналов: the «Times», the «Washington Post», the «Morning Star», the «Daily Mail», the «Guardian».
  - 14. Перед географическими названиями, как:
- а) при наличии уточняющего определения, что имеется в виду один из конкретных городов (лиц):

**The** Philadelphia she was born in...

- ... **the** Moscow of the merchants and aristocrats.
- b) океанов, морей, проливов, заливов, озер, рек, каналов, пустынь: the Pacific Ocean, the Atlantic Ocean, the Niagara Falls, the Black Sea, the Caribbean Sea, the Red Sea, the Baltic Sea, the Nile, the Neva, the Thames, the Baikal, the Ontario, the Sahara, the English Channel, the Suez Canal и др.

Ho: Lake Baikal, Lake Ontario, Lake Winnipeg и др.

- c) названия кораблей: the Titanic, the Argo, the Calypso, the Mayflower, the Nautilus, the Mariposa и др.
- d) названия стран (которых используются во множественном числе или вместе с выражениями united, union, federation, republic): the Netherlands, the Ukraine, the Caucasus, the United Kingdom of Great Britain, the United Arab Emirates, the Soviet Union, the Russian Federation, the Dominican Republic, the Czech Republic и др.

e) географические виды, регионы: the Middle East, the Far East, the Grand Canyon, the Cape of Good Hope и др.

Ho: North America, Latin America, Central Asia, western Canada, southern Spain и др.

f) названия групп островов, гор: the Bermudas, The British Isles, the Bahamas, the Hawaiian Islands, the Channel Islands, the Canary Islands, the Himalayas, the Pamirs, the Urals, the Alps и др.

Ho: остров: Madagascar, Sicily, Corfu, Ashmore and Cartier islands; горные вершины: Everest, Elbrus, Kilimanjaro и др.

g) названия отелей, кинотеатров, театров, музеев: the «Ritz », the «Marriott», the « Hilton», the «Astoria», the «Metropol», the Sydney Opera House, the Bolshoy theatre, the Globe, the Odeon, the Arbat, the British Museum, the Madame Tussauds in London, the Hermitage и др.

### Артикли не используются в таких случаях, как:

1. Перед веществами, так как это масса, а не предмет и абстрактными существительными: butter, tea, water, snow, honey, wine, beauty, freedom, love, work, weather и др

A packet of tea.

I want to eat **bread** and **butter**.

**Blood** is thicker than water.

Ho: Give me the **butter**, please (имеется в виду масленка – предмет, в котором масло).

## 2. При обращении к кому-то:

Ladies and gentlemen!

How do you do, young girl?

3. В семейном обиходе (пишется с заглавной буквы и используется как имя собсвенное), где существительное обозначает членов семьи, родных или близких: Father, Mother, Aunt, Uncle, Nurse, Baby:

He came into the room: «Is Mother back?»

Granny told me to meet Uncle Nick at the railway station.

4. Перед профессией, рангом титулом человека: Mr./Mrs. Brown, academician, professor, doctor Klaus, count, Lord Wilson и др.

Professor Brown is my neighbour.

5. Названия месяцев, дней недели, времена года: January, March, September, Sunday, Monday, February, winter, spring, summer, autumn и др.

My birthday is on September.

6. Предметы в учебных заведениях, наука, спорт, языки: to play golf, tennis, football, Physics, Mathematics, Russian, English, German и др.:

We study French.

I like History.

7. Если существительное тесно слилось с глаголом: to take care (заботиться), to pay attention (обращать внимание), to go west (в западном направлении), to go to school (идти в школу) и др.

Who takes care of these children?

8. Если существительное тесно слилось с предлогом: at home, by heart (наизусть), by bus, to fall in love (влюбиться) и др.

I have learned this English poem by heart.

9. Если до и после существительного стоит количественное существительное:

I saw **four women** in the room.

Give me the key from **classroom 8.** 

The windows of **three rooms** were open.

10. В выражениях обозначающих время, как: прошлый раз, следующий (если не нужно особо подчеркнуть), иногда времена года:

I asked it **last time**.

I'll be in Paris next year.

She likes winter.

Ho: **The last** month of **the** year (именно последняя).

The next day was nice.

11. В устоявшихся словосочетаниях: From top to bottom, from time to time, from head to foot, to walk arm in arm и др.

### 12. С некоторыми географическими названиями:

- a) страны, континенты, штаты,: Europe, India, Africa, Oxford, Asia, Greenland, Florida, Michigan, New York State и др.
- b) города, деревни: Kazan, Volgograd, London, Los Angeles, Petrovka, Inner Harbor и др.
- c) улицы и скверы: Bauman Street, Broadway, Red Square, Times Square и др.
- d) аэропорты, станции автобусов, метро, железнодорожные станции: Sheremetyevo, Domodedovo, Heathrow, British Museum Station и др.
- e) бизнес центры, церкви: General Motors, Sony Shell, Westminster Abby, St. Paul's Cathedral, Christian Church, Buckingham Palace и др.
- f) парки и зоопарки: Luna Park, Hyde Park, St. James's Park, Central Park и др.
- g) школы, колледжи, университеты: Kazan Federal University, Moscow State University, London University, Manchester Grammar School и др.

### 1. Explain the usage of the articles

- 1. I went to (**no article**) France last year, but I haven't been to **the** Netherlands yet.
- 2. **The** United Kingdom includes (**no article**) Great Britain and (**no article**) Northern Ireland.
  - 3. She has **a** ball. **The** ball is green.
- 5. I have two (no article) sisters. My (no article) sisters have two (no article) children.
- 6. She bought (**no article**) meat, (**no article**) butter, (**no article**) potatoes yesterday.
  - 7. **The** Urals are old and not very high.
  - 8. We often go to **the** theatre and to **the** cinema.
  - 9. Lermontov is **an** outstanding Russian poet.
  - 10. What a pity they haven't come.

## 2. Put a, an, the, x (zero article) where necessary

- 1. ... Lake Baikal is the deepest lake in the world.
- 2. He took ... doctor's arm and led him out of the room.
- 3. The scheme of study in ...Teachers' Training Collage is based upon compulsory and optional subjects.

- 4. "Is that ...Mr Blair?" ... woman's voice asked in the telephone.
- 5. She was drinking ... glass of orange juice.
- 6. ... girl from ... farm came once ... week to help clean ... house.
- 7. I thought that English was a language he had learnt from ... books.
- 8. "...French are ... easy-going people" her father used to say.
- 9. "Only ... two kinds of ...people", she said "arrive in noiseless cars: ... millionaires and ...police".
- 10. Then Rudy saw ... Professor Denton, ...head of the history and Economics department.
  - 11. They had lunch at Huxley, ... small village on ...the coast.
  - 12. At ... party, Katherine was acting as ... hostess.
  - 13. It was ... brilliant summer of 2000.
  - 14. After ... lunch Dr. Raily went to ... hospital.
  - 15. What ... funny kitten!
- 16. ... president of ... Russia applied to ... Congress, then to... Government.
- 17. Mr. Sutton was ... engineer who lived in ...next street, and he was probably ... only good mathematician in our district.
- 18. ... Sahara is ... greatest desert in ... North Africa? Extending from the Atlantic Ocean to ... Nile.
  - 19. ... Elbrus is ...highest peak in Europe.
- 20. Go down ...oxford Street till you come to ... Greenland park, then turn right.

## 3. Put a, an, the, x (zero article) where necessary

- 1. I can see ... copy-book on your ... table, but I can see no... book.
- 2. I got ... letter from my ... friend yesterday.
- 3. We see ... book in your ... hand. Is ...book interesting?
- 4. My sister is drinking ... juice and eating ... hamburger.
- 5. My nephew is ... builder. He works at ... big company.
- 6. Bob went into ... bathroom, turned on ... water and washed his ... face.
- 7. Are you ... designer? No, I am ... makeup artist.
- 8. This is ... very difficult question. I don't know ... answer to it.
- 9. There is ... beautiful picture in my uncle's ... study. ... picture is on ...wall to ...left of ... window.
  - 10. We don't go to ...school on ...Sunday. We can sleep more longer.

### 4. Use the required form of the article in the following sentences:

- 1. She gave me (a, an, the, x (zero article) coffee and (a, an, the, x) cake. (a, an, the, x) cake was very (a, an, the, x) tasty.
  - 2. What's (a, an, the, x) weather like today. (a, an, the, x) weather is fine.
- 3. Where's your (a, an, the, x) sister? She is at (a, an, the, x) home. She is doing her (a, an, the, x) home exercises.
  - 4. Our (a, an, the, x) cat is sitting on (a, an, the, x) chair.
- 5. We had (a, an, the, x) English lesson two days ago. (a, an, the, x) teacher asked us many (a, an, the, x) questions and (a, an, the, x) tasks. (a, an, the, x) questions were difficult.
- 6. On Wednesday (a, an, the, x) Moscow Times published (a, an, the, x) article about Leonardo Dicaprio.
  - 7. Could you tell me (a, an, the, x) time, please?
    - It's (a, an, the, x) quarter past fife.
  - 8. Are you going to (a, an, the, x) village on (a, an, the, x) Friday.
  - 9. He studies (a, an, the, x) history of the French Revolution.
  - 10. My favorite subject at university is (a, an, the, x) English.

### **5.** Chose the right forms of the articles

| 1. This is a book. It's my book.                                 |
|--|
| a) the   |
| b) a   |
| c) –   |
| 2. My mother works at school.                                    |
| a) a   |
| b) the   |
| c) —   |
| 3. What do you do after breakfast?                               |
| a) a   |
| b) the   |
| c) –   |
| 4 United Kingdom consists of Great Britain and Northern Ireland. |
| a) a   |
| b) the   |
| c) an  |
| d) –   |

5. I'd like to have ... hamburger for ... breakfast. a) the b) a c) an d) – 6. Todd's going to take ... his fishing-line. a) the b) a c) an d) – 7. It's ... high time you stopped being so lazy. a) the b) a c) an d) – 8. Dad came to ...school to see my teacher yesterday. a) the b) a c) an d) – 9. ... President is going to open ... new hospital in ... capital ... next month. a) the b) a c) an d) – 10. -By ... way, have you heard anything from Tony lately? - ... last year he entered ... Kazan Federal University. a) the b) a c) an d) –

## 4. The preposition

Предлоги — это служебные слова, выражающие отношение к предмету. Лидер среди частей речи по краткости слов.

She lives **near** the University.

По форме образования предлоги в английском языке делятся на:

- -простые (in, at, to, by, on, of и др.)
- составные (или сложные within, into, onto, throughout, about и др.)
- групповые (словосочетания, употребляются в качестве предлогов by means of, in front of, opposite to, to the right of, up to, as to и др.)

Выделяются четыре группы предлогов:

- 1. Места (где?)
- 2. Направления (куда?)
- 3. Времени (когда?)
- 4. Эквивалент падежей русского языка.

### 1. Предлоги места:

in – в (внутри) – in the room, in the street, in bed, arrive in France, in the dark

on - на - on the floor, on the map, get on a horse, on a farm

at, by, near, beside - y, возле, около, рядом - at the door, sit at table, by the sea, sit by the phone, near a petrol station, live near the sea, beside the lake, beside me

far from – далеко от – not far from here

above, over - над - above my head, the flat above mine, fly over the forest, my flat is over the shop (моя квартира расположена над магазином)

under, below, beneath – под, ниже – under the pillow, under the sky, below sea level, below zero, beneath the rug (под ковром), beneath criticism (ниже всякой критики)

to the right (left) of - справа (слева) от предмета

on the right (left) – справа (слева) от говорящего

between – между (двумя) – between the table and the cupboard, between you and me

among (amongst) – среди (многих) – among papers, be shy among strangers (чувствовать себя неловко среди чужих людей)

in front of, before  $-\pi epe \pi - in$  front of me, before the house

behind – за (близко) – behind the tree, behind the curtain (за кулисами, публично)

beyond – за (далеко) – beyond the mountains

outside – за пределами чего-либо (близко) – outside the house (вне дома)

away from - за пределами чего-либо (далеко) — walk away from the door

(отойти от двери).

### 2. Предлоги направления:

 $to - \kappa$ , в, на (направление действия) – go to school, take children to the zoo, to the left/right

from – от, из, с (откуда-то, пространственное значение) – fly from New York, not far from here, fall from the chair, drive from the city (выехать из города)

into – в (внутрь, движение в ограниченное пространство) – go into the field (выйти в поле), bank was broken into (в банк забрались воры), into the bottle

out of - из (изнутри, за пределы чего-либо) - out of village, out of the ordinary (необычный), get out of the car

on top of — на (на поверхность) — on top of the mountain, sit on the top of the world (быть на седьмом небе)

off – c, со (с поверхности), от, по – get off the train (сойти с поезда), keep off the grass! (не ходите по траве), off the shore (недалеко от берега)

ир — вверх, по, на — go up the stairs, get up the horse (вбираться на лошадь), up the trees, up the road (дальше по дороге), move up South (переехать на  $\Theta$ г)

down — вниз, в, от, вдоль — go down the stairs, drive from Moscow down to Kazan (выехать из Москвы в Казань), to live down the street (жить дальше по улице)

along – вдоль (по улице) – drive along the road (ехать по дороге), along the way

across – поперек (дороги), через – run across the road (перебежать улицу), across country, lie across the bed, swim across the Volga

amid (amidst) — между, посреди, среди — see somebody amid the crowd (увидеть кого-либо в гуще толпы), amid the cries of welcome (среди приветствующих возгласов)

around - вокруг (дома) – around the world, sit around the table, to walk around the monument

through, throughout – через, сквозь (лес), по – drive through the tunnel, look through the telescope, fly through the air (летать по воздуху), cry throughout a film (плакать на протяжении всего фильма), be well-known throughout the scientific world (быть хорошо известным в научном мире).

### 3. Предлоги времени:

at – в (с часами, минутами, секундами, промежутки времени) – at nine o'clock, at midday/midnight, at the moment, at noon, at night, at sunrise, at sunset

on – в (с днями) – on Friday, on a trip, on the  $5^{th}$  of May

in — в (с длинными периодами времени: с месяцами, сезонами, годами, веками) — in 1997, in March, in spring, in winter, in summer, in autumn, in the morning, in the afternoon, in the evening

через (с интервалами времени) – in an hour, in two years, in five days, in a few minutes

by  $-\kappa$  ( $\kappa$  какому-то сроку) - by 3 o'clock, by 2014, by tomorrow, by then ( $\kappa$  тому времени)

for, during – в течение (какого-то срока) – listen to the music for hours, for a long time, for ever, during the weekend, during the vocation (во время моего отсутствия)

since – с (какого-то момента) – since last year, since winter, since 2005, since evening, since 8 o'clock, I have been waiting for you since 2 o'clock

from to ... to (till) – c (от) ... до – bancs are open from 9 till 5, from Monday to Friday (банки открыты с 9 до 5 часов, с понедельника по пятницу), from night to morning, from time to time

ир to - вплоть до - up to now (до сих пор), up to date (современный), up to night (до ночи)

before - до, перед, раньше - before the war, before playing the guitar, the day before yesterday

after – после – after dinner, after careful consideration (обдуманно), after all (в итоге, в конце концов), after a long time (после долгого времени).

### Ho:

в этом rogy - this year

в прошлом году – last year

в будущем году – next year

в этом месяце – this month

в прошлом месяце – last month

в будущем месяце – next month

на этой неделе – this week

на прошлой неделе- last week

на будущей неделе – next week.

## 4. Предлоги – эквиваленты падежей русского языка:

Именительный падеж: без предлога.

Родительный падеж: of – the hat of my father – шляпа (кого?) моего отца;

A cup of coffee – чашка (чего?) кофе.

Дательный падеж: to – he gave his pencil to me – он дал свой карандаш (кому?) мне.

Винительный падеж: без предлога – I see the ocean – я вижу (что?) океан.

Творительный падеж: by, with – this article was written by her – эта статья была написана (кем?) ею; smash the window with a stone – разбить оконное стекло (чем?) камнем.

Предложный падеж: about, of — worry about friends — беспокоиться ( о ком?) о друзьях; dream of a better life — мечтать (о чем?) о лучшей жизни.

# 1. Here is the list of prepositions in common use. Make up sentences using these prepositions in each

| about   | behind  | from | through |
|---------|---------|------|---------|
| above   | below   | in   | to      |
| across  | beside  | into | towards |
| around  | by      | off  | with    |
| after   | during  | over | without |
| against | between | of   | under   |
| among   | for     | on   | up      |

## 2. Use the required form of the prepositions in the following sentences

- 1. He is back (to, at) school now.
- 2. Philipp stayed (to, at) home last week.
- 3. He came (in, into) the room with me.
- 4. He is (in, into) my class now.
- 5. He was the strongest (between, among) the participants of the competitions.
  - 6. Mother divided the berries (between, among) Nina and Fabian.
  - 7. Kate worked there (for, at) two hours.
  - 8. She'll come (with, by, on) train tomorrow.
  - 9. My dress is different (than, from) yours.
  - 10. May I pay (for, from) this book?

### 3. Choose the correct form of answers

- 1. Mrs. and Mr. Gray fly to New York. (to, in, for)
- 2. Mr. Huxley goes to Birmingham by coach. (with, in, by)
- 3. How to find the First Class Carriage at a railway station. (in, on, at)
- 4. I'm going on a trip to Yorkshire. (on, by, with)
- 5. We a planning to go for many leisurely walks. (for, by, at)
- 6. Did you change your appointment from Monday to Friday? (from, on, to, for)
- 7. Please call before you come; otherwise we might not be home. (otherwise, to, before, except)
- 8. Did you glance at the application form before you sent it? (on, at, from, in)
- 9. Please close the windows and lock out the office when you leave. (for, up, out, when)
- 10. After finding the new word in the dictionary, I wrote it down. (after, with, in, down)

### 4. Put (translate) the right forms of prepositions

| spring (весной)     | the morning (утром)     |
|---------------------|-------------------------|
| summer (летом)      | (днем)                  |
| winter (зимой)      | (вечером)               |
| autumn (осенью)     | (ночью)                 |
| (к 7 часам)         | (с прошлого лета)       |
| (к 2020 году)       | (с весны)               |
| (к завтрашнему дню) | (с утра)                |
| (с вечера)          | (с двух часов)          |
| (через час)         | (через год)             |
| (через два дня)     | (через несколько минут) |
| (ножом)             | (ложкой)                |
| (через дорогу)      | (через поле)            |
| (через лес)         | (через реку)            |
| (через забор)       | (по улице)              |
| (по реке)           | (по морю)               |
| (по городу)         | (по комнате)            |
| (по коридору)       | (по стране)             |
|                     |                         |

... (в пять часов) ... (в полдень) ... (в полночь) ... (на закате) ... (на рассвете) ... (в 1983 году) ... (в новом году) ... (в прошлом году) ... (в будущем году) ... (в этом месяце) ... (в прошлом месяце) ... (в будущем месяце) ... (на этой неделе) ... (на прошлой неделе) ... (на будущей неделе) ... (во вторник) ... (шестого марта) ... (в постели) ... (в городе) ... (за городом) ... (в деревню) ... (в постель) ... (в город) ... (за город) ... (на севере) ... (на север) ... (на юге) ... (на юг) ...(на востоке) ... (на восток) ... (на западе) ... (на запад) ... (за столом) ... (за стол) ... (за партой) ... (за парту) ... (на выставке) ... (на выставку) ... (в театре) ... (в театр).

### 5. Translate the sentences into English

- 1. Подождите, пожалуйста, я вернусь через несколько минут.
- 2. В прошлую субботу мы встали рано утром и к семи часам были готовы идти. В половине восьмого мы отправились. Мы пошли на железнодорожный вокзал. На вокзале было мало народу: во время выходных люди не любят вставать очень рано. На платформе мы встретили своих друзей. Поезд прибыл через двадцать минут. Через час мы были уже за городом. Мы провели за городом весь день, остались ночевать у близких друзей. На следующий день поехали обратно в город.
- 3. Я не была в Риге с 2000 года. На следующий год, летом я поеду туда. Я проведу там все лето и вернусь в Казань к началу учебного года.
- 4. Мой друг не писал мне с прошлого года. Но на днях я получила от него письмо.
  - 5. Она не видела своего брата со вчерашнего утра.
- 6. Прошлым летом мы ездили на юг. На юге мы ездили купаться каждый день, в полдень обедали и отдыхали, вечером посещали парки. На

закате опять ходили к морю и возвращались домой только в одиннадцать или в двенадцать часов.

- 7. Завтра я буду встречать своего друга в аэропорту. Самолет прибывает только в десять часов утра. Надеюсь, я смогу освободиться от работы к тому времени.
  - 8. Сара любит ходить в парк осенью.
  - 9. Этой зимой мы часто ходили на каток с моими друзьями.
  - 10. Мой старший брат учится в университете, а я учусь в школе.

### 5. The Active Voice: Present Tenses

### 1. Present Indefinite Tense

Рresent Indefinite образуется при помощи первой формы глагола и добавлением окончания —s, или —es, если подлежащее выражено 3л.ед.числа(личные местоимения he,she,it ). Если глагол оканчивается на ss,sh,ch,x, то они принимают окончание —es. Например, pass-passes,teachteaches,wish-wishes. В остальных случаях просто —s. Если глагол оканчивается на —y то: а) если перед —y стоит гласная буква,то глагол принимает окончание —s. Например: stay-stays,pay-pays,play-plays; б) если перед —y стоит согласная буква, то —y меняем на і и добавляем окончание —es. Например: cry-cries,fly-flies, carry-carries. Глаголы to go и to do принимают окончание —es: go-goes,do-does.

Вопросительная форма образуется при помощи вспомогательных глаголов does(если подлежащее в 3л.ед.ч.) и do (в остальных случаях). Например Do you like apples? Do children like playing? Does she read books? Does the boy go to school?

Отрицательная форма образуется при помощи вспомогательных глаголов does(если подлежащее в 3л.ед.ч.) и do(в остальных случаях) и частицы not. Например, We do not watch TV. My children do not like to swim. She does not read books. My son does not read poems.

### Present Indefinite Tense употребляется:

- 1. для выражения действия обычного, постоянного. Например, I live in Kazan. She goes to university every day. My son reads books.
- 2. для выражения действия, происходящего в данный момент, с глаголами не употребляющимися во временах группы Continuous(to see,

to hear, to hate, to love, to like, to know, to believe, to prefer, to think, to wish). Например ,I do not hear you! Do you believe your ears?

3. co словами usually, often, always, sometimes, seldom, every day \ week \ moth \ year , in the morning \ afternoon \ evening, at night, at the weekend, on Monday и т.д. Односложные слова(always, sometimes) стоят перед сказуемым, если оно выражено обычным глаголом, но после сказуемого, если оно выражено модальным глаголом или глаголом to be. Например, She often plays tennis. He always helps his dad. I am never late. Pete must sometimes apologize.

| Утвердительные | Вопросительные | Отри     | цательн  | ые    |
|----------------|----------------|----------|----------|-------|
| предложения    | предложения    | предложе | ния      |       |
| I work.        | Do I work?     | I do n   | ot work  | •     |
| You work.      | Do you work?   | You d    | lo not w | ork.  |
| He works.      | Does he work?  | He do    | es not v | vork. |
| She works.     | Does she work? | She      | does     | not   |
| It works.      | Does it work?  | work.    |          |       |
| We work.       | Do we work?    | It       | does     | not   |
| They work.     | Do they work?  | work.    |          |       |
| •              | ·              | We       | do       | not   |
|                |                | work.    |          |       |
|                |                | They     | do       | not   |
|                |                | work.    |          |       |

### 2. Present Continuous Tense

Present Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в настоящем времени (is, are, am) и смыслового глагола с окончанием -ing. Is употребляется, если подлежащее в единственном числе, are употребляется, если подлежащее во множественном числе, am употребляется, если подлежащее выражено местоимением I. Например, She is working now. Her niece is playing a piano at the moment. They are sitting in the room now. I am washing the floor.

В вопросительной форме вспомогательный глагол ставят перед подлежащим. Например, Am I telling anything wrong? Is she crying? Are they coming?

В отрицательной форме к вспомогательным глаголам is, are, am

добавляют частицу not. Например, I am not listening to you. She is not watching TV at the moment. We are not sleeping now.

### Present Continuous Tense употребляется:

- 1. Для выражения длительного действия, происходящего в данный момент. Haпример, Look! She is smiling. Don't disturb her now, she is working.
- 2. Для выражения длительного действия, совершающегося в данный период времени. Например, The air is becoming more and more polluted. Children are getting taller and taller.
- 3. Для обозначения будущего времени, при выражении намерения совершить действие или уверенности в его совершении. Например, They are going to the cinema tomorrow. He is leaving for Moscow tonight.
- 4. Со словами now, at this moment, still. Например, We are studying grammar now.

| Утвердительные    | Вопросительные    | Отрицательные       |
|-------------------|-------------------|---------------------|
| предложения       | предложения       | предложения         |
| I am working.     | Am I working?     | I am not working.   |
| Youare working.   | Are you working?  | You are not         |
| He is working.    | Is he working?    | working.            |
| She is working.   | Is she working?   | He is not working.  |
| It is working.    | Is it working?    | She is not working. |
| We are working.   | Are we working?   | It is not working.  |
| They are working. | Are they working? | We are not          |
|                   |                   | working.            |
|                   |                   | They are not        |
|                   |                   | working.            |

### **3** Present Perfect Tense

Present Perfect образуется при помощи вспомогательных глаголов has (если подлежащее выражено 3л.ед.ч.) и have (в остальных случаях) и третьей формы глагола. Необходимо помнить, что глаголы бывают правильные и неправильные. Правильные глаголы образуют третью форму при помощи добавления окончания —ed (work-worked,help-helped). Неправильные глаголы образуют третью форму индивидуально (смотри

таблицу).

В вопросительной форме вспомогательный глагол ставят перед подлежащим. Например, Has he come already? Have they returned yet?

В отрицательной форме к вспомогательным глаголам has и have добавляют частицу not. Например, I haven't met her since Monday. She has not come yet.

### Present Perfect употребляется:

- 1. для выражения совершившегося действия, которое имеет результат в настоящем времени. I have finally done my homework. She has already written 5 pages.
- 2. Для выражения не только однократного действия, но и действия повторившегося несколько раз. Например, I have seen this film twice. He has been to Paris several times already.
- 3. Со словами already, never, ever, just, yet, today, this week, this month, this year, lately. Yet употребляется только в отрицательных и вопросительных предложениях. Например, I have already seen Jack. He has not talked to her yet.

| Утвердительные    | Вопросительные    | Отрицательные       |
|-------------------|-------------------|---------------------|
| предложения       | предложения       | предложения         |
| I have worked.    | Have I worked?    | I have not worked.  |
| You have worked.  | Have you worked?  | You have not        |
| He has worked.    | Has he worked?    | worked.             |
| She has worked.   | Has she worked?   | He has not worked.  |
| It has worked.    | Has it worked?    | She has not worked. |
| We have worked.   | Have we worked?   | It has not worked.  |
| They have worked. | Have they worked? | We have not         |
|                   | •                 | worked.             |
|                   |                   | They have not       |
|                   |                   | worked.             |

### 4. Present Perfect Continuous

Present Perfect Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в форме Present Perfect (has been, если подлежащее выражено

3л.ед.ч. и have been в остальных случаях) и смыслового глагола с окончанием —ing. Например, She has been working at our university for five years. We have been playing in the garden since morning.

В вопросительной форме вспомогательные глаголы have и has ставят перед подлежащим. Например ,Have you written your composition? Has she read a book?

Отрицательная форма образуется путем добавления к вспомогательным глаголам have и has частицы not. Например, I haven't been waiting for the bus. She hasn't been playing chess.

#### Present Perfect Continuous употребляется:

- 1. Для обозначения действия, которое началось в прошлом и на момент говорения все ещё продолжается. Например, I have been thinking about you the whole day. He has been drawing that picture since morning.
- 2. С такими сочетаниями как for an hour, for a month, for a long time, since yesterday, since five o'clock. Например, I have been waiting for you since morning. They have been repairing my computer for a long time.

Утвердительные предложения I have been working. You have been working. He has been working. She has been working. It has been working. We have been working. They have been working.

Вопросительные предложения Have I been working? Has he been working? Has she been working? Has it been working? Have we been working? Have we been working? Have they been working?

Отрицательные предложения I have not been working. You have not been working. He has not been working. She has not been working. It has not been working. We have been not working. They have not been working.

## Open the brackets with the correct form of the verb

1. His mother (not to watch) a film at the moment. She (to cook) dinner because she (not to have) time before.

- 2. I (not to drink) coffee now. I (to write) an English exercise
- 3. My father (not to speak) on the phone now. He (to read) a newspaper in the garden.
- 4. When you usually (to come) home from university? I (to come) at three o'clock.
- 5. Who that man (to be) who just (to call) you? —You don't know him. It (to be) James, the old friend of mine.
- 6. Galya (to know) French rather well. She (to want) to know English too, but she (to be) busy at the moment.
- 7. Your cousin (to leave) Moscow in winter? Yes, he always (to go) to the seaside. He (to like) the sea and (to hate) cold. He (to stay) there for three months and (to return) in the beginning of March.
  - 8. She (to like) walking in the park. She (to walk) there since morning
- 9. It (to be) very late now. Victor (to get) ready to go to bed. His sister (to take) a bath. His mother and grandmother (to watch) TV.
  - 10. I usually (enjoy) music but I (not/enjoy) this record very much.
  - 11. I (not/believe) this man's story.
  - 12. We have already (to learn) a lot of English words.
  - 13. We have just (to talk) about it.
  - 14. They have (to ask) me several questions.
  - 15. I (work) on this problem for two months.
  - 16. She (sleep) all this time?
  - 17. We (see) each other regularly since the party at Valya's.
  - 18. You (talk) this nonsense all day long.
- 19. This man (to be) a driver. He (to drive) a bus. He (to drive) a bus since he was 18.
- 20. Lena is a very obedient girl. She always (to help) about the house. Today she (to clean) the house since morning. She already (to do) everything. Now she (to watch) TV.
- 21. Now I (to stay) at my granny in the village. I (to stay) there for two weeks already. I (to be) in the forest already.
- 22. She (to learn) a poem by heart for two hours; but she (not to learn) half of it yet.
- 23. You (to find) your laptop? No! I still (to look) for it. I already (to look) for it for two hours, but (not yet to find) it.
- 24. The weather (to be) horrible today. It (to drizzle) ever since we got up.
  - 25. I (to go) to wash my cat. I (to be) sure it (to be) dirty. But Mary

already (to wash) the cat. You needn't do it.

#### **Translate from Russian into English**

- 1. Мой папа программист. Он не интересуется политикой.
- 2. Это тетрадь твоего брата? Нет, это моя тетрадь.
- 3. Почему ты смеешься?
- 4. Я гуляю по лесу и собираю грибы.
- 5. Это фотография моих детей. Таня играет в куклы, а Валя рисует.
- 6. Где ты живешь? Я живу в Москве.
- 7. Мой брат работает в университете. Он преподаватель. Он встает в восемь. Он работает с утра до вечера.
  - 8. Он любит школьные каникулы, особенно летние.
  - 9. Я трачу много денег на одежду.
  - 10. Она все еще пишет книгу.
- 11. Он много сделал для своей семьи. Сейчас он планирует купить машину.
  - 12. Он говорит неправду. Он не сделал уроки.
  - 13. У них только что было собрание.
  - 14. Сейчас они сидят в гостиной и разговаривают о своей поездке.
  - 15. Они работают на заводе с начала года.
  - 16. Ты давно меня ждешь?
  - 17. У тебя глаза грустные. Ты слышала последние новости?
  - 18. Как давно вы живете в этом городе?
  - 19. Галя играет на пианино уже 3 часа.
  - 20. Моя сестра водит машину десять лет.
  - 21. Я готовлюсь к завтрашнему экзамену.
  - 22. «Куда ты торопишься?» «Мама ждет меня у метро уже 5 минут».
- 23. «Когда ты в последний раз водил машину?» «Я не водил машину уже 6 месяцев».
  - 24. Я выпила уже пятую чашку кофе за вечер.
  - 25. Они построили новый дом. Ты его видел?

#### 6. The Active Voice: Past Tenses

#### 1. Past Indefinite Tense

Past Indefinite Tense образуется при помощи второй формы глагола.

Глаголы в английском языке бывают правильные и неправильные. Правильные глаголы образуют вторую форму при помощи окончания —ed. Неправильные глаголы образуют вторую форму индивидуально (смотри таблицу).

Вопросительная форма как правильных, так и неправильных глаголов образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола did. Когда задают вопрос, вспомогательный глагол did ставят перед подлежащим. Смысловой глагол остается в первой форме. Например, Did you visit your relatives last year? Did your brother buy bread yesterday?

В отрицательной форме к вспомогательному глаголу Did добавляют частицу not. Смысловой глагол остается в первой форме. Например, Did you see that film yesterday? Did you forgive him?

#### Past Indefinite употребляется:

- 1. Для выражения прошедших действий или последовательности прошедших действий. Например, I went to the swimming pool last Sunday. Yesterday I woke up, looked out of the window, saw that the weather was fine and decided to go for a walk.
- 2. С такими словами и сочетаниями как yesterday, last week\month\year, an hour ago, the other day, on Monday, in 1979. Например, I saw Masha an hour ago.

| Утвердительные | Вопросительные | Отрицательные      |
|----------------|----------------|--------------------|
| предложения    | предложения    | предложения        |
| I worked.      | Did I work?    | I did not work.    |
| You worked.    | Did you work?  | You did not work.  |
| He worked.     | Did he work?   | He did not work.   |
| She worked.    | Did she work?  | She did not work.  |
| It worked.     | Did it work?   | He did not work.   |
| We worked.     | Did we work?   | We did not work.   |
| They worked.   | Did they work? | They did not work. |

#### 2. Past Continuous Tense

Past Continuous Tense образуется при помощи вспомогательных глаголов was (если подлежащее в единственном числе) и were(если

подлежащее во множественном числе) и смыслового глагола с окончанием –ing. Например, I was watering the flowers at seven o'clock yesterday. We were walking in the garden the whole day yesterday.

В вопросительной форме вспомогательный глагол ставят перед подлежащим. Например, Were you learning new words when I called you yesterday? Was she looking through the papers when you saw her yesterday?

В отрицательной форме к вспомогательным глаголам was и were добавляют частицу not. Например, He was not drawing at seven o'clock yesterday. They were not playing hide-and-seek the whole evening.

#### Past Continuous употребляется:

- 1. Для выражения действия, совершавшегося в определенный момент в прошлом. Например, Pete was washing the car at seven o'clock yesterday. Sam was riding a bike when I met him in the street yesterday.
- 2. Для выражения длительного действия, происходившем на истекшем периоде времени. Например, She was writing a book during the whole summer.
- 3. С такими сочетаниями как at five o'clock yesterday, the whole day yesterday, from five till six yesterday, when I came home. Например, I was cooking dinner from five till six yesterday. My mom was talking on the phone with her friend from the USA when I came home yesterday.

| Утвердительные     | Вопросительные     | Отрицательные          |
|--------------------|--------------------|------------------------|
| предложения        | предложения        | предложения            |
| I was working.     | Was I working?     | I was not working.     |
| You were working.  | Were you working?  | You were not working.  |
| He was working.    | Was he working?    | He was not working.    |
| She was working.   | Was she working?   | She was not working.   |
| It was working.    | Was it working?    | It was not working.    |
| We were working.   | Were we working?   | We were not working.   |
| They were working. | Were they working? | They were not working. |
|                    |                    |                        |

#### 3. Past Perfect Tense

Past Perfect tense образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола

had и третей формы глагола. Глаголы бывают правильными и неправильными. Правильные образуют третью форму при помощи добавления окончания -ed. Неправильные образуют третью форму индивидуально (смотри таблицу).

В вопросительной форме вспомогательный глагол had ставят перед подлежащим. Например, Had she laid the table before mother came home? Had he explained everything before the director made his decision?

В отрицательной форме к вспомогательному глаголу had добавляют частицу not. Например, We hadn't prepared our reports by the end of the month. She had not told the truth before we saw the consequences.

#### Past Perfect Tense употребляется:

- 1. Для выражения действия, которое совершилось до определенного момента в прошлом. Например, We had already crossed the park when a heavy rain began. We finally received the presents which he had sent to us.
- 2. С выражениями by five o`clock yesterday, by Saturday, by the 15-th of December, by the end of the year, by that time. Например, I had finished by that time. She had already passed all her exams by the end of May.

| Утвердительные   | Вопросительные   | Отрицательные       |
|------------------|------------------|---------------------|
| предложения      | предложения      | предложения         |
| I had worked.    | Had I worked?    | I had not worked.   |
| You had worked.  | Had you worked?  | You had not worked. |
| He had worked.   | Had he worked?   | He had not worked.  |
| She had worked.  | Had she worked?  | She had not worked. |
| It had worked.   | Had it worked?   | It had not worked.  |
| We had worked.   | Had we worked?   | We had not worked.  |
| They had worked. | Had they worked? | They had not        |
| •                | •                | worked.             |

#### 4. Past Perfect Continuous

Past Perfect Continuous образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола to be в форме Past Perfect (had been) и смыслового глагола с окончанием –ing. Например, She had been studying English for five years

before she went to the USA for the first time.

В вопросительной форме вспомогательный глагол ставят перед подлежащим. Например, Had you made a new birdhouse before winter came? Had he seen Nelly before she left for Moscow?

В отрицательной форме к вспомогательному глаголу had добавляют частицу not. Например, I had not seen such beautiful cities before I went to Prague last year. We had never retold the texts before our new teacher made us.

#### Past Perfect Continuous употребляется:

- 1. Для выражения действия, которое началось до момента говорения в прошлом и на этот момент все еще продолжалось. Например, He said that he had been waiting for me for half an hour. She had been working for two hours before her brother came.
- 2. Для выражения действия, которое началось до момента говорения в прошлом и на момент говорения закончилось. Например, Her eyes were red and everybody understood that she had been crying.
- 3. С такими выражениями как for two hours, for three months, for a long time. Например, He said that he had been playing football for three hours already.

| Утвердительные         |
|------------------------|
| предложения            |
| I had been working.    |
| You had been working.  |
| He had been working.   |
| She had been working.  |
| It had been working.   |
| We had been working.   |
| They had been working. |

| Вопросительные         |
|------------------------|
| предложения            |
| Had I been working?    |
| Had you been working?  |
| Had he been working?   |
| Had she been working?  |
| Had it been working?   |
| Had we been working?   |
| Had they been working? |
|                        |

| Отрицательные            |         |        |       |  |  |
|--------------------------|---------|--------|-------|--|--|
| предл                    | ожени   | R      |       |  |  |
| I had                    | not bee | n work | ting. |  |  |
| You                      | had     | not    | been  |  |  |
| worki                    | ng.     |        |       |  |  |
| He                       | had     | not    | been  |  |  |
| worki                    | ng.     |        |       |  |  |
| She                      | had     | not    | been  |  |  |
| working.                 |         |        |       |  |  |
| It had not been working. |         |        |       |  |  |
| We                       | had     | not    | been  |  |  |
| working.                 |         |        |       |  |  |
| They                     | had     | not    | been  |  |  |
| working.                 |         |        |       |  |  |

- 1. By eight o'clock yesterday I (to watch) the film and at eight I (to write) the essay on it.
- 2. By six o'clock father (to come) home and at six he (to help) me to do my homework.
  - 3. Sally (to type) this text for 3 hours before Mark (to come).
- 4. By nine o'clock yesterday grandmother (to wash) the dishes and at nine she (to watch) TV.
- 5. When I (to meet) Mary, she (to drink) coffee which she (to buy) at the Burger King
- 6. Anthony (to wait) for the airplane for 3 hours when they (to announce) it's delay.
- 7. When father (to come) home, we (to play) Monopoly which we (to buy) the day before.
- 8. When I (to come) to Ann, she (to sort) the photos which she (to take) during her vacation.
- 9. Rita (to train) for a year and she very (to be fit) when her ex-boyfriend (to meet) her.
- 10. When I (to come) home yesterday, I (to see) that my little brother (to do) his homework and (to play) with his toys.
- 11. Margaret (not to wear) her shoes; she (to be) barefoot. She (to step) on a piece of broken glass and (to cut) her foot.
- 12. When I (to open) the door of the classroom, I (to see) that the teacher already (to explain) the rule and the pupils (to write) the exercises.
- 13. When I (to come) home, my sister (to read) a book which she (to bring) from the library.
- 14. He (to feel) ill for three days, so his mother (to want) to bring him to a doctor, but he (not to want) to go.
- 15. When mother (to come) home, the children (to eat) the pie which she (to bake) in the morning.
- 16. It (to rain) when I (leave) my house in the evening, so I (to decide) to go for a walk.
- 17. When I (to ring) up Mike, he still (to write) the essay which he (to begin) writing the day before.
- 18. When Jane (to come) home, Martin very (to be) tired and he (o watch) TV, because he (to work) hard all day.
- 19. When I (to look) out of the window, the children (to play) with toy cars which they (to bring) from home.

- 20. Yesterday we (to play) for two hours when Tom (to arrive) to home.
- 21. Last Sunday we (to go) skiing in the country. The weather (to be) fantastic. We (to return) home late. But we (to be) very happy.
- 22. When I (to go) to the university yesterday, I (to meet) my groupmates. They (to discuss) something. Then they (to tell) this story to me too.
- 23. By six o'clock the children (to come) home and at seven they (to sit) at the table and (to eat) a cake which their mother had bought in their favorite bakery.
- 24. Mark even (not to realize) what a hard time Sara (to have) because her mother (to be ill) since she (to return) from her business trip.
- 25. Yesterday I (to come) up to the open window. Children (to play) with the ball, senior citizens (to sit) on the bench and (to discuss) the latest news, people (to hurry) somewhere.

- 1. Я ждала его в филармонии уже 40 минут, когда он наконец пришел.
- 2. Когда они пришли на вечеринку, половина гостей все еще танцевала, а половина разошлась по домам.
- 3. Оля не сообщила мне, что в прошлый вторник она виделась с моим братом, который недавно пришел из армии.
- 4. Оказалось, она работала уже четыре часа, прежде чем начальник ее заметил и решил выписать премию.
- 5. Майк уже научился читать и писать, когда ему исполнилось 5 лет, а стихи начал рассказывать, будучи 7 летним.
- 6. Девушка была вся мокрой, потому что она плавала около 2 часов в бассейне, так как готовилась к соревнованиям.
- 7. К концу года народ избрал нового президента, так как старый воровал деньги из государственного бюджета.
- 8. Алекс позвонил мне, когда я гладила его рубашку. Он хотел напомнить мне об этом.
- 9. Были все основания считать его виновным в убийстве, которое кто-то совершил прошлым летом.
- 10. В последнее десятилетие изменилась политическая атмосфера во всем мире, во многих странах начались важные реформы.
  - 11. Действительно ли мы подошли к концу истории?
- 12. То, что данная ситуация не сломила его, свидетельствовало об его способности к выживанию при любых условиях.

- 13. За последние пятнадцать лет в этой стране произошло много изменений в политической и в экономической сферах.
- 14. После окончания Второй мировой войны мало кто решался предсказать, что к началу XXI СССР уже исчезнет с карты мира.
- 15. Эмигранты сообщили, что большинство населения в их стране уже отказались от следования курсу, предложенному их правительством.
- 16. В конце прошлого года вышла в свет новая книга, в которой этот ученый обещал представить неопровержимые факты, которые свидетельствовали о правильности его суждений.
- 17. Центробанк взял ответственность на себя за дефолт, который произошел в 90х.
- 18. Вчера было 28 февраля, а это значит, что зима наконец-то закончилась.
- 19. Когда создалось впечатление, что мы победили, мы нашли ответ на вопрос, кем мы были и что мы делали раньше.
- 20. Так как мы поняли, как этому мыслителю хватило дерзости утверждать, что история закончилась, следовало все-таки уяснить связь его идей с ранее созданными философскими концепциями.
- 21. Нет ни одной цивилизации, которая бы зародилась и развилась без политической самостоятельности.
- 22. Глава Соединенных Штатов обеспечил безопасность всем участникам встречи и провел совещание представителей двух стран.
- 23. Серьезные неопределенности, которые существовали между двумя этими странами на протяжении многих лет, наконец, были улажены.
- 24. Президент подчеркнул необходимость вступления его страны в международную систему безопасности, поскольку в то время ни одна страна не могла обеспечить безопасность в одиночку.
- 25. Подход этой страны к мирному урегулированию конфликта удивил представителей всех стран.

#### 7. The Active Voice: Future Tenses.

#### 1. Future Indefinite

Future Indefinite Tense образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола will и первой формы глагола. Например, We hope we will go abroad next summer. I will tell you the truth as soon as I know it.

В вопросительной форме вспомогательный глагол will ставят перед подлежащим. Например, Will you go to the hospital? Will I see you again?

В отрицательной форме к вспомогательному глаголу will добавляют частицу not. Например, I will not read this book. She will not speak to him ever again!

#### Future Indefinite употребляется:

- 1. Для обозначения однократного действия в будущем или последовательности действий в будущем. Например ,She will spend a month in the USA. Tomorrow he will wake up and go to the university.
- 2. С сочетаниями next week\month\year, tomorrow. Например, I will see my nephew tomorrow.

| Утвердительные  | Вопросительные  | Отрицательные       |
|-----------------|-----------------|---------------------|
| предложения     | предложения     | предложения         |
| I will work.    | Will I work?    | I will not work.    |
| You will work.  | Will you work?  | You will not work.  |
| He will work.   | Will he work?   | He will not work.   |
| She will work.  | Will she work?  | She will not work.  |
| It will work.   | Will it work?   | It will not work.   |
| We will work.   | Will we work?   | We will not work.   |
| They will work. | Will they work? | They will not work. |

#### 2. Future Continuous Tense

Future Continuous Tense образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола will и смыслового глагола в форме be Ving. Например, He will be repairing his car at six o'clock tomorrow.

В вопросительной форме вспомогательный глагол will ставят перед подлежащим. Например, Will she be ironing her dress at five o'clock tomorrow?

В отрицательной форме к вспомогательному глаголу will добавляют частицу not. Например, We will not be discussing this problem the whole day

tomorrow.

Future Continuous Tense употребляется:

- 1. для обозначения действия в процессе в определенный момент в будущем. Например, You will not see her tomorrow because she will be flying to Moscow at this time.
- 2. Для обозначения длительного действия в будущем, которое будет совершаться на определенном отрезке времени. Например, I will be prepairing for my English exam in December.
- 3. С такими выражениями как at 6 o'clock tomorrow, the whole day tomorrow, from 5 till six tomorrow. Например, I will be having dinner with my friends at two o'clock tomorrow.

Утвердительные предложения I will be working. You will be working. He will be working. She will be working. It will be working. We will be working. They will be working.

Вопросительные предложения
Will I be working?
Will you be working?
Will he be working?
Will she be working?
Will it be working?
Will we be working?
Will they be working?

Отрицательные предложения I will not be working. You will not be working. He will not be working. She will not be working. It will not be working. We will not be working. They will not be working.

#### 3. Future Perfect Tense

Future Perfect Tense образуется при помощи вспомогательного глагола will и смыслового глагола в форме have V(3). Например, I will have graduate from the university by that time.

В вопросительной форме вспомогательный глагол will ставят перед подлежащим. Например, Will you have finished that book by next year?

В отрицательной форме к вспомогательному глаголу will добавляем частицу not. Например, We will not have seen all the sightseeings by that time.

Future Perfect Tense употребляется:

- 1. для выражения действия, которое завершится к определенному моменту в будущем. Например, I will have already translated one hundred pages by that time.
- 2. Употребляется с такими выражениями как by five o'clock tomorrow, by Saturday, by the 6-th of May, by the end of the year, by that time. Например, They will have already moved to another flat by that time.

| Утвер     | дителы  | ные    | Вопро       | ситель | ельные Отрицательные |                    |  |
|-----------|---------|--------|-------------|--------|----------------------|--------------------|--|
| предложен | кин     |        | предложения |        |                      | предложения        |  |
| I will    | have wo | rked.  | Will I      | have w | orked?               | I will not have    |  |
| You       | will    | have   | Will        | you    | have                 | worked.            |  |
| worked.   |         |        | worked?     |        |                      | You will not have  |  |
| He        | will    | have   | Will        | he     | have                 | worked.            |  |
| worked.   |         |        | worked?     |        |                      | He will not have   |  |
| She       | will    | have   | Will        | she    | have                 | worked.            |  |
| worked.   |         |        | worked?     |        |                      | She will not have  |  |
| It will   | have we | orked. | Will        | it     | have                 | worked.            |  |
| We        | will    | have   | worked?     |        |                      | We will not have   |  |
| worked.   |         |        | Will        | we     | have                 | worked.            |  |
| They      | will    | have   | worked?     |        |                      | They will not have |  |
| worked.   |         |        | Will        | they   | have                 | worked.            |  |
|           |         |        | worked?     |        |                      |                    |  |

- 1. I (to leave) my family at eight o'clock tomorrow
- 2. I (to phone ) you tomorrow
- 3. She (to finish) cooking dinner by the time he comes and they (to have) dinner together and (to discuss) their future plans the whole evening.
  - 4. Alex (to read) this book next month
- 5. Dasha (not to prepare) lunch tomorrow she (to buy) everything in the shop as she (not to have) time.
  - 6. I (to be) sure they (to complete) this work by September.
  - 7. What your sister (to do) next week?
- 8. Ann (to take) a taxi to the station because her luggage (to be) very heavy.
- 9. Don't come to my place tomorrow I ( to do) my homework the whole day tomorrow

- 10. I (to hope) it (to stop) snowing by that time.
- 11. Masha (not to bake) a pie at seven o'clock she (to finish) cooking by that time.
  - 12. Your jeans (to be) ready in twenty minutes.
  - 13. Children (to play) in football at 9 a.m. tomorrow morning.
  - 14. My sister (to work) all day next Sunday.
- 15. At eight o'clock tomorrow I (to fly) to Italy and (not to think) about my work.
  - 16. I (to pass) by this hostel tomorrow.
  - 17. Don't come to me at 10. I (to fall) asleep already.
  - 18. She (to travel) again the summer.
  - 19. When you (to come) to me next time?
  - 20. At what time you (to start) doing your homework?

- 1. Таня будет ждать тебя около входа в школу.
- 2. Ты позвонишь вечером?
- 3. Ты будешь занята в субботу вечером?
- 4. Программа закончится к этому времени, и мы пойдем вместе гулять.
  - 5. Что Джон будет делать в университете?
  - 6. Профессор не будет читать лекции в сентябре.
- 7. Ты будешь проходить завтра мимо аптеки? Можешь купить мне лекарства?
  - 8. Ты закончишь к этому времени?
  - 9. В это время в следующем году ты будешь путешествовать?
  - 10. Поторопитесь. Через минуту начнётся дождь.
  - 11. Я надеюсь, ты сходишь к врачу.
  - 12. Я встречусь с ним на следующей неделе и обсужу этот вопрос.
  - 13. Я не буду работать и смогу встретиться с тобой.
  - 14. Анна никуда не пойдет. Мама не отпустит ее.
- 15. В это время в следующем году я больше не буду вести собственный бизнес.
  - 16. Катя не будет обсуждать с ним его проблемы весь день.

| 1. Put the following sentences into the correct tense: Simple Past, Simple |
|--|
| Present, Present Continuous or Past Continuous, Present Perfect.           |
| 1. I (listen) to the radio while Kate (cook) dinner.                       |
| 2. You (buy) this book last week?  |
| 3. Last Friday Emma (go) home early because she                            |
| (want) to see a TV series.   |
| 4. When your sister usually (get) home in the evening?                     |
| 5. Tom always (bring) us a nice present.                                   |
| 6. What those people (do) in the middle of the road?                       |
| 7. You (read) this book?   |
| 8. While Frank (sleep), Janett (watch) TV.                                 |
| 9. When I (be) young, I (think)  |
| Natali (be) nice — but now I (think) she's fantastic.                      |
| 10. Raichel (walk) home when she (see) her                                 |
| husband's car outside the cinema   |
| 11. Look there! Ann and Frank (run) to school.                             |
| 12. Jack's father (not work) in London — he                                |
| (not speak) English.   |
| 13. Roberto (buy) a car yesterday.   |
| 14. Their father often (go) to rock concerts.                              |
| 15. While you (sleep), mother (arrive).                                    |
|  |

## Underline the right time

- 1. I am writing in connection with the advertisement which appeared / has appeared on 12 April.
  - 2. I originally studied/ have studied chemistry at university.
  - 3. I graduated / have been graduating with a first-class degree.
- 4. I now completed / have now completed a postgraduate degree in administration.
- 5. I've been trying / I've tried to find a permanent job for a considerable time.
- 6. Indeed, I have already worked /I have already been working for several companies on a temporary basis.
- 7. In my first job, I was / have been responsible for marketing, I've been applying / have applied for several posts this year but I did not manage / have not managed to find what I'm looking for.
  - 8. The last job I applied / have applied for required applicants to speak

some Japanese, I started learning / have been learning Spanish a few months ago I did not obtain / have not obtained a qualification in it yet.

- 9. I did not apply / have not applied for a job with your company before.
- 10. I hoped / have hoped that you would consider my application favorably.
- 11. However, I have been waiting/ have waited for a reply for weeks and I still have not received / did not receive any answer.

#### Translate from Russian into English

- 1. Теперь деятельность нашей компании не быстро меняется.
- 2. Елизавета отправила Кате много разных писем. Но, ни одно из них не дошло.
- 3. Мне очень нравится твой двоюродный брат. Он всегда думает об окружающих.
- 4. Мать Евгении выглядит очень старо для своего возраста. Никто не верит, что ей сейчас сорок.
- 5. Жанет постоянно катается на лыжах этой зимой. Она хочет интенсивнее заниматься катанием на лыжах, чтобы усовершенствовать свои навыки.
- 6. Что ты сотворил со своим домашним питомцем? Он выглядит таким измождённым.
  - 7. Её платье выглядит, как новое, хотя она носила его четыре года.
- 8. У Майкла много друзей, но он не пригласил их на свой день рождения.
- 9. Сосед Аннет руководитель проекта. Его технические советы всегда важны и полезны для его коллег.
- 10. Кейт только что заполнила анкету на получение новой работы и ждала соответствующего ответа от той компании.
- 11. Аня не видела свою двоюродную сестру с месяц, с тех пор как она начала там работать.
- 12. Как долго ты уже оказываешь поддержку Саре? Но я ее вообще не знаю...
  - 13. Он написал довольно много книг.
  - 14. Я не могу идти"с вами сегодня в театр. У меня так много работы.
  - 15. В нашей библиотеке мало испанских книг.
  - 16. В электричке было слишком много народа.
  - 17. В стакане было мало воды, и он налил себе немного.

- 18. Мало кто понимает его немецкий язык. У него слишком много ошибок.
  - 19. В прошлом году было построено мало новых детских садов.
  - 20. Премьер-министр сказал журналистам лишь несколько слов.
- 21. Я встречал мало хороших врачей в своей жизни. Но доктор Стэтхем, наш врач, дает нам массу полезных советов.
  - 22. Можно мне немного кофе? Нет, он слишком крепкий для тебя.
  - 23. Мне кажется, что ты положила слишком много соли в суп.
  - 24. Чтобы построить больницу, необходима крупная сумма денег.
  - 25. Он понял лишь несколько слов.

#### 8. The Passive Voice: Present Tenses

Если подлежащее само выполняет действие, то глагол употребляется залога(Active Voice). действительного Если форме употребляется над подлежащим, то глагол выполняется форме залога(Passive Времена Voice). страдательного залога пассивного вспомогательного be образуются при помощи глагола to В и формы причастия прошедшего времени соответствующем времени смыслового глагола. В отличии от активного залога, в пассивном существуют все формы группы Indefinite и группы Perfect и только две формы группы Continuous. Отсутствуют времена группы Continuous. В вопросительной форме вспомогательный глагол ставят перед подлежащим, как и в активном залоге. В отрицательной форме к вспомогательному глаголу добавляют частицу not. Случаи употребления совпадают со случаями употребления аналогичных видовременных форм активного залога.

#### 1. Present Indefinite

| Утвердительные | Вопросительные | Отрицательные |
|----------------|----------------|---------------|
| предложения    | предложения    | предложения   |

I am sent for. Am I sent for? I am not sent for. You are sent for. Are you sent for? He is not sent for. He is sent for. Is he sent for? She is not sent for. She is sent for. Is she sent for? It is not sent for. It is sent for. Is it sent for? We are not sent for. We are sent for. Are we sent for? They are not sent They are sent for. Are they sent for? for.

#### 2. Present Continuous

| Утвердительные                              | Вопросительные   | Отрицательные                                     |
|---|--|---|
| предложения                                 | предложения  | предложения                                       |
| I am being sent for.                        | Am I being sent  | I am not being sent                               |
| You are being sent                          | for?   | for.  |
| for.  | Are you being sent   | You are not being                                 |
| He is being sent for.                       | for?   | sent for.   |
| She is being sent                           | Is he being sent for?  | He is not being sent                              |
| for.  | Is she being sent  | for.  |
|   |  |   |
| It is being sent for.                       | for?   | She is not being sent                             |
| •   | for? Is it being sent for?                                       | <b>U</b>  |
| •   | Is it being sent for?  | <b>U</b>  |
| We are being sent                           | Is it being sent for? Are we being sent                          | for.  |
| We are being sent for.                      | Is it being sent for? Are we being sent for?                     | for.  It is not being sent                        |
| We are being sent for.  They are being sent | Is it being sent for? Are we being sent for?                     | for.  It is not being sent for.                   |
| We are being sent for.  They are being sent | Is it being sent for? Are we being sent for? Are they being sent | for.  It is not being sent for.  We are not being |

#### 3. **Present Perfect**

| Утвердительные | Вопросительные | Отрицательные |
|----------------|----------------|---------------|
| предложения    | предложения    | предложения   |

I have been sent for. Have I been sent I have not been sent for. You have been sent for? for. Have you been sent You have not been sent for. He has been sent for? for. Has he been sent He has not been sent She has been sent for? for. for. She has not been Has she been sent sent for. for? It has been sent for. We have been sent Has it been sent for? It has not been sent for. Have we been sent for. We have not been They have been sent for? for. Have they been sent sent for. for? They have not been sent for.

- 1. The postbox (to empty) every day.
- 2. The letters (to sort) into the different streets.
- 3. The mailbags (to unload) after their journey.
- 4. The house (to destroy) by Jack this year.
- 5. The book (to read) now.
- 6. This equipment (to make) by the factory.
- 7. The new town hall (to build) in our town by the company.
- 8. The celling (to whitewash), and now it looks as a new one.
- 9. The picture (to paint) lately by Mike.
- 10. This 19th century country residence (to enlarge) and completely (to modernize) this year.
  - 11. While a current is flowing through a wire, the latter (to heat).
  - 12. The bedrooms (to furnish) already.
  - 13. The dinner (to pay) for.
  - 14. A lot of letters (to write) every day.
  - 15. I will have a cup of coffee while my car (to clean).
  - 16. Such songs (to sing) usually by them in class.
  - 17. (to check up) your report by the manager?
  - 18. The room (to clean) at the moment.
  - 19. The window (to break) today.
  - 20. Jim's bag (to steal).

- 21. Several houses (to destroy) by the earthquake.
- 22. You (to serve) madam?
- 23. You (to bite) ever by a dog?
- 24. I am not going to Peter's party as I (not to invite).
- 25. The work just (to finish).

- 1. Меня всегда хвалят дома.
- 2. Ему каждый день показывают что-то интересное.
- 3. Ее часто посылают на почту.
- 4. Эту книгу очень часто спрашивают.
- 5. Я спросил, что строится на этой улице.
- 6. В библиотеке предлагают много интересных книг.
- 7. Вопрос, который сейчас обсуждают, очень важен.
- 8. Его только что отвезли в больницу.
- 9. Ты знаешь, что в теннис играют уже больше 100 лет?
- 10. Он знает, что за ним наблюдают.
- 11. Его пригласили на вечеринку Катиных друзей.
- 12. Ей никогда не говорили, что она красивая.
- 13. Это крыльцо покрасили свежей краской.
- 14. Пицца была съедена Ником только что.
- 15. Адрес пишут карандашом.
- 16. Я только что купил газету.
- 17. Слова только что написали на доске
- 18. Анне часто задают вопросы.
- 19. Мотоцикл ремонтируется в гараже.
- 20. Чай был пролит на стол.
- 21. Эта проблема обсуждается сейчас.
- 22. Правило объясняется преподавателем.
- 23. Меня часто приглашают на вечеринки.
- 24. Дверь была заперта.
- 25. Письма пишутся нами очень часто.

#### 9. The Passive Voice: Past Tenses

#### 1. Past Indefinite

Утвердительные Вопросительные Отрицательные предложения предложения предложения I was sent for. Was I sent for? I was not sent for. Were you sent for? You were sent for. You were not sent Was he sent for? He was sent for. for. She was sent for. Was she sent for? He was not sent for. It was sent for. Was it sent for? She was not sent for. It was not sent for. We were sent for. Were we sent for? They were sent for. Were they sent for? We were not sent for. They were not sent for.

#### 2. Past Continuous

| Утвердительные        | Вопросительные                | Отрицательные         |
|-----------------------|-------------------------------|-----------------------|
| предложения           | предложения                   | предложения           |
| I was being sent for. | Was I being sent I was not be |                       |
| You were being sent   | for?                          | for.                  |
| for.                  | Were you being                | You were not being    |
| He was being sent     | sent for?                     | sent for.             |
| for.                  | Was he being sent             | He was not being      |
| She was being sent    | for?                          | sent for.             |
| for.                  | Was she being sent            | She was not being     |
| It was being sent     | for?                          | sent for.             |
| for.                  | Was it being sent             | It was not being sent |
| We were being sent    | for?                          | for.                  |
| for.                  | Were we being sent            | We were not being     |
| They were being       | for?                          | sent for.             |
| sent for.             | Were they being               | They were not being   |
|                       | sent for?                     | sent for.             |

#### 3. Past Perfect

| Утвердительные | Вопросительные | Отрицательные |
|----------------|----------------|---------------|
| предложения    | предложения    | предложения   |

I had been sent for. Had I been sent for? I had not been sent You had been sent Had you been sent for. for. for? You had not been He had been sent Had he been sent sent for. for. for? He had not been sent She had been sent Had she been sent for. for. for? She had not been It had been sent for. Had it been sent sent for. We had been sent for? It had not been sent for. Had we been sent for. We had not been They had been sent for? Had they been sent sent for. for. for? They had not been sent for.

- 1. The article (to translate) by me.
- 2. The snow (to put) away by the caretaker.
- 3. She (to show) the way to the newly built stadium.
- 4. My question (to answer) three days ago.
- 5. A special task (to give) to him yesterday.
- 6. The article (to translate) into five languages and (to sell) all around the world.
- 7. This unique flower (to plant) in the botanic garden located in our city.
  - 8. I (to advice) to join a sports club.
  - 9. His mistake (to correct) by the teacher immediately.
  - 10. The note (to write) at two o'clock yesterday.
  - 11. A guest (to expect) by him last night.
  - 12. The newest movies (to watch) by them at three o'clock.
  - 13. What did your friend feel when this song (to play)?
  - 14. She asked what (to built) in that street.
  - 15. The teacher (to listen to) very attentively.
  - 16. When he entered the office, the last employee (to examine) there.
  - 17. The boy knew he (to watch).
  - 18. He asked the woman why the note (to write) in pencil.
  - 19. The theme (to discuss) when we heard a fire siren.

- 20. When her article (to translate) to him he was shocked.
- 21. When the dishes (to put) on the tables the guests (to call) to have a dinner.
  - 22. When he arrived the letter (to send).
  - 23. She wondered why the excursion (to conduct) without a guide.
  - 24. The letter (to write) by him before you came.
- 25. The article which (to translate) by the famous scientist (to release) by the publishing house.

### **Translate into English**

- 1. Эта статья была выпущена месяц назад.
- 2. Им предложили посмотреть несколько интересных фильмов.
- 3. Когда была напечатана эта статья?
- 4. Где был построен новый офис?
- 5. После презентации новой книги ему задали много вопросов.
- 6. Комната не была украшена к празднику.
- 7. Ему дали два дня, чтобы написать речь.
- 8. Это письмо было написано карандашом.
- 9. Приглашение не было принято несколькими гостями.
- 10. Он знал, что его слушали с большим вниманием.
- 11. Что рассказывали классу, когда вы вошли в кабинет?
- 12. Когда я приехал, в комнате как раз убирали.
- 13. Когда ты мне позвонил, мне как раз задавали вопрос.
- 14. Когда я в последний раз была в родном городе, мой новый дом ремонтировался.
  - 15. Когда Маша болела, ее обучали дома.
  - 16. Он внезапно понял, что на него смотрят.
  - 17. Книгу читали, когда они пришли.
  - 18. Книга была прочитана к двум часам.
  - 19. К вечеру все вещи были собраны.
  - 20. Письмо было написано к пяти часам вчера.
- 21. Он стоял у камина, держа в руках записку, которую только что принесли.
- 22. Он решил стать режиссёром, только когда его первый фильм вышел в прокат.
  - 23. Письмо было принесено секретарем к трем часам.
  - 24. Когда мы пришли домой, ужин был ещё не готов.

# 25. Было ли письмо написано к тому времени, когда папа вернулся домой?

## 10. The Passive Voise: Future Tenses

## 1. Future Simple

| Утвердительные         | Вопросительные          | Отрицательные                  |  |
|------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------------|--|
| предложения            | предложения предложения |                                |  |
| I will be sent for.    | Will I be sent for?     | I will not be sent for.        |  |
| You will be sent for.  | Will you be sent for?   | You will not be sent for.      |  |
| He will be sent for.   | Will he be sent for?    | He will not be sent for.       |  |
| She will be sent for.  | Will she be sent for?   | for? She will not be sent for. |  |
| It will be sent for.   | Will it be sent for?    | It will not be sent for.       |  |
| We will be sent for.   | Will we be sent for?    | We will not be sent for.       |  |
| They will be sent for. | Will they be sent for?  | They will not be sent for.     |  |

### 2. Future Perfect

| Утвердительные              | Вопросительные           | Отрицательные                     |  |
|-----------------------------|--------------------------|-----------------------------------|--|
| предложения                 | предложения              | предложения                       |  |
| I will have been sent for.  | Will I have been sent    | I will not have been sent         |  |
| You will have been sent     | for? for.                |                                   |  |
| for.                        | Will you have been sent  | You will not have been            |  |
| He will have been sent      | for?                     | sent for.                         |  |
| for.                        | Will he have been sent   | He will not have been             |  |
| She will have been sent     | for?                     | sent for.                         |  |
| for.                        | Will she have been sent  | She will not have been            |  |
| It will have been sent for. | for?                     | sent for.                         |  |
| We will have been sent      | Will it have been sent   | It will not have been sent        |  |
| for.                        | for?                     | for.                              |  |
| They will have been sent    | Will we have been sent   | We will not have been             |  |
| for.                        | for?                     | sent for. They will not have been |  |
|                             | Will they have been sent |                                   |  |
|                             | for?                     | sent for.                         |  |

- 1. The postbox (to empty) tomorrow.
- 2. The letters (to sort) into the different streets.
- 3. The bags (to take) to the post office.
- 4. Her new book (to finish) next year.
- 5. The documents (not to prepare).
- 6. Our house (to sell) [by us].
- 7. The drinks (to order) by Frank.
- 8. Nick (to send) to Moscow next week.
- 9. The project (to complete) before the deadline.
- 10. The bags (to take) to the post office.
- 11. The new mobile device (to produce)?
- 12. This you (to tell) never.
- 13. The text (to translate) into Russian.
- 14. The mail (to load) into the train.
- 15. The article (to write) next Monday.
- 16. The writing of the new book (to start) tomorrow.
- 17. The mailbags (to unload) after their journey.
- 18. The article (to write) for 2 days by tomorrow.
- 19. The book (not to read) until next month.
- 20. I think the game (finish) by the time when he comes.
- 21. The book (to read) by Sunday.
- 22. The article (to translate) by noon.
- 23. The contract (not to sign).
- 24. We (to be marry) for 10 years by that time.
- 25. The composition (to write) by 5 o'clock tomorrow.

- 1. Завтра принесут новый фильм.
- 2. Маму угостят чашечкой кофе.
- 3. К первому июля последний экзамен будет вами сдан.
- 4. Этот дом будет построен к концу месяца следующего года.
- 5. Работа не будет закончена к воскресенью.
- 6. Это здание будет снесено в следующем месяце.
- 7. Я буду приглашён туда?
- 8. Эксперты говорят, что к 2050 г. средство излечения от рака будет найдено.
  - 9. Фильм будет выпущен через месяц.

- 10. К моменту начала судебного заседания, все документы будут просмотрены.
  - 11. Когда письмо будет отправлено?
  - Ей пришлют пригласительный билет.
  - 12. Дом будет построен в следующем году.
  - 13. Его будут слушать с большим вниманием.
- 14. К этому времени завтра ваша телефонная связь будет полностью восстановлена.
  - 15. Будет ли все приготовлено к 5 часам?
  - 16. Ущерб, причиненный огнём, будет устранен к концу недели.
  - 17. Машину отремонтируют завтра.
  - 18. Новый отель будет построен в следующем году?
  - 19. У него спросят этот вопрос до конца урока.
  - 20. Статья будет переведена к шести часам.
  - 21. Когда будет сделана эта работа?
  - 22. Книга будет прочитана завтра.
  - 23. Завтра, к этому времени, соглашение будет подписано.
- 24. Когда ты приедешь в следующем месяце, строительство дороги будет уже закончено.

- 1. All the texts (to look) through yesterday and not a single mistake (to find).
  - 2. His car (to steal) last night.
  - 3. Cheese (to make) from milk.
  - 4. Two reports on Hemingway's stories (to make) in our group next week
  - 5. The dog (to give) some food in ten minutes.
  - 6. The telegram (to receive) last week.
  - 7. These televisions (to make) in Japan.
  - 8. I am sure I (to ask) at the lesson tomorrow.
  - 9. He (to give) a lot of money last month.
  - 10. All the students (to invite) to the party next week
  - 11. I (to allow) to go for a walk now
  - 12. This man (to arrest) last year
  - 13. My question (to answer) soon
- 14. The newspaper said that an interesting exhibition (to open) in the Hermitage the next week.

- 15. Her book (to finish) this month.
- 16. He said that Grandmother's letter (to receive) the day later.
- 17. The article (to translate) in three days.
- 18. Furniture (to make) from wood and plastic.
- 19. The news (to announce) tomorrow.
- 20. The patient (to take) to hospital last Friday.
- 21. The pupils (to explain) a new rule at the next lesson.
- 22. He (to appoint) a new manager.
- 23. He said that Grandmother's letter (to receive) the day later.
- 24. Dictations (to write) every day.
- 25. This newspaper (to sell) everywhere.

- 1. Этот вор был пойман ночью.
- 2. На этой фабрике делают очень красивую ткань
- 3. Письма туда можно посылать только летом, а телеграммы круглый год.
  - 4. Мою подругу каждый год посылают в лагерь
  - 5. Её отправили в гастроли пару недель назад
  - 6. Вчера нас послали на почту за посылкой
  - 7. Этот был написан несколько десятилетий назад.
  - 8. Цветы доставили поздно вечером, и она их не увидела.
  - 9. Эту книгу должна прочитать вся группа до экзамена
  - 10. Это упражнение должно быть написано карандашом.
  - 11. Все ваши сочинения будут опубликованы в школьной газете.
  - 12. Это письмо можно написать на два листа.
  - 13. Нам показали очень странную скульптуру.
  - 14. Тебя ищут. Иди домой.
  - 15. Нам всем дали билеты в театр.
  - 16. Лекции этого бизнесмена всегда слушают с большим вниманием.
  - 17. Меня ждут?
  - 18. Им задали решить три трудные проблемы
  - 19. За обедом уже послали. Подождите немного.
  - 20. Всех пригласили посетить выставку современного искусства
  - 21. Эти статьи просмотрены. Их можно добавить в журнал
  - 22. В аэропорту их встретил коллега и отвез в офис.
  - 23. Эти книги должны быть возвращены преподавателю завтра.

- 24. На наших занятиях много внимания проблемам современного образования
- 25. Иванову велели объяснить, почему он считает свою точку зрения верной.

## 11. Reported Speech. Sequence of tenses. The Future in the Past

В английском языке время глагола в придаточном предложении зависит от времени ,в котором употреблен глагол в главном предложении. Употребление времен в придаточных предложениях подчиняется правилам, которые называются правилами согласования времен (Sequence of tenses):

- 1. если сказуемое главного предложения выражено одной из форм настоящего или будущего времени, то глагол в придаточном предложении употребляется в любом времени, требующемуся по смыслу. Например, He is sure you are busy. He has told me that you are saying the truth. He thinks you did it yesterday.
- 2. если сказуемое главного предложения выражено глаголом одного из прошедших времен, то глагол в придаточном предложении также употребляется в одном из прошедших времен или будущего в прошедшем. Причем, если действие глагола в придаточном предложении происходит одновременно с действием глагола главного предложения, то в придаточном следует употреблять Past Simple или Past Continuous. Если действие глагола в придаточном предложении предшествует действию глагола в главном предложении, то в придаточном следует употреблять Past Perfect. Если действие глагола в придаточном предложении относится к будущему времени, то в придаточном следует употреблять одну из форм будущего в прошедшем. Например:

Masha thought that Pasha was waiting for her in the hotel.

I was sure that he spoke English well.

They understood that the teacher had put them bad marks.

We hoped that they would meet us in the airport.

Речь, произнесенная кем-то, называется прямой речью (Direct speech). Чья-то речь, передаваемая ни слово в слово, а используя придаточные предложения, называется косвенной речью (Inderect or Reported speech). При обращении прямой речи в косвенную, производятся следующие

#### изменения:

- 1. изменяются видовременные формы глаголов в прямой речи: Present Simple на Past Simple, Past Simple на Past Perfect, Present Continuous на Past Continuous, Past Continuous на Past Perfect Continuous, Present Perfect на Past Perfect, Future на Future in the Past.
- 2. заменяютя следующие слова:this-that, these-those, now-then,today-that day, tomorrow-the next day, yesterday- the day before, agj-before, next year- the following year, here-there.
- 3. при обращени в косвенную речь общего вопроса происходят следующие изменения: А) меняется порядок слов из обратного в прямой; В)изменяетя видовременная форма глагола соответственно правилу согласования времен. Вводится при помощи союза IF.
- 4. при обращени в косвенную речь специального вопроса происходят следующие изменения: А) меняется порядок слов из обратного в прямой; В)изменяетя видовременная форма глагола соответственно правилу согласования времен. Вопросительное слово остается на том же месте.
  - 5. повелительное наклонение вводится инфинитивом.

Например:

He said: "I like apples"- He said that he liked apples.

He said: "I was here last year"- He said that he had been there the year before.

He asked: "Do you like apples?" - He asked if I liked apples.

He asked: "Where were you yesterday?" - He asked where I had been the day before.

He said: "Close the door!" - He asked to close the door.

He said: "Don't close the door!" - He asked not to close the door.

## **Change the Direct speech into the Reported speech**

- 1. Robby said, "This film is very comical".
- 2. "I'm starting a new job next week," she said.
- 3. "I got my driver license last week," John told them.
- 4. He said to Mary, "Don't forget to send me an e-mail."
- 5. Fred said, "That's the house where I was born."
- 6. He asked her, "Who is your favorite actor?"
- 7. "Bananas grow in hot countries," the teacher says.
- 8. She asked John, "When are you going to come?"

- 9. "This is a very ancient construction," the tour guide told us.
- 10. She said to me, "Don't shout at me!"
- 11. My brother said to me, "Open the door!"
- 12. "I may be late this evening," Clare said.
- 13. "I've already done my homework," James said to his mother.
- 14. A man asked me, "Do you have a car?"
- 15. "I found your glasses under the sofa," said Sam.
- 16. "I can't call you, I'm doing my work," she said.
- 17. "I've been training hard recently," he told the reporters.
- 18. "Do you want some tea?" said Zack.
- 19. My friend said to us, "Don't come today."
- 20. "Those are the boys who pointed the finger at me," Sally said.
- 21. "I'm going to a party tonight," Lily told her friends.
- 22. Karrie said to me, "Call me tomorrow."

- 1. Я думал, ты опоздаешь.
- 2. Он сказал, что к тому времени он уже будет ехать два часа.
- 3. Салли сказала, что всегда берет с собой в школу свою маленькую сестрёнку.
  - 4. Она надеялась, что сдаст экзамены к началу весны.
  - 5. Мария призналась, что не любит шоколад.
  - 6. Родители думали, что она получит эту работу?
- 7. Он понял, что закончит работу задолго до наступления полночи.
- 8. Он был уверен, что закончит свою диссертацию к понедельнику.
- 9. Паула сказала, что не может читать эту книгу, потому что она ей не нравится.
  - 10. Катя надеялась, что сделает всю работу по дому к пяти часам.
- 11. Хелен крикнула родителям, что они с сестрой готовы выходить.
  - 12. Мои родители написали, что скоро приедут.
  - 13. Джон был уверен, что встретить своего друга на станции.
- 14. Вам сказали, что в декабре мы будем писать контрольную работу?
  - 15. Учитель рассказал, что птицы строят свои гнезда на деревьях.

#### Open the brackets with the correct form of the verb

- 1. He thought he (not to forget) about it.
- 2. Mr. Black said that he (to state) his request again
- 3. She said she (to come back).
- 4. Jerry said he (to finish) the book by noon.
- 5. Nina said she (to write) the letter for 3 hours by the time I came.
- 7. I thought I (to make) mistakes in this test.
- 8. They knew that I (to come) in time.
- 9. He really didn't think they to reach the point so quickly
- 10. We hoped we (to do) our homework by midday.
- 11. He told us he (to work) on the plant for 30 years next December.
- 12. James was afraid he (to come) much too early
- 13. He said he (to go) to the dentist.
- 14. He was planning how he (to sip) cocktail on his vacation.
- 15. He knew that she (to marry) him.
- 16. They hoped they (to live) to together

## 12. Conditional senyences 1,2,3. Mixed conditional

## 1-е условное предложение

Действие всего предложения относится к будущему времени. В главном предложении употребляется Future Indefinite, в придаточных, которые начинаются с if, when, as soon as, till, until, after, before употребляют Present Indefinite. Например, If you give me a dictionary I will translate the article tomorrow. We will go for a walk together tomorrow if you come.

## 2-е условное предложение

Действие всего предложения относится к настоящему времени. В главном предложении употребляется Future in the Past Indefinite, в придаточных, которые начинаются с if, when, as soon as, till, until, after, before употребляют Past Indefinite. Например, If you gave me a dictionary now I would translate the article. We would go for a walk together now if you came.

## 3-е условное предложение.

Действие всего предложения относится к прошедшему времени. Действие всего предложения является абсолютно нереальным, т. е. после каждого предложения можно сказать: но этого не случилось. В главном предложении употребляется Future in the Past Perfect, в придаточных Past Perfect. Например, I would have translated the article yesterday if you had given me a dictionary. We would have gone for a walk together yesterday if you had come.

Наиболее частым является употребление двух смешанных типов:

- 1. Когда условие относится к настоящему, а результат относится к прошлому. Например, If you were wiser you would not have said such words yesterday. If you were not so absent-minded you would not have forgotten to bring me my book.
- 2. Когда условие относится к прошлому, а результат к настоящему. Например, If you had come to the lecture yesterday you would know the material now. If you had seen Nelly yesterday you would know that she is ill.

| 1. If you (to heat)            | iron, it (to start)          | to get red            |
|--------------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------------|
| hot and then white hot.        |                              |                       |
| 2. If Molly and Paul (be)      | misinformed about            | the train times, they |
| (not be) late.                 |                              |                       |
| 3. If I (to have) more time, I | (help) you.                  |                       |
| 4. If we (not go)<br>Alan.     | to your friend's par         | ty, I never (meet)    |
| 5. If train fares (be)         | cheaper, more peopl          | e (use)               |
| them.                          |                              |                       |
| 6. If Molly (get) tha          | t job she's applied for, she | will be delighted. It |
| (be) a disaster if it the exp  | losion had happened in the   | e middle of the day.  |
| 7. If the talks (be broken) _  | down again, t                | here (be) a           |
| war between the two countries  |                              |                       |
| 8. If Ali (know) an            | ything about mechanics at    | that time, I'm sure   |
| she (help) us.                 |                              |                       |
| 9. He (have) a ba              | ad accident last Friday if   | he                    |
| (not / drive) more carefully.  |                              |                       |
| 10. If he (practice) every of  | lay, he (become) a chan      | npion.                |
| 11. She (help) us if we        | (ask).                       |                       |
| 12. If they (have) enough:     | money, they (open) a re      | staurant next year.   |

- 13. I ... (not talk) to you anymore if you ... (insult) me.
- 14. If Bob ... (not keep) his word, Anna ...
- 15. ... (go) to the police if I ... (be) you.
- 16. If people ... (not buy) guns, the world ... (become) safer.
- 17. Tom ... (not eat) much "fast food" if his wife ... (cook) at home.

## Translate from Russian into English using all types of the conditional sentences

- 1. Если бы у меня был отпуск сейчас, я бы поехал на озеро Байкал.
- 2. Я посмотрю этот фильм, если он понравится тебе.
- 3. Если бы ты подписал документы вчера, мы бы отослали их сегодня.
- 4. Если бы Джон не потерял номер телефона, он бы позвонил ей.
- 5. Марк был бы здоровым мужчиной, если бы не курил.
- 6. Если я пойду в магазин, я куплю новый телефон.
- 7. Если я буду жить за городом, я буду купаться каждый день.
- 8. Если я найду свою книгу, я буду очень рад.
- 9. Если бы выучил урок, я бы получил хорошую оценку.
- 10. На твоем месте, я не стал бы покупать это платье.
- 11. Я подвез бы тебя, если бы у меня была машина.
- 12. Если бы ты не забыл зонтик, ты бы не простыл.
- 12. Если бы вы работали усерднее в прошлом году, вы бы теперь хорошо знали английский язык.

## Open the brackets with the correct form of the verb in the mixed conditionals

- 1. If I (not go) on my business trip next week, I (accept) that assignment at work yesterday.
  - 2. If Sam (take) an aspirin, she (have) a headache now
  - 3. If Kate (have) enough money, she (can do) this trip to Hawaii last year.
- 4. If he (take) the medication as prescribed, Anthonyn (be lying) sick in bed.
  - 5. If Molly reasonable precautions, she (be) pregnant now.
- 6. If old Sam (not run) after the car thief and (not suffer) a heart attack, he (be) alive today.
- 7. If he (not be) such a poor dancer, Nickolas (get) a job in that musical last week.

- 8. If Polly (not be) so blind to Jack's faults, she (realize) that Jack was out to swindle her.
  - 9. She (be) a vet if she (like) animals, but she doesn't.
  - 10. If I (study) harder at the University in my youth, I (be) a scientist now.
- 11. If Julie (not be) always that obsessed with her job, she (not become) so well-known years ago.
- 12. If Sue (train) as a teacher, she (work) in a school now instead of an office.
  - 13. If I (be) you, I never (give up) trying.
  - 14. If Nick (not get) a loan, he (not be able) to set up his own business.
  - 15. You (not pass) your exam unless you (revise) for it right now.
  - 16. If I (be) you, I (buy) that violet hat.
  - 17. If Jillian (study) at school, she (have) diploma now.
  - 18. If Nick (turn) in his application, he (work) here now.
  - 19. If our parents (record) that show last night, the children (watch) it now.
  - 20. If Rosemary (not call) Sally, they (go) to the party tomorrow.
  - 21. If Nataly and Liz (finish) the chores, they (be able) to watch TV now.
  - 22. If the TV set (not brake), the boy (watch) the game this weekend.
  - 23. If Jim (speak) better French, he (can get) that job.
  - 24. If you (be) smarter, you (not borrow) money from Sam.
  - 25. If you (call) me yesterday, I (be) angry at you today.
  - 26. If I (be) a sushi-maker, I (made) sushi for the party last week

- 1. Если бы ты вчера не заболел, ты бы сейчас кушал мороженое вместе с нами.
  - 2. Если бы я был богат, я бы купил ту машину, что мы вдели вчера
- 3. Если бы мы ездили на море в прошлом месяце, мы бы до сих пор были загорелые.
  - 4. Если бы я продал тогда машину, я бы каждый день ездил на метро .
  - 5. Если бы ты не сломал телефон, я бы сейчас с ним связался
  - 6. Если бы ты не сломал телефон, я бы ему позвонил.
  - 7. Я бы работал сейчас в Бразилии, если бы подписал контракт.
- 8.Где бы ты сейчас жила, если бы вышла замуж за того сумасшедшего путешественника?
  - 9. Если бы ты купил пальто, тебе бы не было так холодно.
  - 10. Алекс ездил бы сейчас на мотоцикле, если бы не продал его летом.

- 11. Мы бы хорошо знали географию, если бы чаще ходили на уроки.
- 12. Ей было бы очень одиноко, если бы начальник не подарил ей на день рождения хомячка.
- 13. Если бы я ел меньше, я бы чувствовал себя лучше после операции в прошлом году.
  - 14. Если бы ты был благоразумнее, то промолчал бы вчера.
- 15. Если бы я вчера на вечеринке ел меньше, сегодня я бы чувствовал себя лучше.
- 16. Если бы он не совершил преступление, полиция не пыталась бы его поймать.
  - 17. Если бы я взялся за эту работу, был бы миллионером сейчас.
  - 18. Мы бы не потерялись, если бы посмотрели на карту.
- 19. Если бы я взял французский язык в старшей школе, то у меня бы была работа лучше сейчас.
- 20. Если бы вы не потратили все свои деньги на компакт-диски, вы бы купили эту футболку
  - 21. Я был бы богатым, если бы я выиграл в лотерею.
  - 22. Если бы вы не так долго готовились, мы были бы там уже сейчас.
  - 23. Мы не стоял бы здесь, в очереди, если бы он заказал стол.
  - 24. Если бы Ник был богат, он купил бы тот Феррари вчера.
  - 25. Если бы Салли говорила по-русски, она бы перевела то письмо

#### 13. Modal Verbs

Существует ряд глаголов, которые называются модальными глаголами. Модальные глаголы не употребляются самостоятельно, а только в сочетании с инфинитивом смыслового глагола. Они обозначают возможность, способность, вероятность, необходимость совершения действия, выраженного смысловым глаголом.

## Can (could, be able)

Глагол *can* употребляется для выражения возможности или способности совершить действие и переводится на русский язык как *могу*, *умею*. Например, I can speak English. She can swim. *Can* в сочетании с Perfect Infinitive употребляется в отрицательных и вопросительных предложениях, когда говорящий не допускает возможности, что действие, выраженное инфинитивом, в действительности случилось. Например, She cannot have said that. Can ha have done it? *Could* употребляется в косвенной

речи, зависящей от глагола в прошедшем времени. Например, He said that he could speak two foreign languages. Наряду с can и could можно употребить be able to. Например, I can do it /I am able to do it. I could speak English when I was five/ I was able to speak English when I was five.

#### May (might)

Глагол *тау* употребляется для выражения разрешения и переводится на русский язык как *тогу*, *тожешь*. Например, May I open the window? You may come in. Глагол *тау* употребляется для выражения предположения. Например, You may know the truth. She may be hiding something. He may have lost his wallet. Глагол might употребляется для выражения предположения в косвенной речи, зависящей от глагола в прошедшем времени. Например, He said that she might know the truth.

#### Must (have to)

Глагол *must* употребляется для выражения необходимости совершения действия в силу определенных обстоятельств, а также для выражения приказа. На русский переводится как *должен*, *надо*. Например, You must do your hometask immediately. Глагол *must* употребляется для выражения предположения. Например, He must be in Moscow now. He must have forgotten to bring me the book. Наряду с глаголом must употребляется глагол have to для выражения необходимости совершения действия в силу определенных обстоятельств; но он не употребляется вместо must для выражения приказа или совета. Например, She has to say the truth. They will have to g there together.

## Ought

Глагол *ought* употребляется для выражения морального долга или совета. На русский язык переводится как *следует*. Например, You ought to help your brother. You ought to be more careful.

#### Need

Глагол *need* употребляется для выражения необходимости совершить действие. На русский язык переводится как *нужно*, *надо*. Например, You needn't hurry.

#### Be

Глагол be употребляется, когда речь идет о необходимости

совершения действия, вытекающей из предварительной договоренности или заранее намеченного плана. Например, My mom is to arrive tomorrow.

# 1. Fill in the gaps with the correct form of the modal verbs (must, may, might, can, need, to have to, to be able to, to be to)

- 1. I ... show him your article later.
- 2. She ... not call the police again unless two days passes.
- 3. Alice ... return money to her mother on the next week.
- 4. The child had a headache and ... to take an aspirin.
- 5. I ... to wear a coat as it is rainy today.
- 6. It was raining hard and we ... to change our plans.
- 7. The meeting ... to begin at seven o'clock. Don't be late.
- 8. You ... to translate this article for the next lesson.
- 9. ... I return dictionary to you on the next week?
- 10. She ... have forgotten to call for emergency service.
- 11. I ... stand that noise any longer.
- 12. You ... not give the child everything he wants.
- 13. ... you tell me the way to the railway station?
- 14. I ... read the book twice before I understood it.
- 15. He ... be the oldest man in our group.
- 16. Mind, you ... forget about the time.
- 17. It ... have been worse.
- 18. ... I come in?
- 19. I have only a few minutes: I ... go.
- 20. Mary ... call the doctor because she was ill.
- 21. You ... make notes in the book!
- 22. ... I use your notes?
- 23. We ... to stay on the ground a little bit longer.
- 24. ... I invite Jack on my birthday party?
- 25. He ... to do all this work yesterday.

# 2. Translate from Russian into English using the correct form of the modal verbs (can, may, needn't, can't, must, shouldn't, to have to, to be able to, to be (to)

1. Неужели он ещё не вернулся с концерта?

- 2. Это можно было бы сделать намного интереснее.
- 3. Я уверена, он не мог опоздать на урок.
- 4. Им не следовало выбирать этот отель.
- 5. Им пришлось покинуть концерт Rolling Stones раньше времени.
- 6. Степашины, должно быть, живут здесь недавно.
- 7. Можете не приходить на зачёт, если хотите.
- 8. Мой пёс не умеет выполнять команду «сидеть».
- 9. Они, должно быть, посетили эту выставку, когда были в Риме.
- 10. Мы можем не повторять эту тему: мы проходили ее совсем недавно.
  - 11. Вы сможете принести документы завтра?
  - 12. Ты можешь не сдавать экзамен: я договорюсь.
  - 13. Я не могу вернуть деньги.
  - 14. Марк, должно быть, сейчас в бассейне.
  - 15. Я должна закончить отчёт сегодня.
  - 16. Тебе следовало сходить вчера в библиотеку.
  - 17. Кристина, возможно, заболела.
  - 18. Не может быть, что Кейт получила низкую оценку.
  - 19. Возможно, его сейчас нет в кабинете.
  - 20. Вы могли бы быть внимательнее.
  - 21. Вы обязательно должны прийти к нам в гости!
  - 22. Вам нельзя использовать этот текст ( я вам запрещаю).
  - 23. Я забыла дома деньги, так что мне пришлось вернуться.
  - 24. Мне пришлось взять отпуск, чтобы уехать из города.
  - 25. Было очень шумно. Ничего не было слышно.

#### THE ACTIVE VOICE. REVISION

# Open the brackets with the correct form of the verbs

- 1. Mark (to go) to the University, (to buy) an ice-cream at the same place and (to drink) coffee in the park every day.
  - 2. He (wait) for quite some time.
- 3. My father was rather annoyed with me because I was late and he (to wait) for me a very long time.
  - 4. He (to do) his article very good.
  - 5. How long (you/know) your boyfriend when you get married?
  - 6. Jacob didn't want to read the poem because he already (to hear) it.

- 7. By September, Julie (teach) us for over a year.
- 8. (she/get) home by lunch time?
- 9. Sister went to the post-office after she (to sign) the card.
- 10. But all these things (happen / only) if you marry me.
- 11. While she (to write) a note, her neighbor (to draw) a portrait.
- 12. All these months my boss (to talk) about his new project.
- 13. You (not/forget) to take camera with you.
- 14. My cousin (to go) to the theater yesterday evening.
- 15. Amanda (win) this game.
- 16. For breakfast she (to have) two eggs, a sandwich and a cup of tea.
- 17. There (not / be) anything left to wish for.
- 18. They (bake) some cakes.
- 19. The girls (to stay) alone at home. Their mother (to go) to the shop.
- 20. I just (to finish) my essay.
- 21. Tonight at 10 o'clock she (come) home.
- 22. Sometimes she (to take) an electric train.
- 23. Here is Anna who we (to speak) about for a long time.
- 24. He (to stand) by the window all the time.
- 25. (he/finish) his exams when we go on holiday?
- 26. You (earn) a lot of money.
- 27. When (you/complete) the work?
- 28. It (to take) him two hours and a quarter to get the results of his last experiment.
  - 29. After breakfast she (to go) to the institute.
  - 30. At midnight we (sleep).
  - 31. He (to eat) pancakes at the moment. They (to be) very tasty.
  - 32. (Drive / she) to London?
  - 33. Marta (to travel) a lot. She (to visit) many countries in Europe.
  - 34. I (not / work) all day.
  - 35. You (to watch) your stupid comedy too long.
  - 36. It (to take) him 15 minutes to get to the University.
  - 37. I (help) you with your homework.
  - 38. The student (to go) to the University early in the morning.
  - 39. Everything (be) perfect.
  - 40. His wife (to come) back and (to give) birth to a baby.
  - 41. Why (she/finish) the cleaning by six?
- 42. He already (to see) this serial. He (not want) to watch it again with you.

- 43. Anna can never forgive Tom that he (to deceive) her.
- 44. I (leave) by six.
- 45. Next week at this time I (sunbathe) at the beach.
- 46. My mother (to write) a review right now.
- 47. Everybody (adore) you.
- 48. It usually (to take) Sarah about 20 minutes to finish the breakfast.
- 49. I (not/finish) the essay by the weekend.
- 50. Every movie he (to make) was not for me but for my cousin.
- 51. You (to have) a cup of hot chocolate every morning?
- 52. She (finish) her exams by then, so we can go out for dinner.
- 53. Some of the students (to skate) while other (to ski). Everybody (to have) a lot of fun.
  - 54. It (to rain) everywhere now.
  - 55. They (to cook) tasty breakfast for their children.
  - 56. I (take) you with me next month.
- 57. Mary (not have) breakfast with her cousin, she (to drink) a milk cocktail.
  - 58. We (not/eat) before we come, so we'll be hungry.
  - 59. Sam (to speak) three foreign languages.
  - 60. Kate did not even understand what a Lisa (to happen) to.
  - 61. We (return) as soon as possible.
  - 62. Helen (to wait) for her reply for six weeks.
  - 63. The cat (to eat) the food and (to ask) more.
  - 64. My mother always (to come) in my room and (to wake up) me.
  - 65. You (work) very hard to get that deal.
  - 66. Molly (to iron) her clothes every day.
  - 67. They (not to meet) their guests at ate railway station.
  - 68. (Fight / they) again?
- 69. When the teacher came into the room, all students (to write) their essays
- 70. When I entered the room my neighbors (to get) everything ready for the New Year. Barbara and Henry (to decorate) the green tree.
  - 71. His granny (to find) it difficult to use the computer.
  - 72. The day after tomorrow he (move) his apartment.
  - 73. When it (to rain) we (to spend) time in front the TV.
  - 74. I (use) the money wisely.
  - 75. This week we (to work) on a new experiment.
  - 76. Peter and Mary (to talk) on the phone for an hour when the line

#### broke.

- 77. We (dance) a few dances before midnight.
- 78. You (to worry) about his temperament?
- 79. Jack felt tired as he (to work) for five months without a vacation.
- 80. The cat (to eat) the food and (to ask) more.
- 81. She (be) here very soon.
- 82. She (to visit) her grandparents in the hospital?
- 83. My friend (to go) shopping. She (to be) an addicted person.
- 84. At this time tomorrow morning, they (begin) working.
- 85. Children (not paint) father's documents today.
- 86. Dorian saw an urgent note on his table. Alan (to leave) it the day before.
  - 87. Who you (to talk) to?
  - 88. How long (you/be) in this company when you retire?
  - 89. Why (to agree) with his point of view? It (to be) absolutely absurd.
  - 90. I (not use) public transport as I (to hate) people in it.
  - 91. Nicole (have) a hard time.
  - 92. Andrew (to try) to watch the film since last Saturday.
  - 93. My close friend (to go) to Germany next week.
  - 94. You (travel) around the world.
- 95. When I (to arrive) at the airport, I (to notice) a child who (to pack) a toy into his parents' luggage.
  - 96. Tonight we (cram up) for our English test.
  - 97. My little brother (not see) either horses or cows.
  - 98. I met him at the household store. He (to buy) a hummer.
  - 99. At 5 o'clock you (help) your brother.
  - 100. At nine I (watch) the news.
- 101. Tomas got a bad review for his article because he (to make) a lot of mistakes in it.
  - 102. We (be) in London for three years next week.
  - 103. Julia (to be) fond of sports.
  - 104. You\_(meet) lots of interesting people.
  - 105. Nicole (have) a hard time.
- 106. My mom (to watch) movie at the moment. She (to cry) because the main character (to kill).
  - 107. They (arrive) by dinner time.
  - 108. Zoe (to try) to find her father for years but she failed.
  - 109. When (we/do) everything?

- 110. Tomorrow we (rest) and (have) fun.
- 111. The girls (to feed) the kittens in the garden while the boys (to play) basketball.
  - 112. You (not / have) any problems.
  - 113. My old friend (to learn) French for a couple of years.
  - 114. She apologized she (not to write) him.
  - 115. (Eat / you) at six?
  - 116. Molly (to have) a cup of coffee before she went to the University.
  - 117. It (to rain) heavily when I (to wake) up.
  - 118. Ralf (pay) for it.
  - 119. It (to be) difficult to remember the situation in details.
  - 120. He (not / play) all afternoon.
  - 121. Kate and Russell (not to go out) because it (snow) heavily outdoors.
  - 122. This time next week we (sit) at the beach.
  - 123. Mary (not consult) a doctor for her illness.
- 124. My husband (to be) very busy yesterday. He (to write) a report for his new presentation the whole day.
  - 125. Rebecca (clean) the house and John (wash) the dishes.
  - 126. This evening at 8 o'clock, she (watch) a movie with her friends.
  - 127. He (not teach) at the University, he (to be) a school teacher.
  - 128. He (not to work) before he graduated from the University.
  - 129. You (call) me next week.
  - 130. What kind of beer you (to drink)?
- 131. What time you (to have) a snack yesterday? I (to have) a snack from 7 till 7.15.
  - 132. They (come) at 8 o'clock.
  - 133. Sarah (to write) this essay for 2 hours before mother came.
  - 134. My aunt (to listen) to her husband very attentively.
  - 135. At this time tomorrow, I (sleep) deeply.
- 136. Martin (to drink) for two years before he (to decide) to give up this bad habit.
  - 137. Pupils (to talk) in the classroom when the teacher (to see) them.
  - 138. He (not to consult) to his doctor for the last weekend.
  - 139. Tonight they (talk), (dance) and (have) a good time.
  - 140. How many birds (to catch) the cat by the time it started raining?
  - 141. He went to the cinema with his friends after he (to cook) a dinner.
  - 142. You (earn) a lot of money.
  - 143. Mother knew the man at once though she (to study) with him when

she was young.

- 144. Ashley (stay) at home tonight.
- 145. Anton (to wait) for his train for 12 hours when its delay was announced.
  - 146. It (rain) tomorrow.
- 147. Mark (to glance) Mary at the press-conference. She (wear) a very elegant dress, it was hard not to see her.
  - 148. They (dance) all night.
- 149. Friends (to walk) along the river for about 15 minutes when a man stopped and tried to talk to us.
  - 150. (You / do) everything by seven?
  - 151. They (anticipate) your wishes.
  - 152. Parents (to forbid) you to speak with acquaintances, hadn't they?
  - 153. How long (you / know) your boyfriend when you get married?
  - 154. Anna's boyfriend (to fix) the car since noon.
  - 155. She (not / finish) work by seven.
  - 156. (We / arrive) by the time it gets dark?
- 157. Last evening she (to read) the poetry collection in the drawing room when suddenly she (to notice) someone in the garden.
  - 158. Maybe we (stay) at home.
  - 159. My baby (to fall) asleep before I came home.
  - 160. The jacket (to suit) the color of your eyes.
  - 161. It (be) very hot this summer.
- 162. Randy (to train) for a year and he was very fit when his exgirlfriend met him.
- 163. I never (to see) such a good person. He already (to save) many lives.
  - 164. By 2013, I (live) in Madrid for 5 years.
  - 165. Mary (to get) up, (to switch) on the TV and (to brush) her teeth.
  - 166. We (smile), and they (cry).
  - 167. We always (to get) together for New Year and Christmas holidays.
  - 168. My aunt (to listen) to her husband very attentively.
  - 169. Many people (serve) you.
  - 170. Anna was late because she (to miss) the electric train.
  - 171. Tomorrow at this time I (dance) at a party.
  - 172. My father's day (to begin) at six o'clock.
  - 173. He (not / complete) the project by July.
  - 174. Alan (to drink) a cup of green tea before going to bed.

- 175. At this time next week, we (catch) the thief.
- 176. He (to arrive) at 12, then he (to have) a cup of green tea and (to go) to the institute.
  - 177. Mary was so hungry because she even (not to have) snack.
  - 178. (You/finish) the report by the deadline?
  - 179. In 2020, they (work) here for 20 years.
  - 180. Father (to hung) wallpaper in the hall since morning.
  - 181. Anton (to have) some troubles during his trip to Cyprus.
  - 182. They (not / go) at six.
  - 183. We (to save) the money for a trip for a month.
  - 184. It (rain) tonight.
- 185. So the young man (to stand) by the window. He (to be) very attractive. Everybody (to look) at him.

### Translate from Russian into English.

- 1. Маша ходит в школу каждый день по одному и тому же пути.
- 2. Когда преподаватель вошел в аудиторию, студенты сидели тихо и занимались своими делами.
- 3. Ребенок весь вечер играет в кубики, но дайте ему лего и он переключит свое внимание.
- 4. В выходные будет уже полгода, как эта чудесная пара рассталась.
- 5. Бабушка на прошлой неделе купила дедушке новые ботинки на распродаже обуви.
- 6. Марат будет смотреть свой любимый художественный фильм, когда его девушка вернется из командировки.
- 7. На прошлой неделе моя подруга Сьюзен постоянно жаловалась на резкую боль в животе.
- 8. Научный руководитель поможет тебе с написанием курсовой работы в этом году.
- 9. Студентка закончила составлять предложения по английскому языку к трем часам ночи.
- 10. Это была их последняя встреча с тех пор, как ее молодого человека положили в больницу на операцию.
- 11. Ему следует следить за своей речью, в последнее время он использует много нецензурной лексики в разговоре.
  - 12. Марина будет сажать помидоры и огурцы всю неделю.

- 13. На сайте института ты найдешь много информации о предстоящих мероприятиях.
- 14. Подожди, я достану бумажку и ручку, чтобы записать твой новый номер телефона.
- 15. До того, как начнется выставка работ, учащиеся будут писать картины в течение двух недель.
- 16. Твоя работодательница избегала этих случайных встреч в курилке до приезда главного директора?
- 17. Каждая записка, которую он писал и оставлял на столе, предназначалась не мне.
- 18. Пожалуйста, не шуми, мой сосед готовится к докладу на завтра.
  - 19. Я видела твоего нового кота на расстоянии двух улиц отсюда.
- 20. Я простила его за тот инцидент, но никогда не забывала о случившемся.
- 21. На новый год будет два месяца, как он собирается снимать фильм по своей книге.
- 22. Мама наказала меня за опоздание и не разрешила пойти на вечеринку к Тому.
  - 23. Слава Богу, бабушка еще ходит сама.
- 24. Студенты выучат текст про Кералу к следующему занятию по английскому языку.
- 25. Здесь будет построен новый торговый центр. Он непременно будет лучше, ярче, привлекательнее и больше старого.
- 26. К тому времени как он появится на рабочем месте, его секретарь будет работать много часов.
  - 27. Студентов выселят из общежития через неделю.
- 28. Мама еще не убралась во всем доме к тому моменту, как пришел папа и попросил кушать.
  - 29. Моя подруга не убирала комнату в общежитии целый день.
  - 30. В комнате очень душно. Я открою окно.
- 31. Преподавательница уверена, что он поймет новую тему, несмотря на отсутствие в прошлый раз.
  - 32. Электричка отправляется прямо сейчас?
- 33. Маша думала о том, что когда она пойдет в институт завтра, она попросит справку об обучении.
- 34. Доктор сказал пациенту, что испытывал экспериментальную вакцину на нем.

- 35. Клара была в институте на лекции, когда ты пришел? –Нет, она уже ушла из аудитории.
- 36. Мужчина, который шел по направлению к моему другу, выглядел странно и угрожающе.
  - 37. К пяти часам Джим будет вести машину в течение трех часов.
- 38. Компания друзей будет отдыхать на теплоходе на этих выходных.
  - 39. Тебе удалось пригласить эту девушку на ужин?
  - 40. Маша не будет ждать, потому что приехала электричка.
  - 41. Его кузен смотрел футбольный матч в пять часов вчера.
- 42. Разве я не говорила тебе о предстоящей вечеринке по случаю дня рождения до того, как тебе пришло приглашение по почте?
  - 43. Пока ты будешь играть эту мелодию, я буду петь (процесс).
- 44. Джон будет составлять смету, поэтому он не придет домой сегодня вечером.
- 45. К понедельнику мы будем писать курсовую работу уже пять месяцев.
  - 46. Завтра в шесть часов утра я буду есть свой завтрак.
  - 47. Завтра он увидит Анну в институте.
- 48. Мы будем лететь над этим городом на самолете в течение 10 минут.
- 49. Не было никаких жалоб от преподавателей по поводу посещения студентами лекций и семинаров.
  - 50. Я проведу исследование на студентах перед отъездом домой.
- 51. В следующем году педагогический стаж работы моей мамы в школе будет составлять 25 лет.
  - 52. Катя была очень сложным ребенком для своих родителей.
  - 53. Алеша возьмет такси до отеля.
  - 54. Том не слушал свою любимую музыку целый вечер вчера.
- 55. Я замечала этого нового консультанта в книжном магазине каждый раз, когда заходила за тетрадями для лекций.
- 56. Если мы вернемся к данному методу, мы сможем закончить наш эксперимент.
- 57. Его отец узнал, что мать пыталась приучить сына убирать свои вещи.
- 58. У твоего брата были приключения во время возвращения домой из другого города на поезде?
  - 59. Клара закончила писать заметки в газету к 10 часам вечера.

- 60. Мама давала мне рекомендации по приготовлению супа постепенно.
- 61. Едва он переступил порог своего дома, как начался сильный дождь и порывистый ветер.
  - 62. В данный момент моя мама стрижется у своего парикмахера.
- 63. Маша сказала, что не будет покупать эту куртку, потому что она слишком дорогая по цене и плохая по качеству.
- 64. Когда моя семья прибыла в отель, мы узнали, что менеджер не забронировал комнату для нас.
- 65. Это была третья контрольная работа, которую мы переписывали на паре по английскому языку.
- 66. Мама сказала, что цветы и другая рассада скоро будет высажена в огороде.
- 67. Я смотрю по телевизору фильм, который вышел в прокат два месяца назад.
  - 68. Он уверен, что все картины на этой выставке мне понравятся.
- 69. Преподаватель не думает, что большинство студентов сдаст этот экзамен в летнюю сессию.
  - 70. Чем дальше Аня идет в лес, тем страшнее становится там.
  - 71. Катя постоянно меня перебивает.
  - 72. Студенты в аудитории хотели увидеть нового преподавателя?
- 73. Маленькому мальчику мерещилось несуществующее животное, которое постоянно преследовало его по пути в детский садик.
  - 74. Семь лет назад в театре было очень много оперных постановок.
  - 75. Почему Анна ждала тебя в гостиной?
- 76. У Джона недостаточно денег, чтобы переехать из квартиры в частный дом.
  - 77. Катя читает мало книг.
- 78. Его одногруппник спросил свою подругу, не хочет ли она сходить с ним вечером в кино или погулять в парке.
- 79. Мне нечего было делать и я весь вечер вчера рисовала рисунки своему младшему братику на урок ИЗО.
- 80. Твой брат Боб убирался в комнате, когда зашла его девушка и попросила позвать поговорить.
- 81. Если бы та записка на столе не имела смысла, все могло бы закончиться по-другому.
  - 82. Пожалуйста, можно потише? У нас идет экзамен.
  - 83. Если будет сильная пурга, я не поеду в институт.

- 84. Когда я окончу курсы повышения квалификации, я буду жить в Москве уже больше года.
  - 85. Я не окончу университет в 2016 году.
  - 86. Когда на улице будет туман, вы непременно увидите ежика.
- 87. Дети поедут в летний лагерь на весь сезон, если у родителей хватит на это денег.
  - 88. Она будет стирать белье, когда ее сестра вернется с учебы.
- 89. Рабочие закончат класть плитку к тому моменту, как придет прораб.
- 90. Ты пойдешь в магазин за молоком или останешься дома варить кашу?
- 91. Когда Маша окончит этот курс, она будет учить французский язык уже в течение четырех лет.
- 92. Костя уже будет ждать свою девушку в фойе театра в течение 1.15 часа, когда она появится.
- 93. На рождество будет 15 лет, как мы отмечаем этот праздник в кругу большой семьи.
- 94. У моих родителей юбилей. Завтра они будут женаты уже 30 лет.
  - 95. Твоя бабушка испечет вкусные пирожки с капустой завтра?
- 96. Эта статья о спортивном мероприятии в центре города никогда не будет выпущена.
  - 97. Сегодня ночью в 12 часов Том будет танцевать в клубе.
- 98. Студенты будут писать работу уже 45 минут, когда преподаватель зайдет в аудиторию.
- 99. В следующем году будет уже 17 лет как они переехали в новую квартиру на последнем этаже.
- 100. Почему бы нам не навестить старых приятелей? Они, вероятно, вернулись из морского путешествия.
  - 101. Мой кузен проведет отпуск в Индии.
- 102. Гости будут жить в общежитии, если вдруг вам нужно будет найти их.
  - 103. Я посещу Берлин несколько раз в следующем году.
- 104. До того, как рабочие вернутся, прораб будет пить чай уже полчаса?
  - 105. К тому времени дети не будут плавать в бассейне два часа.
- 106. Преподаватель предполагает, что все студенты слышали главный вопрос дня.

- 107. Катя будет ждать своих друзей и знакомых на вечеринку завтра в 7 часов.
  - 108. Мои родители позвонят мне послезавтра.
- 109. Маша закажет капустный салат и стакан виноградного сока, а ты?
- 110. Пассажиры, вероятно, заметили сумасшедшую цену на проезд в общественном транспорте.
  - 111. Они встретятся со своими друзьями в кино в воскресенье.
- 112. Курсовая работа, вероятно, будет готова к концу следующего месяца.
- 113. Тим повезет Машу до дома после празднования годовщины свадьбы их друзей.
  - 114. Он не хочет, чтобы Анна приходила к ним домой.
- 115. Мой парень пригласил меня в ресторан, поэтому мне не пришлось тратить деньги вчера на ужин.
  - 116. Джон вернется в следующие выходные.
- 117. Миша не возвращался домой с 7 до 8, так как его задержали на работе.
- 118. Джек все пишет сценарий своего нового фильма, но ему сложно продвинуться дальше.
- 119. Анна выглядела очень уставшей перед прошлой экзаменационной сессией.
- 120. Они будут лететь в самолете уже два часа до того, как вы приедете в аэропорт на встречу.
- 121. Ты еще не закончила писать рецензию на этот фильм, не так ли?
- 122. Мой друг ушел в армию год назад, скоро он должен вернуться обратно.
- 123. Было уже поздно, когда доктора обнаружили неправильный ингредиент в вакцине, которую кололи мышам.
- 124. У моих родителей юбилей. Завтра они будут женаты уже 30 лет.
- 125. Пока Катя сидела и слушала музыку на своем плеере, я подготавливала ответ на вопрос, как найти выход из сложившейся ситуации.
- 126. Марина не видела своего друга до тех пор, пока он не оказался на расстоянии десяти метров от нее.

- 127. У меня было не так много свободного времени, когда я училась в институте.
- 128. Завтра в 3.45 она будет в художественной школе рисовать на занятии.
- 129. Алиса еще не подготовила подарки для своих одногруппников по случаю нового года.
- 130. Он прочитал все стихотворения из сборника или только некоторые из них, когда ты включил музыку на полную громкость?
- 131. Маша сейчас играет в теннис с подругой или в футбол с мальчишками на улице?
  - 132. Она проконсультировалась по поводу заболевания с врачом.
- 133. Для Марка это было лучшее время, что он провел на курорте в сказочной провинции во Франции.
- 134. Эту рецензию по новому фильму написал известный критик или начинающий журналист?
  - 135. Как часто он посещает ваш дом?
- 136. Оперное представление уже закончилось, когда за учениками приехали оставшиеся родители.
- 137. Моя подруга переезжает в другой город. Ей там будет очень одиноко без меня.
  - 138. Эта война продолжается уже 100 лет?
  - 139. Во сколько он завтра пойдет в тренажерный зал?
  - 140. Пошли погуляем?
- 141. Наше исследование еще не завершено, и мы будем работать над ним и дальше.
- 142. Куратор будет заходить к своей группе так часто, как только сможет.
- 143. Твоя тетка приехала одна или со своим сыном, когда ты вернулся домой из университета?
- 144. Где вы применяете полученные результаты вашего исследования?
  - 145. Я одолжу тебе тетрадь с лекциями, которая тебе нужна.
- 146. Организаторы выставки ожидали, что ее посетят главы администрации района.
- 147. В среду студенты пришли на лекцию по грамматике английского языка слишком рано.
- 148. Марина сказала, что не ходила на лекции по грамматике английского языка уже целый год.

- 149. К тому времени Костя уже несколько раз побывал за границей, он даже ездил в специально организованный тур по городам Европы.
- 150. Кларисса рассказывала о случившемся в парке инциденте, когда ее мама позвала мыть посуда?
- 151. Когда Сэнди вернулась с дня рождения своей дальней родственницы, похоже было на то, что она всплакнула.
  - 152. Почему ты избегаешь встречаться с Машей в институте?
  - 153. Данил действительно хочет, чтобы я пришла на его вечеринку?
  - 154. Психика человека играет важную роль в науке психологии.
- 155. Пока Маша будет писать лекцию, Тим будет смотреть документальный фильм.
  - 156. Моя сестра отправит открытку своей близкой подруге завтра.
- 157. Вчера шел сильный дождь весь день или наоборот, светило яркое солнце?
  - 158. Почему ваша тетушка не ездит в отпуск в Москву?
- 159. Вечером они будут наслаждаться горячим ужином, обсуждать насущные проблемы и слушать музыку вместе.
- 160. Катя очень редко посещает библиотеки, музеи и театры своего города. Она любит ходить в кино.
  - 161. Они посетят выставку Брюллова в следующую среду.
- 162. Твой младший братик смотрит современный мультик или советский?
  - 163. Тебе нужна будет машина днем?
- 164. Теплоход уже отчалит к тому времени, как мы соберем последние вещи в нашем старом и разваливающемся доме.
  - 165. У Джима сильно болит живот? Я отведу его к врачу.
- 166. Когда ты придешь к папе в офис, он будет работать за компьютером.
- 167. Я не начну писать курсовую работу, пока научный руководитель не составит список литературы.
  - 168. Я буду ждать тебя ровно в полдень.
- 169. Все студенты, должно быть, пришли на это мероприятие в главном здании университета.
- 170. К концу недели студенты не проучатся достаточно долго, чтобы получить какие-либо баллы по семинарским занятиям.
- 171. К счастью, она не будет разговаривать с ним, пока он не извинится.
  - 172. Мне сделать клумбу самой?

- 173. Завтра в 12 часов я не буду лежать в кровати.
- 174. Когда студенты вышли на субботник и красили забор, они пролили много выданной краски на траву.
  - 175. Он напишет новую занимательную статью до конца недели.
- 176. К среде студент составит предложения на разные видовременные конструкции.
- 177. Разве секретарь не обзвонит всех клиентов фирмы к понедельнику?
- 178. Все студенты стали припоминать тему последнего занятия, когда преподаватель задал вопрос.
  - 179. Автобус не уедет к 4 часам.
- 180. Почему твоя сестра посоветовала тебе не покупать это прелестное платье в горошек?
- 181. Когда я приду в 3 часа, ты уже долг будешь готовиться к выступлению на занятии?
- 182. Карина только взглянула на свою подругу и поняла, что она не плакала, а смеялась над шуткой.
- 183. Разве секретарь не обзвонит всех клиентов фирмы к понедельнику?
- 184. Девушка пела в церковном хоре во время службы, но когда она увидела юношу, она замолчала.
- 185. Он считает, что данная проблема не имеет значительного влияния на поведение человека.
- 186. Папа вернулся вечером домой уставший и лег на диван смотреть телевизор.
- 187. Самолет уже совершил посадку к тому времени, как группа волонтеров прибыла на пункт встречи?
  - 188. Что ты принял за записку? Тот клочок бумаги на полу?
- 189. Майк будет в плавании в море дольше, чем где-либо еще к 2017 году?
- 190. Писали ли студенты контрольную работу, когда преподаватель вышел из кабинета, чтобы поговорить по телефону?
- 191. Добираться до моей работы очень далеко. Мой друг подвезет тебя.
- 192. Маша и Даша сидели у кабинета директора с самого утра и до тех пор, пока директор не вызвал их на допрос?
- 193. На кафедре обсудят последние новости, а потом расскажут студентам.

- 194. Самолет был на взлетной полосе, значит, прямо сейчас он взлетает.
- 195. Костя встает в 6 часов утра и едет, завтракает, собирает вещи и едет в институт.
- 196. Маша вчера купила новое платье, так как порвала свое старое во время катания на велосипеде.
  - 197. Лиза наслаждается уютной атмосферой этого ресторана.
  - 198. Она говорит по-русски и по-украински.
  - 199. Дети в детском саду играли в песочнице два часа.
- 200. Мальчишки ничем не занимались, а лишь играли в футбол и болтали о пустяках.
- 201. Легкие Джона были темные и воспаленные, хотя он не курил и не сидел на сквозняке.
- 202. На лекции преподаватель объявил, что интерес студентов к семинарским занятиям возрастает.
- 203. Саманта писала стихи по вечерам два раза в неделю, подписывая их своими инициалами.
- 204. В тот самый момент, мой кузен Джим, который до этого сидел в углу и не разговаривал ни с кем, громко закричал.
  - 205. Они плавали в море? Нет, они весь день загорали.
- 206. Твои друзья уже видели фотографии, которые ты сделал для презентации своей новой книги?
- 207. Я пойду в магазин за мороженым позже. Тебе нужно чтонибудь купить?
  - 208. Кто говорил по телефону?
- 209. Хотя его отсутствие на паре и было подозрительно долгим, преподаватель не спрашивал, чем он занимался в коридоре.
  - 210. На что ты смотришь?
  - 211. Как долго ты ищешь эту книгу?
- 212. Мой начальник выйдет на работу через несколько рабочих дней.
  - 213. Я напишу эссе к двум часам.
  - 214. Моя группа не танцевала, когда я пришел на репетицию.
- 215. Какую шляпку ты купила перед тем, как узнала, что началась распродажа всех коллекций в этом отделе магазина?
- 216. Что Костя набирал вчера на компьютере в 2 часа ночи? Он печатал отзыв о новой спортивной машине.
  - 217. К пяти часам Джим будет вести машину в течение трех часов.

- 218. Прежде чем броситься к сцене, фанаты толпились у входа в концертный зал.
- 219. Твой начальник испытывал тебя на прочность или просто хотел найти повод для увольнения?
  - 220. В прошлом месяце моя мама каждый день работала в саду.
- 221. Маше не нравится общение в сложившейся компании, она хочет уйти домой.
  - 222. Она вчера вечером ходила гулять в парк со своей собакой.
- 223. Моя старая хозяйка квартиры всегда была доброй и отзывчивой по отношению ко мне.
- 224. Я думаю, что большинство вопросов на этой конференции останутся без ответов.
- 225. Тем летом я работала вожатой в детском летнем лагере на море.
- 226. Когда мой друг заглянул в мою комнату, я пекла пирог целых два часа.
- 227. Моя сестра не играет с подругой в теннис на каждой тренировке.
  - 228. Мальчики играли в футбол поздно вечером.
  - 229. Скоро дни станут более солнечными, а ночи похолодают.
- 230. Тренер считает, что его команда легко выиграет это соревнование.
- 231. Последнее время она читала много книг и смотрела фильмы, снятые по ним.
  - 232. Моя мама не спит. Ты можешь зайти ко мне в гости
  - 233. Сара не ходила по деревне, она предпочитала сидеть дома.
  - 234. Маша знает своего кузена всего несколько месяцев.
- 235. Я случайно выглянул на улицу. Сияло солнце и журчали ручейки.
- 236. Карина уже очень долго находится в том продуктовом магазине.
- 237. Все студенты надеялись, что преподаватель вскоре выйдет с больничного.
- 238. Последнее время она читала много книг и смотрела фильмы, снятые по ним.
- 239. Дима всегда встает так рано утром? Во сколько он ложится спать?
  - 240. Кристина, наверное, думает, что Анна ошибается.

- 241. Бэзил не пишет портрет Дориана в данный момент, он пьет чай с лордом Генри.
- 242. Костя не ездил в тур по Европе вместе со своей группой в прошлом году.
  - 243. Во сколько приходит твоя электричка по пятницам до Казани?
- 244. Его друг был главным редактором популярного журнала в этом городе.
- 245. Глава района надеется, что в следующих выборах примут участие все молодые люди.
  - 246. Это послание не будет доставлено адресату.
  - 247. Совещание директората не будет длиться очень долго.
- 248. Моя новая куртка сейчас не в химчистке, она находится в ателье.
  - 249. Они оба хотели прожить всю жизнь бок о бок.
  - 250. Он пьет в течение всей своей жизни.
- 251. К установленному сроку завод выпустил нужное количество коробок конфет согласно недельному плану.
- 252. На той неделе твой папа уволился, он работал на старом заводе.
- 253. Извините, я опоздал. Я готовился отвечать на семинаре. Вы не против?
- 254. Эльза ходит к своей бабушке каждый день. Бабушка всегда дает ей гостинца с собой.
  - 255. Разве твой папа сейчас не работает?
- 256. Когда бабушка была моложе, она ходила в магазин самостоятельно.
- 257. Это здание большого театра не было построено к началу празднования юбилея города.
- 258. Мама была истощена вечером. Она целый день работала в саду, сажала цветы и другие кустарники.
- 259. Так как лорд Генри не дождался Дориана в гостиной, он оставил ему записку на столе в библиотеке.
- 260. Твоя сестра уже пришила пуговицу к тому платью, тебе осталось только надеть его.
- 261. Если твой папа работает на новом заводе, ему нужно использовать свои силы по максимуму.
- 262. Разве она не собиралась купить эту прекрасную шляпку последние пол часа?

- 263. С кем разговаривал преподаватель, когда студенты выполняли семинарские вопросы для подготовки к зачету на лекции?
- 264. Мама уже приготовила вкусный ужин, дети сели за стол и ждали прихода папы.
- 265. Клара не консультировалась со специалистами по поводу своей болезни.
- 266. Не успела Карина взять себе вопрос на семинар, как Маша раздала остальные десять вопросов.
- 267. Марина никому больше не рассказывала о том, что с ней случилось в парке тем вечером.
- 268. К счастью, она не будет разговаривать с ним, пока он не извинится.
- 269. Иностранцы приехали на обучение несколько лет назад. В следующие выходные будет два года, как они в России.
- 270. Постарайтесь понять общий смысл того, что видите на экране проектора.
  - 271. В следующем году ей исполнится двадцать лет.
  - 272. Марк такой грязный. Он играл в футбол на улице?
- 273. Пришлось ли Косте столкнуться с препятствиями на пути к достижению поставленной цели?
  - 274. Зак не жалуется по поводу своей оценки, не так ли?
- 275. Если она написала одно эссе, ей будет не сложно написать еще парочку.
  - 276. Дети играли в саду, пока мама готовила ужин и мыла посуду.
- 277. Кот не зовет на помощь, хотя на его пути стоит огромная злая собака. Кот храбрый.
- 278. Новый фильм этого знаменитого режиссера выйдет в прокат к тому времени.
- 279. Маша никогда не простит Анну за то, что она стала встречаться с ее бывшим парнем.
- 280. Моя кузина Анна никогда раньше не была за границей, она даже не была в другом городе.
- 281. Клара не консультировалась со специалистами по поводу своей болезни.
- 282. Кондуктор не заметила меня в автобусе, и мне не пришлось платить за проезд.
- 283. Когда Кристина была подростком, она посещала много кружков: и рисование, и танцы, и хор.

- 284. Извините, я опоздал. Я готовился отвечать на семинаре. Вы не против?
- 285. К счастью, она не будет разговаривать с ним, пока он не извинится.
- 286. Учительница даст ученикам знать о грядущих контрольных и проверочных работах.
  - 287. Матч по баскетболу закончится к пяти часам завтра.
  - 288. Что твоя мама приготовит к ужину к пяти часам завтра?
  - 289. Студенты сдадут свои экзамены.
- 290. Когда Маша окончит этот курс, она будет учить французский язык уже в течение четырех лет.
- 291. Мама полагает, что наша семья, возможно, проведет несколько месяцев за границей.
- 292. У моих родителей юбилей. Завтра они будут женаты уже 30 лет.
- 293. Кристина ужинала со своим другом по институту или с коллегой по новой работе?
- 294. Садовник не будет сажать растения в саду (по каким либо соображениям).
- 295. Миша не возвращался домой с 7 до 8, так как его задержали на работе.
- 296. Мама не купит ребенку этот планшет, он слишком навороченный для малыша.
  - 297. Маша пришла за Анной, но, к сожалению, ее не было дома.
- 298. Младшая сестра еще не приготовила ужин, не накрыла на стол и не убралась в своей комнате.
- 299. Она смотрит телевизор по вечерам, потому что ей лень готовится к семинарам или практическим занятиям в институте.
- 300. К тому времени как он появится на рабочем месте, его секретарь будет работать много часов.
  - 301. Твоя тетка не переехала в новую квартиру 10 лет назад.
- 302. Вероятно, Маша не знает, что ее подруга встречается с ее бывшим парнем.
  - 303. Строители не сделали ничего, чтобы здание не разрушилось.
  - 304. С каких пор твои родители живут отдельно в другом городе?
  - 305. Барбара уже написала отзыв по поводу этой статьи.
  - 306. Твой брат не сказал, что хочет узнать от меня.

- 307. Если вы внимательно посмотрели первую половину фильма, вы сможете понять, о чем преподаватель вас спрашивает.
- 308. Костя уже будет ждать свою девушку в фойе театра в течение 1.15 часа, когда она появится.
  - 309. Ты это обдумал?
- 310. Вашим преподавателям нравится эта лекция с первокурсниками?
- 311. Разве ты не собираешься учить английский язык после поступления в следующем году?
- 312. Если бы он и дальше продвигался по выбранному пути, он бы давно пришел к своей цели.
  - 313. В прошлом месяце моя мама каждый день работала в саду.
- 314. Боб мыл свою новую красную машину, когда его друг прибежал с печальными новостями.
- 315. Майк пригласил много людей или только избранных друзей на свою вечеринку по окончанию учебного года?
- 316. Я не начну писать курсовую работу, пока научный руководитель не составит список литературы.
  - 317. Почему он ходит в церковь каждое воскресенье?
  - 318. Ты только что читал его новую книгу?
- 319. Кристина никогда раньше не видела такого красивого молодого человека.
- 320. Мама не будет заниматься уборкой в квартире, если дети придут после обеда из школы.
- 321. Кто заставил Анну написать этот чудовищный рассказ, который пришлось сжечь потом?
- 322. Бабушка все ездит на дачу и любуется своей рассадой в этом году.
- 323. Следующим летом будет десять лет, как Анна живет в Америке.
  - 324. Кира не знает моего друга Майка в лицо.
- 325. К тому времени, как Кира накрасится, ее подружки уже уйдут из клуба.
- 326. Мы не слышали о приезде иностранного лектора в наш институт.
- 327. Что делает Сара? Она готовит вкусный ужин: легкий салат, мясное блюдо и тирамису на десерт.

- 328. Текст научной статьи будет переведен к следующему занятию по английскому языку.
- 329. Он будет есть заказанные суши уже 20 минут до того времени, как ты приготовишь нормальный обед.
- 330. Иностранцы приехали на обучение несколько лет назад. В следующие выходные будет два года, как они в России.
- 331. Меня преследовал маньяк во время вчерашней прогулки в парке.
  - 332. Кот кричит уже больше часа, он хочет есть.
- 333. Маша не пришла вчера на занятия по причине плохого самочувствия.

#### CONDITIONAL SENTENCES. REVISION

# **Translate from Russian into English**

- 1. Если ты долго не будешь писать, ты забудешь, как держать ручку в руке.
- 2. Если Маша не будет решать несколько вопросов за раз, она не продвинется вперед к своей цели.
- 3. Если вы когда-либо работали с печатной машинкой, то работа с клавиатурой покажется несложной.
- 4. Если зазвучала сирена сигнализации, значит, кто-то забыл закрыть воду в кране.
- 5. Если мама следила за чистотой в доме целый год, не пачкай все вокруг за время ее отъезда в гости к бабушке.
- 6. Если вы не хотите платить за проезд в метро, вы можете незаметно перепрыгнуть через турникет.
- 7. Когда времени до конца пары остается мало, студенты работают интенсивнее, чтобы успеть набрать баллы.
- 8. Если вы сделаете большую часть работы в группе, никто не скажет вам спасибо.
- 9. Если мой друг предложит мне сходить на выставку современного искусства, я тщательно обдумаю его предложение.
  - 10. Ты ткнешь его пальцем, если он заснет до конца лекции?
- 11. Если охранник будет работать двое суток, когда придет сменщик, он займет его место.

- 12. Если погода на следующей неделе будет благоприятной и солнечной, мы сходим с группой в лес на шашлыки.
- 13. Если студент опоздает на пару еще раз, преподаватель не впустит его на занятие.
- 14. Если у моего брата будет достаточно денег, он купит себе машину для передвижения по городу.
- 15. Если вдруг моему отцу дадут большую премию, мы сможем поехать в отпуск на несколько недель всей семьей.
- 16. Мама обещала купить ребенку радиоуправляемую машинку, если он будет хорошо себя вести в садике.
- 17. Если ты простишь меня и забудешь тот ужасный случай, я буду очень благодарна.
- 18. Мы уйдем во время сеанса, если фильм будет скучным и неинтересным для всех.
- 19. Если бы Том разбогател, он бы отправился в кругосветное путешествие на корабле.
- 20. Что сказал бы ваш преподаватель по английскому языку, если бы он услышал, как вы говорите на занятии?
- 21. Мы бы поехали на выходные на дачу, если бы теплоходы начали ходить в этом году раньше.
- 22. Если бы студенты из других стран не приезжали по обмену на учебу в наш город, мы бы не считались гостеприимными жителями.
  - 23. Я бы на вашем месте не совал свой носу куда попало.
- 24. Если студент хочет занять первое место на конференции, ему надо сильнее стараться и разбирать больше материала, читать больше справочной литературы.
- 25. Если бы Тим любил свои дни рождения, он бы приглашал своих друзей каждый год к себе домой.
- 26. Если бы завтра сияло ослепительное солнышко, люди смогли бы не надевать пальто.
- 27. Если бы мой дядя был богат, он оставил бы мне хорошее наследство.
- 28. Если бы мой брат балатировался на пост президента страны, я бы обязательно голосовал за него.
- 29. Ты еще успеешь купить билет на последний самолет, если пойдешь сейчас.
- 30. Если бы студент вышел из общежития сейчас, то он успел бы к началу пары.

- 31. Если бы у преподавателя было время, он бы помог с подготовкой к международной конференции.
- 32. Если бы мы получили зарплату завтра, мы бы пошли в кино или в кафе отметить это событие.
- 33. Если бы Маша оставила записку на тумбочке, я бы прочитала и смогла помочь. (но она не оставила)
- 34. Позвонил бы он в деканат, если бы я дал ему номер приемной своего института? (но я не дал)
- 35. Если бы ты вовремя включила телевизор, ты не пропустила бы свой любимый сериал.
- 36. Если бы моя мама посадила больше рассады (но она не посадила), у нас бы точно что-нибудь выросло на огороде.
- 37. Твоя младшая сестра поступила бы в театральное училище, если бы вовремя подала заявку на прохождение конкурса.
  - 38. Если бы ты умер, я бы тебя убила. (Сидни Шелдон)
- 39. Если бы твой супруг был свободен вчера, он бы присоединился к празднованию юбилея твоей матери.
- 40. Джон мог бы разбиться в аварии вчера, если бы он сел за руль машины.
- 41. Если бы не твоя помощь, я бы не успела составить много заданий до вечера пятницы.
- 42. Если бы ты не пел вчера в караоке, у тебя был бы голос сегодня.
- 43. Если бы вы прочитали весь сборник стихотворений до конца, мы могли бы обсудить его сейчас на семинарском занятии.
- 44. Карина могла бы сдать сессию без списывания на экзамене, если бы не была такой ленивой студенткой.
- 45. Если бы мы были абитуриентами, мы бы тогда выбрали другое учебное заведение.
- 46. Если бы ты закончила свою курсовую работу в заданный срок, ты не оказалась бы сейчас в таком положении.
- 47. Если бы Катя выучила английский язык раньше, она уже давно могла бы пройти все собеседования на престижную должность.
- 48. Она не привлекла бы столько внимания, если бы не выкрасила волосы в зеленый цвет, подражая аниме.
  - 49. Если бы не папа, не знаю, где бы сейчас был мой кот.
- 50. Если бы преподаватель был на месте студентов, он бы тоже не делал домашнее задание.

#### THE REPORTED SPEECH. REVISION

## Translate from Russian into English

- 1. Все студенты думали, что преподаватель вышел на больничный.
  - 2. Тим сказал, что выполнит обещание несмотря ни на что.
  - 3. Студент сказал, что не придет на пару сегодня.
- 4. Папа сказал утром, что мне очень идет новое и очень дорогое платье.
- 5. Каролина сообщила всем одногруппникам, что Анна купила себе подержанную машину.
- 6. Мой друг сказал, что Катя звонила мне и оставила сообщение на автоответчике.
  - 7. Моя младшая дочка заявила, что не хочет уходить из садика.
- 8. Маша сказала, что никогда не поедет больше отдыхать в жаркие страны.
- 9. Студенты расспрашивали преподавателя о том, как прошла поездка на конференцию в Берлин.
  - 10. Билл спросил меня, который час.
- 11. Кэтрин спросила своего коллегу по работе, не нужно ли подвезти его до дома.
- 12. Мальчик с улицы спросил другого ребенка, играет ли он в футбол.
- 13. Я поинтересовалась, кто и во сколько кормил моего мягкого пушистого кота.
  - 14. Мама сказала, что она работала в саду вчера.
- 15. Папа сказал, что ему выдали зарплату в тот знаменательный для всех день.
  - 16. Моя кузина прокричала, что ужин готов.
  - 17. Марина говорит, что она готовит лучше любого шеф-повара.
- 18. Представители власти объявили, что результаты голосования будут подсчитаны послезавтра.
  - 19. Пожарные сказали, что дом рядом сгорел позавчера.
- 20. Директор института сказал, что конференция по вопросам педагогики состоится в следующем месяце.

- 21. Моя одногруппница попросила меня принести тетрадь с лекциями по одному предмету.
- 22. Мама попросила сына закрыть окно, потому что на улице была сильная метель.
  - 23. Он спросил про мой возраст.
  - 24. Джон поинтересовался местом жительства Анны.
- 25. Мой парень спросил, пойду ли я с ним на выставку Брюллова сегодня вечером.
- 26. Моя одноклассница не хотела, чтобы о ее успехах на конкурсе узнал весь класс.
- 27. Он изъявил желание поиграть в настольные игры сегодня вечером.
  - 28. Он пообещал достать мне звезду с неба.
  - 29. Доктор извинился за длительное ожидание приема.
- 30. Молодой специалист раскритиковал работу более опытного педагога.
  - 31. Маша объяснила всю сложившуюся ситуацию целиком.
- 32. Полиция предупредила молодежь о том, чтобы они не шумели после 11 часов вечера.
- 33. Моя новая соседка пригласила меня на чашку чая с плюшками для знакомства.
- 34. Преподаватель посоветовал студенту список литературы для выполнения работы.
- 35. Один из представителей партии согласился с точкой зрения большинства во время публичных дебатов.
- 36. Мой старый приятель просил не говорить об уровне его дохода знакомым людям.
  - 37. Водитель автобуса отказался везти пьяного пассажира.
- 38. Мой бывший начальник приказал мне составить смету на будущий месяц.
- 39. Главный редактор модного журнала рекомендовала мне посетить данное мероприятие.
- 40. Она напомнила семье о приезде бабушки с дедушкой на рождественские каникулы.

#### THE PASSIVE VOICE. REVISION

# Open the bracets using the Passive Voise

- 1. The roads (to cover) with the snow.
- 2. A new rule (to explain) to us.
- 3. I asked that (build) in that street
- 4. Experts say that by 2050 the cure for cancer (find).
- 5. When I arrived the documents (to sign).
- 6. My house (to paint) while I was away.
- 7. It (to say) that too little money (to spend) by the government on roads.
- 8. Dear clients! By this time tomorrow your telephone connection (restore) completely.
  - 9. The Cape of Good Hope (discover) by Bartolomeo Dias.
  - 10. The bed was empty? It (not sleep in).
  - 11. My son (to punish) for being cheeky to the teachers.
  - 12. Frank (to give) an order to buy the drinks.
  - 13. When she entered the classroom, the last student (examine) there.
  - 14. Find out, please, if the present (to buy).
  - 15. Three points (to discuss) when we heard the bell ring.
  - 16. Many experiments (do) under water.
  - 17. A lot of attention (to give) to sport in our school.
  - 18. Chocolate (to make) from cocoa.
  - 19. The accident (to discuss) for a long time.
- 20. All the goods we purchased yesterday have defects, so they (send) back to the manufacturer right now.
  - 21. He will be able to read this article if it (to translate) into Russian.
  - 22. Many tools (to produce) from plastic.
  - 23. When his speech (to translate) to us we began to applaud.
  - 24. I just (to offer) interesting work.
  - 25. Some medicine for my cough (to prescribe) to me yesterday.
  - 26. Is the wedding party (to prepare) by her parents?
  - 27. Show me where a new factory (to build) in your city.
  - 28. What song (to sing) sing for you?
  - 29. Whose piece (to perform) now?
  - 30. Many people (invite) to the festival.
  - 31. The matter which (to discuss) now is very important.
  - 32. My brother (to discharge) from hospital yesterday.

- 33. The mail just (to look through).
- 34. Our house (to build) ten years ago.
- 35. What (explain) to the group when you joined them?
- 36. I (to drive) to school by my mother.
- 37. The women (to save) by firegighters.
- 38. Hundreds of people (to employ) by the new factory this year.
- 39. In the UK, alcohol (not sell) to anyone under.
- 40. The presidents (to elect) by the people.
- 41. A new James Bond movie (to film) at the moment.
- 42. He knew he (watch).
- 43. The cows (to feed) every morning.
- 44. The letters (send) to your grandparents as soon as possible.
- 45. The explanation (to understand) by all the students.
- 46. The answers (to calculate) very quickly.
- 47. What artist (paint) this picture?
- 48. Bread (to eat) every day.
- 49. Not many houses (to build) in our town every year.
- 50. I (to tell) yesterday that he had been ill for a week.
- 51. A lot of interesting games always (to play) at our lessons.
- 52. I (to inform) of the changes to the contract by my lawyer.
- 53. The story (to write) by the next meeting.
- 54. Lost time never (to find) again.
- 55. Penicillin (to discover) by Alexander Fleming.
- 56. All the money (to spend) very soon.
- 57. (To tell) about the changes in the timetable?
- 58. The rule of using present continuous tense (to explain) by the teacher.
- 59. Several schools (to build) in our district this year.
- 60. My bike which (to stole) was brought back only when a 20-pound-reward (to offer).
  - 61. My bike (to steel) while I was in the shop.
- 62. When the tables (to lay) into bed the guests were invited into the dining-room.
  - 63. This house (to give) a fresh coat of paint.
  - 64. The bed (to sleep) in.
  - 65. They read all the books that (talk about) a lot.
- 66. The accounts of this company (check) regularly twice a month by a strict tax expert.
  - 67. Such mistakes (to make) by even the best students.

- 68. He (listen) which such great attention that nobody noticed me enter.
- 69. How many newspapers (print) in Britain every day?
- 70. She did not follow the advice she (to give)
- 71. How much paper (recycle) in Poland each year?
- 72. These bees (to keep) in a large hive before they were taken out and examined by the beekeeper.
- 73. All the songs on this new album (to write) by Lisa herself, and the album (to record) live during her recent successful concert tour.
  - 74. The match (to play) in the evening.
  - 75. Whose piece (perform) last evening?
  - 76. The royal wedding (watch) by millions of people in 2011.
  - 77. What kind of explanation you (to give)?
  - 78. The movie (to film) in black and white.
  - 79. We went home, because he (look for).
  - 80. The child (to take) to hospital where he (to look after) very well.
  - 81. My offer (to turn) down.
  - 82. Joan's new book (publish) next year.
- 83. The painting that (to make) by Picasso (to consider) worth of exhibition in the art gallery.
  - 84. You (to offer) a good job?
  - 85. He wondered why the letter (to post) without a stamp.
  - 86. The shop (to open) at nine o'clock by the shopkeeper.
  - 87. It (to explain) to them what had happened.
  - 88. The rules (to explain) to us.
  - 89. No one can find an explanation over why Mr. Ertas (kill) last Monday.
  - 90. They (to assign) to work on a big project.
  - 91. The dog (to take) for a walk.
  - 92. Mathematics (to explain) by his friend.
- 93. This man (to give) novocaine before the dentist started working on a cavity that needed a filling.
  - 94. We (pay) our salary soon. Probably next Monday.
  - 95. It (to think) to be the victim.
  - 96. This guitar (to tune) before I broke a string and had to tune it again.
  - 97. The matter which (discuss) last week at 7 o'clock was very important.
  - 98. She will have sold the car.
  - 99. It (do) by tomorrow. I promise!
  - 100. This room (to use) only on special occasions.
  - 101. The job (finished) by Monday.

- 102. Nowadays, a lot of computers (make) in Korea.
- 103. Some good plays (put on) at the theatre.
- 104. Our school (close) on Monday.
- 105. The restaurant's fantastic dinners (to prepare) by Chef Jones for two years before he moved to Paris.
  - 106. They asked me a lot of interesting questions.
  - 107. The first prize (win) by her.
  - 108. Blue shoes (to wear) by me.
  - 109. They (to offer) to fly to Turkey instead of Egypt.
  - 110. By three o'clock the trucks (to load).
  - 111. Dinner (cook) by mother.
  - 112. Barbara (to wait) for as she is always late.
  - 113. Social problems (solve) next year.
  - 114. The computer (use) on Saturday.
  - 115. The book (to finish).
  - 116. The problem (to solve) if you ask him to help.
  - 117. The violin (bring) by Rahul.
  - 118. The thieves (to catch) while they were trying to escape.
  - 119. A new laptop (to buy) for him if he passes the exams well.
  - 120. The lessons (learn) by the boys.
  - 121. My socks (to find)?
  - 122. He (to trust) as he looked very strange.
  - 123. The trip (to pay) for by her fiancé?
  - 124. The windows (clean) by the boy.
- 125. When the fact (to mention), it became clear to everyone what (to mean).
  - 126. This book (finish) next week.
  - 127. We (give) flowers by our students tomorrow.
  - 128. He showed me where a new factory (build) in his city.
  - 129. By the middle of autumn all the trees (to plant).
  - 130. A lot of computer games (to play) by him already.
  - 131. The house (build) by the masons.
  - 132. When 1 came home, the sweets (to eat).
  - 133. The speed car (to repair) after the accident on the raceway
  - 134. The mobile phone (to return).
  - 135. The roof (repair) by them.
  - 136. His friends (to tell) everything about the incident.
  - 137. You (to be) frightened by the explosion?

- 138. The Harry Potter films (not direct) by Steven Spielberg.
- 139. The Eiffel Tower (to visit) by people from all over the world.
- 140. This baby (to give) a lot of love and care by its mother.
- 141. He never (to be) told the truth.

#### Write the sentences in the Passive Voise

- 1. The teacher was reading a fairy tale to the children.
- 2. We are collecting the donations at the moment.
- 3. He has thrown away all his old notebooks.
- 4. Mr. Barber is handing out the exam papers.
- 5. Were they painting the room when the accident happened?
- 6. They have just shown us a new film.
- 7. You place an order one day and they deliver your groceries the next.
- 8. They were looking at the picture with the admiration
- 9. Jane will buy a new computer.
- 10. Do they often make fun of him?
- 11. Hospital staff hadn't accepted the injured man.
- 12. The government was debating that question yesterday.
- 13. Father will drink all the juice
- 14. Does the police officer catch the thief?
- 15. Our mother tells us exciting stories every evening.
- 16. Has the surgeon performed the operation?
- 17. They are decorating the wall.
- 18. UPS has delivered the letters.
- 19. GPS is calculating the route to your destination.
- 20. I had written a letter before you came.
- 21. Everybody has approved Joana's suggestion.
- 22. Somebody will collect your luggage
- 23. She showed me the article which her brother had translated.
- 24. They have not caught the thieves.
- 25. Harry Potter is measuring the room.
- 26. She has closed the door.
- 27. Had he recorded that song?
- 28. Is Tom cooking this salad?
- 29. They are mending my piano at the moment.
- 30. The brave men had defended the city.
- 31. They were playing tennis from four till fifth.

- 32. Someone has spilt some wine on the tablecloth.
- 33. They water the houseplants regularly.
- 34. They will not show the new film.
- 35. Which book were you reading?
- 36. Why was she beating the child?
- 37. They were interviewing her for the job.
- 38. Have you written a letter to father?
- 39. Ann will wash the floor later
- 40. Will the company employ a new worker?
- 41. People are talking a lot about this young actress.
- 42. Teacher will explain the plan
- 43. We have not agreed to this issue.
- 44. Is the agent chasing the criminal? Teachers usually make corrections in red ink.
  - 45. Are they laughing at his jokes?
  - 46. I have spoken to the Dean on the subject.
  - 47. Millions of people will visit the museum.
  - 48. The zookeepers have captured the lion in the forest.
  - 49. In summer the boys often drive the horses to the fields.
  - 50. Everyone was listening to the speaker very attentively
  - 51. She can't dance when you are looking at her.
  - 52. Sheila is drinking a cup of tea.
  - 53. We envy him his luck.
  - 54. Have the police caught the man?
  - 55. They have always listened to his lectures with great interest.
  - 56. They have finished the work.
  - 57. They teach three foreign languages at this school.
  - 58. Those prisoners had robbed five banks.
  - 59. He won't see Sue.
- 60. Our boss will sign the contract. They are sending the ambassador to Europe on a special mission
  - 61. Somebody will build a stadium her boyfriend will install it.
  - 62. The coach is congratulating the team at the moment.
  - 63. Had she solved the problem?
  - 64. People are spending less money this year.
  - 65. Why were you cheating me?
  - 66. People are talking a lot about this film
  - 67. They were building a new concert hall in our street

- 68. Will the plumber repair the shower?
- 69. Had Dorothy solved the problems?
- 70. People always laugh at his jokes.
- 71. Is she writing a letter?
- 72. Jane will deliver a parcel
- 73. They will not ask him.
- 74. Jerry had received the check just in time.
- 75. Jim had received an anonymous gift.
- 76. Is she preparing the party?
- 77. For what were you making such a noise?
- 78. Someone burgled my house while I was away.
- 79. They sent my son home from school for being cheeky to the teachers.
  - 80. Frank will have ordered the drinks.
  - 81. They argued about the accident for a long time.
  - 82. My doctor prescribed me some medicine for my cough.
  - 83. What song did they sing you?

# **Translate from Russian into English**

- 1. Письмо было написано к пяти часам вчера.
- 2. Миллионы глаз смотрят на нас, делят на Венеру и на Марс.
- 3. Крышу старого общежития подремонтировали на прошлой неделе.
  - 4. Учебники принесли из центральной библиотеки нашего ВУЗа?
  - 5. Кофе подали ему холодным и с пенкой.
- 6. Ему никогда не давали возможности быть самостоятельным и принимать свои решения.
  - 7. Вок-лапша будет доставлена к трем часам дня.
- 8. Он стоял у камина, держа в руках записку, которую только что принесли.
  - 9. Двадцать чашек воды выпивается им каждый день.
  - 10. После презентации новой книги ему задали много вопросов.
  - 11. Где был построен новый офис?
  - 12. Книгу написали, когда позвонил человек из издательства.
  - 13. Улицы будут заполнены людьми на завтрашней демонстрации.
  - 14. Роман пишут или нет?

- 15. Их не предупредили о репетиции спектакля.
- 16. В Москве посещают больше достопримечательностей, чем в Казани.
  - 17. Это задание выполнено студентами в срок.
  - 18. Выступление этого коллектива будет завершено к 3 часам дня.
- 19. Покупки будут сделаны в продуктовом, а затем в хозяйственном магазине.
  - 20. Билеты в кино оплатили заранее.
- 21. Прежде чем определиться с выбором дома, моей семье показали сотню вариантов.
- 22. Деньги на карманные расходы будут выданы папой, а не мамой.
  - 23. Когда Маша болела, ее обучали дома.
- 24. Этот участок огорода с кустарниками обрабатывается садовником сейчас.
- 25. Стихи из сборника не будут прочтены к возвращению преподавателя в аудиторию.
  - 26. К вечеру все вещи были собраны.
- 27. На железнодорожном вокзале проверяют все большие и подозрительные сумки приезжающих людей.
- 28. Их отправили в кругосветное путешествие одних, без руководителя.
  - 29. В нашем доме не готовят ужин.
- 30. Дом-музей этого татарского деятеля искусства увековечили в нынешнем году.
  - 31. Проект Анны сейчас рассматривается в центральном офисе.
  - 32. Кота кормят каждый день?
  - 33. Книга была прочитана к двум часам.
- 34. Мясо не готовится в духовке сейчас, мама решила сделать курицу с макаронами.
  - 35. Комнаты уже убрали и поклеили там обои.
- 36. К тому моменту как он вернется из отеля, весь его багаж будет отправлен обратно в аэропорт.
- 37. В данный момент в нашем округе орудует серийный маньяк-педофил.
- 38. Стены штукатурили, когда прораб зашел на проверку выполненной работы.

- 39. Марина зайдет в книжный магазин, пока Анна собирается на их встречу.
  - 40. Вчера важные вопросы по экологии нашего района не решили.
- 41. Каждый год весной множество деревень и поселков затопляет водой, выходящей из берегов.
  - 42. Будут ли производиться новые телефоны на этом заводе?
- 43. Мартина сумка была изрезана грабителями к концу прогулки вчера.
  - 44. Заметку на первую страницу в газете пишут прямо сейчас.
  - 45. Письмо было принесено секретарем к трем часам.
- 46. Статьи этого молодого начинающего журналиста всегда читаются на одном дыхании.
  - 47. Портрет Дориана был дописан к среде.
- 48. Статьи будут уничтожены к моменту рассмотрения нового выпуска журнала.
  - 49. Рис выращивают преимущественно в Китае.
- 50. Студентам сейчас читают лекцию по лексикологии английского языка.
  - 51. Дочка не будет предупреждена об опасности этого леса.
- 52. Он не зайдет сегодня в магазин бытовой химии, потому что его жена купила порошок по пути домой.
- 53. К моменту начала церемонии бракосочетания кольца будут лежать на специальной подушечке в виде сердца.
- 54. К следующим выходным он получит письмо от своего друга по переписке.
- 55. Юбка и жилетка останутся висеть в магазине в отделе распродаж.
- 56. Было ли письмо написано к тому времени, когда папа вернулся домой?
  - 57. Студенческие зачетки были заполнены к пяти часам вечера.
  - 58. Платье купили на распродаже неделю назад.
  - 59. Предложения будут составлены к концу этой пары.
- 60. Моей подруге никогда не говорили о том, какая она сообразительная.
- 61. Билеты на концерт популярной рок группы начнут продавать завтра.
- 62. Принятие нового законодательно проекта обсуждается сейчас с президентом и мэром муниципального района.

- 63. Он решил стать режиссером, только когда его первый фильм вышел в прокат.
- 64. Им сейчас рассказывают самые необычные моменты из последнего путешествия в Европу.
  - 65. Эта статья была выпущена месяц назад.
- 66. Написание статьи было только что завершено главным редактором журнала.
- 67. Карнавальные костюмы всегда кем-то надеваются на время выступления.
  - 68. Картина недавно написана неизвестным художником.
  - 69. Мне сейчас передают солонку с солью.
  - 70. Этот фильм всегда смотрят на первом семинарском занятии.
- 71. Всем доставляют почту по четвергам каждую четную неделю месяца.
  - 72. Дверь в гостиную открыл молодой портье.
  - 73. Мне не сказали о приезде этой группы иностранных студентов.
  - 74. Детям было дано много заботы и любви их родителями.
- 75. Преподаватель в ярости, потому что его семинарские занятия проигнорировали все студенты этой группы.
- 76. К тому моменту работа над совместным проектом по заданной теме была уже закончена.
  - 77. Когда мы пришли домой, вкусный обед был еще не готов.
- 78. Компьютерная программа не будет использована студентами на лекции.
  - 79. Комната будет украшена ко дню рождения в субботу.
- 80. Эта картина не будет оценена высоким баллом из-за абстрактного видения художника.
  - 81. Наша рассада в саду на даче не обрабатывается химикатами.
  - 82. Много фильмов выходит в прокат каждый день в Америке.
- 83. Автомойка сейчас строится напротив центрального железнодорожного вокзала.
  - 84. Он внезапно понял, что на него смотрят.
- 85. Директор очень злой сегодня, потому что отчет по продажам за этот месяц еще не напечатан.
  - 86. Книгу читали, когда они пришли.
  - 87. Все файлы с вирусами на этом компьютере будут удалены.
  - 88. Пирожки и булочки были испечены к приходу внучки.

- 89. Фильм снимается сейчас на площадке в Голливуде вместе с известными актерами.
- 90. Выступление балета Тодес не будет просмотрено членами жюри даже к десяти часам вечера.
  - 91. Создание сценария нового фильма будет начато завтра.
- 92. Моего брата раньше меня представили моим новым знакомым в институте.
- 93. Это окно такое грязное! Видимо, окна в этом доме моют нечасто.
  - 94. Новое постановление обсуждается главами государств.
- 95. Много времени проведено за просмотром документального фильма во время пары.
  - 96. В комнате убрали, и сейчас она выглядит очень даже уютно.
- 97. Пойду, приготовлю чай и печенье, пока мой пирог томится в духовке.
- 98. Когда папа пришел домой, все документы были разбросаны по комнате.
  - 99. Эту скамейку покрасили желтой краской.
- 100. Пойду, распечатаю лекции, пока в институте проходит перемена.
- 101. Работу в саду и огородах будут выполнять специально обученные для этого роботы.
  - 102. Все сумки только что осмотрены нарядом полиции.
  - 103. Она будет приглашена на званый ужин к королеве завтра.
  - 104. Угощение не принесли к пяти часам вечера.
- 105. К тому времени как директор вернется в офис, обед не будет закончен всеми сотрудниками.
- 106. В этой стране говорят на английском или на французском языке?
  - 107. Вопросы и задания были разобраны к экзамену
- 108. Комнату сейчас не убирают с помощью моющего пылесоса, там стелят ламинат.
  - 109. Документы о продаже нашего дома не будут подготовлены.
- 110. Маша окончит университет к тому моменту, как ее брат выучит хотя бы один иностранный язык.
  - 111. Песню не слышно из-за закрытой двери комнаты.
  - 112. Им предложили посмотреть несколько интересных фильмов.
  - 113. В этом здании не подают заявления на регистрацию брака.

- 114. Когда ты мне позвонил, мне как раз задавали вопрос.
- 115. Моему другу объяснили правила построения предложений вчера.
  - 116. Этот камин только что затушили по просьбе владельца дома.
- 117. Он решил заняться журналистикой только тогда, когда несколько его статей опубликовали в местной газете.
  - 118. Когда была напечатана эта статья?
  - 119. Фильм будет смонтирован до завтра.
- 120. К моменту начала лекции все места в аудитории будут заняты студентами.
  - 121. Это письмо было написано карандашом.
  - 122. Комната не была украшена к празднику.
  - 123. Его недавно пригласили на самую крутую вечеринку года.
- 124. Зарплата в белом конверте не будет выдана всем в следующие выходные.
  - 125. Статья пишется или ты уже готов сдать ее прямо сейчас?
- 126. Книги выдаются по талонам в дальнем кабинете нашей библиотеки.
  - 127. Когда я приехал, в комнате как раз убирали.
  - 128. Кота сегодня кормили?
- 129. Новые конструкции зданий разрушаются от сильного ветра в Японии.
  - 130. Его картину выставили в галерее к пятнице.
  - 131. Итоговый тест написан всеми студентами этой группы?
- 132. Пирожки с картошкой или с луком уже испекли на сегодняшний вечер?
- 133. Такие песни исполняются во время ритуальных танцев у этого племени.
- 134. Мария не пойдет на день рождение к своему товарищу по парте, потому что ее не пригласили.
- 135. Коды и шифры не используются в банковском деле прямо сейчас.
  - 136. Приглашение не было принято несколькими гостями.
  - 137. План за месяц составляется секретарем для своих начальников.
  - 138. Его взяли под надзор на несколько месяцев.
  - 139. Все сладости будут съедены детьми завтра.
  - 140. Я был приглашен на литературный вечер.
  - 141. Сейчас в нашем родном городе строится самое высокое здание.

- 142. Пицца будет поставлена в духовку, когда мама придет и спросит о планах на ужин.
- 143. Упражнение не будет выполнено всеми студентами к следующему семинарскому занятию.
  - 144. Телевизор смотрят в данный момент?
- 145. Лекции знаменитого профессора читаются в самой дальней аудитории этого института.
  - 146. Ему дали два дня, чтобы написать речь.
- 147. Методичка по английскому языку была написана к концу недели.
  - 148. К концу следующей недели письмо будет доставлено адресату.
- 149. К моменту приезда в хостел, наши номера будут убраны и подготовлены к заселению.
- 150. Нано-технологии развиваются в современном мире повсеместно.
- 151. К пяти часам вечера машину отремонтировали в ближайшем сервисе.
- 152. Когда я в последний раз была в родном городе, мой новый дом ремонтировался.
- 153. Входная дверь была открыта после того, как он посмотрел в глазок.
  - 154. Что рассказывали классу, когда вы вошли в кабинет?
- 155. Пирожки были испечены к тому моменту, как пришли голодные и уставшие внуки с улицы.
- 156. Когда я приду в магазин, все консультанты будут заканчивать расстановку недавно пришедших книг.
- 157. Диск с музыкой будет отложен еще на одну неделю до понедельника.
  - 158. Их квартира будет продана.
- 159. К моменту поступления книги в продажу в этом магазине, она будет заказана мной в интернете.
- 160. Им не показали все достопримечательности нашего большого города.
  - 161. Машина времени не будет изобретена учеными.
- 162. Работа будет закончена им к тому времени, как его жена приготовит ланч.
  - 163. Дом будет разрушен этим экскаватором.
  - 164. Твой новый автомобиль не будет оформлен к пяти часам утра.

- 165. Эксперимент был завершен к концу дня.
- 166. Моя контрольная работа будет проверяться?
- 167. Проблема будет решена к пяти часам завтрашнего дня.
- 168. Правду не скажут никому.
- 169. Марте не сказали о предстоящей конференции, поэтому доклад не был готов в срок.
- 170. Этот молодой ученый всегда рассказывает что-нибудь интересное о своих поездках в другие страны.
- 171. Дверь в тот дивный новый мир сейчас закрывается прямо перед нашими глазами.
  - 172. Письмо по поводу работы не отправили вовремя.
- 173. Договор между студентами и преподавателем не будет подписан.
  - 174. Книги уже возвратили назад в библиотеку.
- 175. Одежда убитого Бэзила была брошена в огонь перед приходом лорда Генри.
  - 176. Ей не доложили, что ее хочет видеть директор фирмы.
  - 177. Игрушка будет готова к его двенадцатилетию?
  - 178. Зайду в продуктовый, пока папа едет за мной на машине.
  - 179. Твое задание будет выполнено.
  - 180. Будет ли кот накормлен к четырем часам дня?
  - 181. Он знал, что его слушали с большим вниманием.
  - 182. Потолки в комнатах не были покрашены вчера.
  - 183. Рисунок будет вышит к моменту выставки всех работ.
- 184. С детства мне дарят ограниченное число подарков на Новый год.
- 185. Пирог будет съеден к тому моменту, как дедушка приготовит горячий шоколад.

- 1. The secretary ... to her new boss yesterday.
  - a) introduced
  - b) was introduced
  - c) is introduced
  - d) introduce
- 2. "Is Katie enjoying her university course?" "Yes. She ... the lectures very interesting."
  - a) finds
  - b) had found
  - c) found
  - d) has found
  - 3. While we were on holiday, our camera ... from our hotel room.
  - a) was stolen
  - b) been stolen
  - c) had been stolen
  - d) had stolen
- 4. "Peter has been spending a lot of money lately." "I know. He ... a new computer yesterday."
  - a) bought
  - b) had bought
  - c) has bought
  - d) buy
  - 5. America's first college, Harvard ... in Massachusetts in 1636.
  - a) is being founded
  - b) had been founded
  - c) was founded
  - d) founded
  - 6. In more than 200 years the USA Constitution ... 26 times.
  - a) is amended
  - b) is being amended
  - c) has been amended

| d) has   | samended  |  |
|--|---|--|
| 7. Bo  | b's painting by a thief.                                      |  |
| a) has stole   |   |  |
| b) wa  | s stolen  |  |
| c) was   | s stole   |  |
| d) wa  | s steeled   |  |
| 8. I   | the whole of War and Peace by the time I was seven years old. |  |
| a)   | was reading   |  |
|  | had read  |  |
| ,  | had been reading  |  |
|  | had been read   |  |
| 9. 'W  | hy were you so tired yesterday?' 'Because I all morning.'     |  |
| a)   | jog   |  |
| b)   |   |  |
|  | was jogged  |  |
| d)   | had been jogged   |  |
| 10. W  | e all by the news.  |  |
|  | -   |  |
| <ul><li>a) surprising</li><li>b) surprised</li></ul> |   |  |
| c) are surprised                                     |   |  |
| · ·  | re surprised  |  |
| ,  | 1   |  |
|  | ometimes I wonder if I ever succeed.                          |  |
| a)   | do  |  |
| b)   | shall   |  |
| c)   | am  |  |
| d)   | were  |  |
| 12. W  | here the book?  |  |
| a) Is found  |   |  |
| b) has   | b) has been found   |  |
| c) was   | s found?  |  |
| d) did   | find  |  |

| a) was cutted                  |  |  |  |
|--------------------------------|--|--|--|
| b) is cut with                 |  |  |  |
| c) was cut                     |  |  |  |
| d) has                         | cut  |  |  |
|                                |  |  |  |
| 14. If y                       | you were stopped by the police for speeding, what you do?                            |  |  |
| a)                             | will   |  |  |
| b)                             | shall  |  |  |
| c)                             | do   |  |  |
| d)                             | would  |  |  |
|                                |  |  |  |
|                                | there you I wondered where you were.   |  |  |
| a)                             | be   |  |  |
| ,                              | were   |  |  |
| c)                             | are  |  |  |
| d)                             | have been  |  |  |
| 17 01                          |  |  |  |
|                                | e said she'd help him if she   |  |  |
| a)                             | could  |  |  |
| b)                             | can  |  |  |
| c)                             |  |  |  |
| d)                             | have been able   |  |  |
| 17 He                          | told them he starting work the next day  |  |  |
| a)                             | <ul><li>17. He told them he starting work the next day.</li><li>a) will be</li></ul> |  |  |
| ,                              | will have been   |  |  |
| •                              | would be   |  |  |
| d)                             | would have been  |  |  |
| u)                             | would have been  |  |  |
| 18. Th                         | e newspaper on the floor by Joan.  |  |  |
| a) was spreaded out            |  |  |  |
| b) has spreaded out            |  |  |  |
| c) is spreaded out             |  |  |  |
| d) was spread out              |  |  |  |
| , I                            |  |  |  |
| 19. Where the suitcase by him? |  |  |  |
|                                | a) did put by  |  |  |
| , I ,                          |  |  |  |

13. The bread ... with a big knife.

|                 | b) w            | ras put   |
|-----------------|-----------------|---|
| c) has been put |                 | -   |
|                 | d) w            | ras putted  |
|                 | 20.             | They by their father's stories.                                   |
|                 | a) were amused  |   |
|                 | b) were amusing |   |
|                 | c) amused       |   |
|                 | d) h            | ad amusing  |
|                 | 21.             | to the airport by Ben.  |
|                 |                 | as drove  |
|                 | b) w            | ras driven  |
|                 | c) w            | as drived   |
|                 | d) b            | een drive   |
|                 | 22.             | I had instructions that I to leave the door unlocked when I came  |
| hom             | ie.             |   |
|                 | a)              | will being  |
|                 | b)              | were  |
|                 | c)              | am  |
|                 | d)              | was   |
|                 | 23.             | He refused to go until he seen all the paintings.                 |
|                 | a)              | had   |
|                 | b)              | was   |
|                 | c)              | is  |
|                 | d)              | has   |
|                 | 24.             | Don't worry even if you make a mistake because if you, it doesn't |
| mat             | ter.            |   |
|                 | a)              | were doing  |
|                 | b)              | had done  |

c)

d)

do

a) has been told

will do

25 .He ... by the professor not to talk in class.

- b) was told
- c) was being told
- d) told

- 1. Camera footage shows that illegal goods ... into the warehouse last week.
  - a) are being smuggled
  - b) smuggled
  - c) are smuggled
  - d) were smuggled
  - 2. Millions of tons of coal ... every day to produce energy.
  - a) are burning
  - b) are burnt
  - c) burnt
  - d) will burn
- 3. According to studies, single women often lack satisfactory life Insurance coverage and 64 percent of American women ... life insurance at all.
  - a) aren't carried
  - b) don't carry
  - c) weren't carried
  - d) didn't carry
  - 4. The taste of the coffee ... by how and where the coffee bean is grown.
  - a) should have affected
  - b) has to be affected
  - c) can be affected
  - d) could affect
  - 5. Many teachers agree that one's language skills ... by listening to others.
  - a) could have improved
  - b) can improve
  - c) used to improved
  - d) can be improved

- 6. The board ... to consider a range of options by many, including Microsoft raising its offer in an attempt to break the stalemate between the companies.
  - a) was expected
  - b) is expecting
  - c) will expect
  - d) has expected
- 7. New methods of dating ancient footprints show that the first Americans ... there at least 25,000 years earlier than thought.
  - a) must be settled
  - b) should be settled
  - c) can settle
  - d) may have settled
- 8. The CSU team today ... an updated forecast that predicts eight hurricanes four of them with winds exceeding 110 miles.
  - a) has released
  - b) may be released
  - c) had released
  - d) is released
- 9. There are many factors behind the sharp increase in the oil price, which ... most of the time.
  - a) had been overlooked
  - b) have been overlooked
  - c) are overlooking
  - d) will overlook
- 10. The hundreds of millions of people who live on the border of poverty ... with the threat of starvation now.
  - a) are faced
  - b) had faced
  - c) had bee faced
  - d) faced
- 11. When I ... him two weeks ago, he told me that he had returned from the South of France.

- a) met
- b) have met
- c) will be met
- d) may be met
- 12. As education, culture and the level of income ... better, needs also expand and reach new dimensions.
  - a) got
  - b) get
  - c) getting
  - d) to get
- 13. When he heard the accusations against him, the man ... that he himself was the actual victim of the crime.
  - a) alleged
  - b) was alleged
  - c) has alleged
  - d) will be alleged
- 14. As I have put on weight recently, I have to get the tailor ... my suit before my graduation ceremony.
  - a) fix
  - b) fixed
  - c) to fixing
  - d) to fix
- 15. The best thing that you can do to extend the life of your car is to have your car ... on a routine basis.
  - a) to service
  - b) to be serviced
  - c) service
  - d) serviced
- 16. The painting that ... by Picasso ... worth of exhibition in the art gallery.
  - a) was made / was considering
  - b) would have been made / will be considered
  - c) made / considered

- d) was making / being considered
- e) was made / was considered
- 17. All the songs on this new album ... by Lisa herself and the album ... live during her recent successful concert tour.
  - a) written / recorded
  - b) wrote / recorded
  - c) were written / was recorded
  - d) was written / was recorded
  - e) were to write / had been recorded
  - 18. It ... that the victim...with poison.
  - a) was thought / had been killed
  - b) thought / had been killed
  - c) is thought / has killed
  - d) is thought / must killed
  - e) was thought / must have killed
  - 19. It ... that too little money ... by the government on roads.
  - a) is said / spends
  - b) has said / is spent
  - c) was said / spent
  - d) is being said / is being spent
  - e) has been said / is spending
  - 20. Mary...the mechanic ... her car yesterday.
    - a. had / to repair
    - b. got / to repair
    - c. will have / repair
    - d. got / repair
    - e. had / repairing
  - 21. My bike which ... was brought back only when a 20-pound-reward ....
  - a) was stolen / was offered
  - b) has been stolen / has been offered
  - c) stole / offered
  - d) was stolen / has offered
  - e) was being stolen / was being offered

- 22. The criminal ... for further questioning but as he had a heart attack during the first questioning he...to hospital for a week.
  - a) has held / was sent
  - b) has been held / has been sent
  - c) was to have been held / was sent
  - d) is to hold / be sent
  - e) was to hold / was being sent
  - 23. Look at Susan's fair hair. She has had it ....
  - a) dye
  - b) to be dyed
  - c) to dye
  - d) being dyed
  - e) dyed
  - 24. The government...that the tasks...with great success.
  - a) is confirming / maintained
  - b) confirms / have been maintained
  - c) was confirmed / have maintained
  - d) will confirm / had been maintained
  - e) confirmed / are maintaining
- 25. With this comprehensive international report, the country's position in the regional and global arena ... with measurable criteria.
  - a) is to identify
  - b) identifies
  - c) will be identified
  - d) identified
  - e) is going to identify

- 1. To have a clear image, stars ... with a telescope.
- a) must be observe
- b) had better observe
- c) should be observed
- d) had to observe

- e) could have been observed
- 2. The mice ... the cheese.
- a) have eaten
- b) have been eaten
- c) has eaten
- d) has been eaten
- 3. We ... along the forest road when it started snowing.
- a) was walking
- b) had walked
- c) were walking
- d) had been walking
- 4. This is the first time I ... late for my Japanese classes.
- a) have been
- b) had been
- c) was
- d) am
- 5. It ... that his music ... thousands of people in the next years.
- a) was thought / will influence
- b) thinks / is influencing
- c) is thought / will influence
- d) will be thought / influences
- e) thought / influenced
- 6. Archaeologists ... today that the pyramid of an ancient Egyptian pharaoh ... after being buried for generations.
  - a) announced / had rediscovered
  - b) announces / is rediscovered
  - c) are announced / was rediscovered
  - d) will announce / rediscovers
  - e) have announced / has been rediscovered
  - 7. "Cathy doesn't study enough." "I know. I'm afraid she.... her exam."
  - a) won't have passed
  - b) won't be passing

- c) won't pass
- d) will pass
- 8. "There's someone here to see you." "Oh, that ... my sister. Send her in."
- a) was
- b) will have been
- c) will be
- d) will is
- 9. A Malawi woman who ... with HIV five years ago ... a baby now.
- a) is facing / expects
- b) is faced / was expected
- c) was faced / is expecting
- d) faces / expected
- e) faced / will be expected
- 10. "How is your grandfather?" "His condition ... day by day."
- a) has improved
- b) is improving
- c) improves
- d) will improve
- 11. Anne Frank: The Diary of a Young Girl ... an international bestseller that ... into more than 50 languages.
  - a) is / has been translated
  - b) had been / is translated
  - c) is / has translated
  - d) will be / translated
  - e) was / will translate
  - 12. They passed me up for that position. I ... for that position.
  - a) was passed up
  - b) was being passed up
  - c) am passed up
  - d) will be passed
- 13. By tomorrow, I will have bought the car. By tomorrow, the car ... by me.
  - a) was being bought

- b) will have been boughtc) was boughtd) has been bought
- 14. John bought the Picasso painting. The Picasso painting ... by John.
- a) was bought
- b) will have been bought
- c) is bought
- d) has been bought
- 15. " ... to the library today?" "Yes. Would you like me to return your books?"
  - a) Will you have gone
  - b) Will you have been going
  - c) Will you be going
  - d) Will you go
- 16. "I'm having trouble with the car." "I'm sure John ....you fix it if you ask him."
  - a) is going to help
  - b) will help
  - c) helps
  - d) help
- 17. "Jenny has been writing letters all morning." "Yes. She...six letters so far."
  - a) has written
  - b) has been writing
  - c) wrote
  - d) write
  - 18. Most students misunderstand this story. This story ... by most students.
  - a) was misunderstood
  - b) has been misunderstood
  - c) is misunderstood
  - d) had been misunderstood
  - 19. My brother carried the groceries into the room. The groceries ... by

my brother into the room.

- a) were being carried
- b) have been carried
- c) were carried
- d) had been carried
- 20. "I haven't seen Mark for weeks." "Well, I ... him this afternoon. Why don't you come along?"
  - a) meet
  - b) am meeting
  - c) have met
  - d) was meet
  - 21. 'We'd better take a taxi to the station' 'Yes, the train.... in 15 minutes'
  - a) leaves
  - b) will have left
  - c) has left
  - d) will leave
  - 22. "I ... about buying a new car recently." "Really? What sort of car?"
  - a) have been thinking
  - b) thought
  - c) have thought
  - d) had thought
  - 23. Juan is preparing the enchiladas. The enchiladas ... by Juan.
  - a) are being prepared
  - b) were being prepared
  - c) are prepared
  - d) prepare
- 24. His brother was telling him to calm down. He ... to calm down by his brother.
  - a) is being told
  - b) was being told
  - c) is told
  - d) tell

- 25. A dog bit me. I ... by a dog.
- a) was being bitten
- b) was bitten
- c) have been bitten
- d) had bitten

- 1. I've just been ... here that man has been released.
- a) reads
- b) reading
- c) read
- d) have read
- 2. He ... silly things like this. Take no notice now.
- a) always did
- b) will always do
- c) has always done
- d) is always doing
- 3. These clothes ... for daily use so you ... them wherever you want.
- a) design / should be worn
- b) will be designed / must wear
- c) are designed / can wear
- d) were designed / could be worn
- e) designed / might be worn
- 14. A more developed model of this car ... in the showroom soon.
- a) is going to show
- b) will be shown
- c) was shown
- d) has been shown
- e) had shown
- 15. Epilepsy ... to be caused by poor air, which ... to be carried by the veins to the brain.
  - a) is believed / thought
  - b) believes / is thought

| c)     | was believed / was thought   |
|--------|--|
| d)     | is believing / is thinking   |
| e)     | will be believed / has thought   |
| 10     | 6. The student was to by his teacher.                                    |
| a)     |  |
| b)     | spoked   |
| c)     | speak  |
| d)     | speaking   |
| 17     | 7. The Wii, which is a video game console by Nintendo on                 |
| Noven  | nber 19, 2006.   |
| a)     | made / was released  |
| b)     | is made / was released   |
| c)     | was made / will release  |
| d)     | makes / released   |
| e)     | made / released  |
| 18     | 3. He his first collection of poems in the early eighties and since that |
| time h | e by critics and public.   |
| a)     | publishes / praised  |
| b)     | published / has been praised   |
| c)     | publishes / has praised  |
| d)     | was published / was praised  |
| e)     | will publish / will be praised   |
| 17     |  |
| erosio | 9. We can very confidently predict that if more of the forests, there    |
| a)     | are cut / will be  |
| b)     | cut / is   |
| c)     | will cut / was   |
| d)     | have been cut / used to be   |

was cut / will be

20. When was America ...?

appeared

discovered

e)

a)

b)

|     | c)   | invented   |
|-----|------|--|
|     | d)   | came   |
|     | 21.  | The poor bird and all its efforts to escape from the trap in vain. |
|     | a)   | has been captured / had been                                       |
|     | b)   | captures / were  |
|     | c)   | had been captured / was  |
|     | d)   | will capture / are   |
|     | e)   | had been captured / were   |
|     | 22.  | Planes are not being on Sundays at this airport.                   |
|     | a)   | flies  |
|     | b)   | flown  |
|     | c)   | fly  |
|     | d)   | flew   |
|     | 36.  | The movers have delivered the furniture. The furniture by the      |
| mov | ers. |  |
|     | a)   | will have been delivered   |
|     | b)   | would be delivered   |
|     | c)   | has been delivered   |
|     | 37.  | This city will surprise you. You by this city.                     |
|     | a)   | are surprised  |
|     | b)   | will be surprised  |
|     | c)   | will have been surprised   |
|     |      | Test 5   |
|     | 1. I | Bags in this factory.  |
|     | a)   | is make  |
|     | b)   | is made  |
|     | c)   | are made   |
|     | d)   | are make   |

2. Most of the patient visits ... To physician assistants in the recent years all around the world.

|   | a)                                    | have been made   |
|---|---------------------------------------|--|
|   | b)                                    | was made   |
|   | c)                                    | will have been made  |
|   | d)                                    | have made  |
|   | 3.                                    | This office is now.  |
|   | a)                                    | cleaning   |
|   | b)                                    | being cleaned  |
|   | c)                                    | be cleaned   |
|   | d)                                    | cleaned  |
| 4. These differences between two photographs with the help of |                                       |  |
| Photoshop.  |                                       |  |
|   | a)                                    | should remove  |
|   | b)                                    | must have removed  |
|   | c)                                    | have to remove   |
|   | d)                                    | could have been removed  |
|   | e)                                    | were able to remove  |
|   | 5. Wh                                 | en the old lady returns to her flat she at once that someone has |
| brok  | en in d                               | uring her absence.   |
|   | a)                                    | will see   |
|   | b)                                    | Sees   |
|   | c)                                    | has seen   |
|   | d)                                    | saw  |
|   | 6. It's the first time he to England. |  |
|   | a)                                    | go   |
|   | b)                                    | went   |
|   | c)                                    | has gone   |

d)

a)

b)c)

d)

had gone

laid

lay lied

layed

7. Then he ... his hand on her shoulder.

- 8. I wonder if Wayne is ill he ... thinner and thinner.
  a) got
  b) is getting
- c) getsd) will get
- 9. The old woman was .... by Sam.
- a) helping
- b) helped
- c) help
- d) be helped
- 10. No clinical studies ... in this child disease research so far.
- a) had completed
- b) will be completed
- c) have completed
- d) had to complete
- e) have been completed
- 11. The government ... that the tasks ... with great success.
- a) is confirming / maintained
- b) confirms / have been maintained
- c) was confirmed / have maintained
- d) will confirm / had been maintained
- e) confirmed / are maintaining
- 12. We were hurrying because we thought that the bell...
- a) had already rang
- b) had already rung
- c) has already rang
- d) have already ringing
- 13. With this comprehensive international report, the country's position in the regional and global arena ... with measurable criteria.
  - a) is to identify
  - b) identifies
  - c) will be identified
  - d) identified

is going to identify e) 14. In the future, people ... their holiday in space. a) spend will spend **b**) will be spending c) are going to spend d) 15. Since I ... university, I haven't had much spare time. started a) b) have started c) was starting d) start 16. The critics ... that the review ... as a book in English and in many other languages. are said / could be published a) say / can be published **b**) will say / had been published c) said / may be published d) have said / should publish e) 17. While the workers were repairing the roof, they ... the bathroom window. break a) have broken b) c) broke d) was broken 18. What did you do while ... for the others to come?

is looking a)

19. Don't you think Ian ... just like his father?

a)

b) c)

d)

you waited

you were waiting

were you waiting

have you been waiting

- c) has looked
- d) looks
- 20. ... arrived when trouble started.
- a) Had I hardly
- b) Hardly have I
- c) Hardly had I
- d) I hardly had
- 21. New legislation ... in congress but it ... by many.
- a) was introduced / wasn't accepted
- b) introduced / didn't accept
- c) will be introduced / isn't accepted
- d) introduced / hadn't been accepted
- e) is introduced / won't accept
- 22. The plane ... at 10.30 and ... at 16.15.
- a) will take off, will land
- b) is taking off, is landing
- c) takes off, lands
- d) took off, would land
- 23. After he had researched and ... his paper, he found some additional material.
  - a) Wrote
  - b) writing
  - c) written
  - d) have written
- 24. If you would like to know what ... in the project so far, you ... the full report at our website.
  - a) has been completed / may be visited
  - b) completed / will be found
  - c) completes / should be found
  - d) was completed / had been found
  - e) will be completed / can find
  - 25. The book was ... into Japanese by my brother.

| <ul> <li>a) translate</li> <li>b) transferred</li> <li>c) translated</li> <li>d) transfer</li> </ul> |  |  |
|--|--|--|
| Test 6   |  |  |
| 1. I'd like to have hamburger for breakfast. a) the b) a c) an d) –                                  |  |  |
| <ul><li>2. Pushkin is outstanding Russian poet.</li><li>a) the b) a c) an d) -</li></ul>             |  |  |
| 3. Can you play piano? a) the b) a c) an d) -  |  |  |
| 4. Will you play chess with me? a) the b) a c) an d) –   |  |  |
| 5. There is bend in the road. a) the b) a c) an d) -   |  |  |
| 6. Thomas Banks is last person I want to see. a) the b) a c) an d) –                                 |  |  |
| 7. My favourite subject at school is History a) the b) a c) an d) –                                  |  |  |
| 8. He knows history of the French Revolution well. a) the b) a c) an d) –                            |  |  |
| 9. Tom's going to take his fishing-rod. a) the b) a c) an d) –                                       |  |  |

10. Could you phone later, please? Jane's having \_\_\_\_\_ shower. a) the b) a c) an d) –

11. The rent is 50 dollars \_\_\_\_\_ week.

| a) the b) a c) an d) –   |    |
|--|----|
| 12. We often go to theatre and to cinema. a) the b) a c) an d) –   |    |
| 13. What pity they haven't come! a) the b) a c) an d) –  |    |
| 14. I can't find letter which I received this morning. a) the b) a c) an d) –  |    |
| 15. Are you going to country on Saturday? a) the b) a c) an d) –   |    |
| <ul> <li>16. They usually go shopping on Mondays, but last Monday they didn't d</li> <li> shopping.</li> <li>a) the b) a c) an d) –</li> </ul> | lo |
| 17. Dad came to school to see my teacher yesterday. a) the b) a c) an d) –   |    |
| 18 Could you tell me time, please -It's a quarter past four.  a) the b) a c) an d) -   | ÷? |
| 19. We are busy today, but we have little time to spare tomorrow. a) the b) a c) an d) –   |    |
| 20. The sweater was cheap. It cost only few pounds. a) the b) a c) an d) -   |    |
| 21. To tell truth, I didn't expect to see him. a) the b) a c) an d) –  |    |
| 22. It's high time you stopped being so lazy. a) the b) a c) an d) –   |    |
| 23 earth goes round the sun.   |    |

| a) the b) a c) a  | n d) –   |
|---|--|
| 24 life a) the b) a c) a  | is hard in that climate.<br>n d) –   |
| 25. What<br>a) the b) a c) a  | lovely song!<br>.n d) –  |
| 26. It took me a) the b) a c) a   | one and half hours to get there.  n d) -   |
|   | Test 7   |
| 1. Use the req  | uired form of the adjective in the following sentences   |
| <ul><li>1.</li><li>a) goodes</li><li>b) better</li><li>c) best</li></ul>        | I met my (good) friend yesterday.  |
| <ul><li>2.</li><li>a) so strong</li><li>b) stronge</li><li>c) stronge</li></ul> | as   |
| 3.  – No, it was (va) b) c)   | <ul> <li>It isn't very warm today, is it?</li> <li>warm) yesterday.</li> <li>more warm</li> <li>warmer</li> <li>the warmest</li> </ul> |
| 4. (happy) to a) b) c)  | Your friend looked upset yesterday. I'm glad he looks oday. more happy happier happy as  |

Baseball is (popular) supper sport in America.

5.

- a) popularer
- b) more popular
- c) the most popular
- 6. I wanted to ask you opinion about my (late) film if you saw it.
- a) later
- b) more later
- c) latest
- 7. He was the (practical) of the family.
- a) more practical
- b) most practical
- c) practicalest
- 8. Sara's answer is (correct) then yours.
- a) more correct
- b) the most correct
- c) the correctest
- 9) Today I'm no (wise) then yesterday.
- a) wiser
- b) as wise
- c) more wise
- 10) My toothache is (painful) than it was yesterday.
- a) most painful
- b) painfuller
- c) more painful.

# 2. Use the required form of the prepositions in the following sentences

- 1. Mrs and Mr Gray fly ... New York. (to, in, for)
- 2. Mr Huxley goes to Birmingham ... coach. (with, in, by)
- 3. How to find the First Class Carriage ... a railway station. (in, on, at)
- 4. I'm going ... a trip to Yorkshire. (on, by, with)
- 5. We a planning to go ... many leisurely walks. (for, by, at)
- 6. Did you change your appointment ... Monday to Friday? (from, on, to, for)

- 7. Please call ... you come; ... we might not be home. (otherwise, to, before, except)
- 8. Did you glance ... the application form ... you sent it? (on, at, before, from, in)
- 9. Please close the windows and lock ... the office ... you leave. (for, up, out, when)
- 10. ... finding the new word ... the dictionary, I wrote it .... (after, with, in, down)

## 3. Use the appropriate form of pronouns

- 1. Mr Madison gave ... wife a leather bag for ... birthday. (his, her)
- 2. ... was cold to sit on the road, pretending that ... was really a summer night. (it, I)
- 3. She makes all ... clothes ..., because she likes ... own design. (her (2), herself)
  - 4. Mr and Mrs Kant and a friend of ... are coming to see .... (theirs, us)
  - 5. ... houses in the ... side of the river were more modern. (those, other)
- 6. Can ... help ...? Yes, please. ... would like a pair of shoes. Good, ... shoes are more convenient and cheaper. (I (2), you, these)
  - 7. ... know ... very well, because ... are friends of .... (we, them; they, us)
  - 8. ... looked in the mirror and couldn't recognize .... (she, herself)
  - 9. Then ... felt something warm on ... knees. ... was a puppy. (I, my, it)
  - 10. ... does ... sister prefer: tea or coffee? (what, her)
- 11. ... cosine read the book from beginning to end. She read ... books. (my, all).

# 4. Write the appropriate form of sentences

- 1. night / from / She / till / worked / yesterday / morning.
- 2. which / is / islands / The Philippines / consists of / an archipelago / thousands of.
  - 3. Waterloo Station / leaves / 7.00 p.m. / at / My / train / from.
  - 4. to / you / the Kremlin / to go / Would / like?
  - 5. map, / on / me / Show / please / the Canary Islands / this.
  - 6. Highest / in / is / mountain / the / Everest / the world.
  - 7. Way / the / station / Do / the shortest / you / know / to?
  - 8. a flower / is / butterfly / look / That / like / not.

9. students / in / group / Are / a lot / of / there / your?
10. give / father / me / car / My / does / his / does / not

## 5. Ask questions about the information in italics

1. Stradivari's best instrument was made in 1720.

When...?

2. My friends want to study French.

Who...?

What...?

3. They live *in small houses* which have two rooms.

Where...?

- 4. My little sister goes to school every day.
- 5. I'm meeting Jane after work day.
- 6. We had dinner with some friends last Sunday.
- 7. He has already finished his coffee.
- 8. She will take the children out for a walk tomorrow.
- 9. He always has a few mistakes in her composition.
- 10. Children receive a lot of pleasure from this game.

# 6. Translate sentences and write questions to underlined sentences

- 1. Я часто вожу эту машину.
- 2. Дэн всегда забывает свою ручку дома.
- 3. У меня есть три кузена.
- 4. Марина хорошо знала этот город, поэтому нашла нашу школу быстро (quickly).
  - 5. Завтра она будет чувствовать себя хорошо.
  - 6. Моя мама каждый год выращивает цветы в нашем саду.
  - 7. Том редко делает домашнюю работу.
  - 8. Анна купила вчера красивую сумку.
- 9. На прошлой неделе моей сестры не было дома. Она была в Москве.
  - 10. Через две недели я поеду в Лондон.
  - 11. Три дня назад мы получили письмо (a letter).
- 12. <u>В следующем году они построят новый дом за городом (in the country).</u>
  - 13. Где те журналы? Они были на столе.

- 14. Том приехал поздно (late), но не забыл про день рождения мамы и принес ей цветы.
  - 15. Это платье стоит 50 долларов.
  - 16. Где Вы были вчера? Я был в университете.
  - 17. Папа позволил ей пойти на дискотеку (disko).
  - 18. Через 5 лет Том стал известным (famous) писателем.
  - 19. Кто дал тебе мой адрес (adress)?
  - 20. Анна отрезала кусок торта (a piece of cake) и съела его.
  - 21. Вы сделали вчера домашнюю работу?
  - 22. Завтра наш урок начнется в 8 ч.

# 1. Open the bracets using Present Simple, Present Continuous, Past Simple, Future Simple Tenses (choose the right sentences)

- 1. Yesterday I (to come) home from school at half past eight.
- a) Yesterday I will come home from school at half past eight.
- b) Yesterday I came home from school at half past eight.
- c) Yesterday I come home from school at half past eight.
- d) Yesterday I am coming home from school at half past eight.
- 2. After school yesterday he (to come) home, (to have) dinner, (to read) an article from the latest magazine and (to begin) doing his homework.
- a) After school yesterday he will come home, will have dinner, will read an article from the latest magazine and will begin doing his homework.
- b) After school yesterday he is coming home, having dinner, reading an article from the latest magazine and beginning doing his homework.
- c) After school yesterday he came home, had dinner, read an article from the latest magazine and began doing his homework.
- d) After school yesterday he comes home, has dinner, reads an article from the latest magazine and begins doing his homework.
  - 3. Michael (to know) German rather well.
  - a) Michael will know German rather well.

- b) Michael knew German rather well.
- c) Michael is knowing German rather well.
- d) Michael knows German rather well.
- 4. She (not to drink) coffee now.
- a) She does not drink coffee now.
- b) She did not drink coffee now.
- c) She is not drinking coffee now.
- d) She won't drink coffee now.
- 5. We (not to watch) TV in the morning.
- a) We will not watch TV in the morning.
- b) We did not watch TV in the morning.
- c) We are not watching TV in the morning.
- d) We do not watch TV in the morning.
- 6. My brother (to go) to the country with us next Sunday.
- a) My brother will go to the country with us next Sunday.
- b) My brother is going to the country with us next Sunday.
- c) My brother went to the country with us next Sunday.
- d) My brother goes to the country with us next Sunday.
- 7. Our football team (to win) many games last year.
- a) Our football team will win many games last year.
- b) Our football team wins many games last year.
- c) Our football team won many games last year.
- d) Our football team is wining many games last year.
- 8. What you (to prepare) for breakfast tomorrow?
- a) What did you prepare for breakfast tomorrow?
- b) What are you preparing for breakfast tomorrow?
- c) What do you prepare for breakfast tomorrow?
- d) What will you prepare for breakfast tomorrow?

- 9. Don't make noise! Father (to sleep).
- a) Don't make noise! Father slept.
- b) Don't make noise! Father is sleeping.
- c) Don't make noise! Father sleeps.
- d) Don't make noise! Father will sleep.
- 10. Nelly (not to go) to Moscow tomorrow morning.
- a) Nelly did not go to Moscow tomorrow morning.
- b) Nelly is not going to Moscow tomorrow morning.
- c) Nelly does not go to Moscow tomorrow morning.
- d) Nelly will not go to Moscow tomorrow morning.
- 11. A young man (to stand) near the window and (to smoke) a cigarette now.
  - a) A young man stands near the window and smokes a cigarette now.
  - b) A young man stood near the window and smoked a cigarette now.
  - c) A young man will stand near the window and smoke a cigarette now.
  - d) A young man is standing near the window and smoking a cigarette now.
  - 12. My father (to work) on Sunday.
  - a) My father worked on Sunday.
  - b) My father will work on Sunday.
  - c) My father works on Sunday.
  - d) My father is working on Sunday.
  - 13. My sister (to come) from the North a few days ago.
  - a) My sister will come from the North a few days ago.
  - b) My sister is coming from the North a few days ago.
  - c) My sister came from the North a few days ago.
  - d) My sister comes from the North a few days ago.
  - 14. She (to walk) to her office every day.

- a) She walked to her office every day.
- b) She walks to her office every day.
- c) She is walking to her office every day.
- d) She will walk to her office every day.
- 15. You (to come) to my place next Friday?
- a) Did you come to my place next Friday?
- b) Are you coming to my place next Friday?
- c) Will you come to my place next Friday?
- d) Do you come to my place next Friday?

## 2. Choose the right sentence

- 1. a) My father is computer programmer.
  - b) My computer is father programmer.
  - c) My father are computer programmer.
  - d) My father is computer programmers.
- 2. a) He is can not speak Spanish.
  - b) He can not speak in Spanish.
  - c) He can not speak Spanish.
  - d) He cans not speak Spanish.
- 3. a) My parents are hard-working people.
  - b) My parent are hard-working people.
  - c) My parents is hard-working people.
  - d) My parents are hard-working peoples.
- 4. a) Yesterday I found the book which I lost in summer.
  - b) Yesterday I founds the book which I lost in summer.
  - c) Yesterday I found the book which I losts in summer.
  - d) I found the book which I lost in summer yesterday.
- 5. a) There is twenty students in the class.
  - b) There are twenty students in the class.
  - c) There are in the class twenty student.

d) There is twentys students in the class. 6. a) It was a last night great party. b) It was a great party last night. c) It is a great party last night. d) It was a great parties last night. 7. a) When you write did your composition? b) When write did you your composition? c) When composition did you write your? d) When did you write your composition? 8. a) He always goes to school by bus. b) He always go to school by bus. c) He always goes by bus to school. d) He goes to school always by bus. 9. a) We leaves home at 8.30 every morning. b) We leave home at 8.30 every morning. c) We are leave home at 8.30 every morning. d) We leave home every morning at 8.30. 10. a) The weather yesterday was good afternoon. b) The weather was yesterday afternoon good. c) The weather was good yesterday afternoon. d) The weather was yesterday good afternoon. Test 9 1. Write the correct form of the verb on the line. Use the Simple **Past Tense** John Lennon (be)\_\_\_\_\_born in 1940 in Liverpool, England, (grow where he As teenager, he up)\_\_\_\_ a (meet)\_\_\_\_\_Paul McCartney,

(begin) to write songs together. After several years,

George Harrison and Pete Best. However, Best (stay, neg in the group. Ringo

they (form)

they

and

a new group called "The Beatles" with

Starr (join) the group in place of Best. The first hit song "Love Me Do" (perform by the group in 1964. Between the years 1962 and 1968 The Beatles (be) the most famous group in the world. In 1969 Lennon (decided) to perform alone. He (write) the song "Give Peace a Chance" and (make) several albums alone. He also (act) in films. From that time on, he (have) many problems. For example, he (leave) his wife, Yoko Ono, for a time.

Finally, in 1983, Mark Chapman (kill) Lennon. Lennon's life (end), but his music lives on today.

#### 2. Read the text and choose the correct answer

#### Marathon

What's the farthest distance you have ever run at one time? Can you imagine running more than 26miles? Marathon runners do this. They perform one of the most difficult tasks in all sports. The marathon is the longest race in all sports. It is 26 miles 385 yards (about 42km). Why that number? This is the exact distance between two ancient Greek cities. The race recalls the run of messenger from Marathon to Athens to report that the Greeks had won a battle. When e arrived, he fell dead. The marathon is always the last event at the Summer Olympic games. One of the most unusual marathoner was Abebe Bikila of Ethiopia. He won the Olympic marathon in Rome in 1916 – he run barefoot! Recently the marathon has become one of the most popular events for runners.

- 1. 26 miles are nearly equal to
- a) 42 km
- b)32 km
- 2. The Greek messenger reported on
- a) the victory.
- b) the defeat.
- 3. The Olympic games were held in Rome in
- a) 1916
- b) 1960
- 4. When the Bikila won the Olympic marathon in Rome he was
- a) in shoes.
- b) without shoes.

## 3. Choose the word or phrase which best completes each sentence

| 1. It's not far. L              | et's go                     | foot.                               |
|---------------------------------|-----------------------------|-------------------------------------|
| a) by                           | b) on                       |                                     |
| 2. No, Liz isn't in. S a) takes |                             | the dog out.                        |
| 3. If ita) rains ,will stay     |                             |                                     |
| 4. Wea) speak                   |                             | r when suddenly the light went off. |
| 5. a) How many                  |                             |                                     |
| 6. She never dri a) doesn't she | _                           | fee,?                               |
| 7. I'm ill,a)am not I           | b) aren't I                 |                                     |
| 8. Henry is not a) so strong as |                             | his elder brother Bob.              |
| 9. Dad didn't kr<br>a) So       | now them well<br>b) Neither | did Mom.                            |
| 10. Youa) must                  | b) ought                    | o type your letter.                 |
| 12 What shall I do? I           | b) have lost                | my key.                             |

## Test 10

# 1. Open the brackets using the verbs in the correct form:

1. My brother (live) in Cardiff. He has always lived in Wales. Where

## (your sister / live)?

- 2. Listen! Somebody (try) to start the car.
- 3. Jensa (break) her leg when she (ski) in the Switzerland.
- 4. My father (teach) me how to drive when I was 17.
- 5. How many times you (be) to St. Petersburg?
- 6. She (finish) her work by 5 o'clock yesterday.
- 7. You ever (spend) your holidays in the Crimea?
- 8. If she returns after June 1, I won't see her since I already (go) to the South by the time.
  - 9. When my daughter goes to school we (live) here for over five years.
- 10. He (interview)a foreign delegation at this time the day after tomorrow.
  - 11. You are red all over. How long you (lie) in the sun today?
- 12. We are going to buy a car. By the end of next month our family (save) money for it.
  - 13. I promise I (get) in touch with you if I need your help.
  - 14. Don't phone Jim from 5 to 6 he (have) English.
- 15. Why have you brought your guitar? you (going to sing) at the party?

# 2. Open the bracets using Present Simple, Present Continuous, Past Simple, Future Simple Tenses

- 1. Yesterday I (come) home from school at half past eight.
- 2. After school yesterday he (come) home, (have) dinner, (read) an article from the latest magazine and (begin) doing his homework.
  - 3. Michael (know) German rather well.
  - 4. She (not to drink) coffee now.
  - 5. We (not watch) TV in the morning.
  - 6. My brother (go) to the country with us next Sunday.
  - 7. Our football team (win) many games last year.
  - 8. What you (prepare) for breakfast tomorrow?
  - 9. Don't make noise! Father (sleep).
  - 10. Nelly (not to go) to Moscow tomorrow morning.
  - 11. A young man (stand) near the window and (smoke) a cigarette now.
  - 12. My father (work) on Sunday.
  - 13. My sister (come) from the North a few days ago.
  - 14. She (walk) to her office every day.

#### 15. you (come) to my place next Friday?

#### Test 11

#### 1. Put the right article: a, an, the, x (zero article)

- 1. ... Lake Baikal is the deepest lake in the world.
- 2. He took ... doctor's arm and led him out of the room.
- 3. The scheme of study in ...Teachers' Training Collage is based upon compulsory and optional subjects.
  - 4. "Is that ...Mr. Blair?" ... woman's voice asked in the telephone.
  - 5. She was drinking ... glass of orange juice.
  - 6. ... girl from ... farm came once ... week to help clean ... house.
  - 7. I thought that English was a language he had learnt from ... books.
  - 8. "...French are ... easy-going people" her father used to say.
- 9. "Only ... two kinds of ...people", she said "arrive in noiseless cars: ... millionaires and ...police".
- 10. Then Rudy saw ... Professor Denton, ...head of the history and Economics department.
  - 11. They had lunch at Huxley, ... small village on ...the coast.
  - 12. At ... party, Katherine was acting as ... hostess.
  - 13. It was ... brilliant summer of 2000.
  - 14. After ... lunch Dr. Roily went to ... hospital.
  - 15. What ... funny kitten!
- 16. ... president of ... Russia applied to ... Congress, then to... Government.
- 17. Mr. Sutton was ... engineer who lived in ...next street, and he was probably ... only good mathematician in our district.
- 18. ... Sahara is ... greatest desert in ... North Africa? Extending from the Atlantic Ocean to ... Nile.
  - 19. ... Elbrus is ...highest peak in Europe.
- 20. Go down ...oxford Street till you come to ... Greenland park, then turn right.

## 2. Write the following sentences in indirect speech

1. The doctor asked Nick: "Do you wash your face and hands every morning?"

- 2. He wanted to know: "What have you prepared for today?"
- 3. She asked: "Will you come and have tea with me?"
- 4. "When are you coming back from Europe?" he asked me.
- 5. The policemen asked: "Who left this car here?"
- 6. Henry asked Jane: "Who did you visit in the hospital?"
- 7. I said to my brother: "I haven't seen my uncle for a long time."
- 8. "Why don't you play with your friends, Kate" said mother.
- 9. "Has Jake given you his telephone number?" she asked.
- 10. He said: "I'm sure she will come in time tomorrow."
- 11. Mother said to us: "Don't go out before I return."
- 12. My girl-friend said to me: "I won't go for a walk with you today, because I'm very busy."
  - 13. John said: "I met them at the airport in the evening yesterday."
- 14. "I like novels written by Dickens" said Nina to her friend Vera, "I have read many of them."
- 15. "I know many poems by these great poets, I have read some books about Byron and Shelly, too" said Vera.
  - 16. "Why can't we play here, mother?" asked the children.
- 17. "Let's go to the Finland for this winter holidays" said Kate. Kate suggested
- 18. "I'll finish reading the book by Monday, and then you can have it" he said me, "All right," I said.
  - 19. "He has worked very much today. Keep quiet," said my mother.
- 20. "Have you done your homework or did you leave it till the evening, Bob?" asked Mike.

### 3. Paraphrase sentences from indirect speech into direct speech

- 1. Peter told his friend that he had just come from the United States and intended to stay in St. Petersburg for about a month.
- 2. Charles told us (that) they always went to the movies on Saturday night.
  - 3. I asked my sister whether she would go to Paris in that summer.
- 4. My friend stopped me in the street and asked if I was going to play football on Friday.
  - 5. The old man said to the little boy not to run across the road.
  - 6. The officer ordered the soldiers to wait for him.
  - 7. He said that he had lived in Moscow for many years and knew that

city very well.

8. They said that their marriage would take place in April

#### 4. Translate the sentences from Russian into English

- 1. Они спросили меня, когда начинается мой рабочий день.
- 2. Учительница сказала, что скоро мы будем хорошо говорить поанглийски, так как мы много (усердно) работаем.
- 3. моя сестра сказала, что любит оперу и будет рада пойти с нами в театр, хотя уже дважды слушала «Травиату» («Traviata»).
- 4. Маша сказала: "Я была в Лондоне прошлом году, мои друзья иногда приглашают меняпроводить мои каникулы в лондоне вместе с ними."
- 5. Я сказала, что в магазине, к сожалению, телефон сейчас отключен, а на улице за углом можно позвонить.
- 6. Потом учитель вспомнил, что у Боба вчера был день рождения, поэтому он не смог пойти с нами в театр.
- 7. Папа спросил у меня, кем я хочу стать: врачом или учительницей.
  - 8. Олег попросил меня, смогу ли я прийти сюда опять завтра.

### 5. Change the sentences into passive

- 1. A guide will show the tourists most of the sights of London.
- 2. My wife is reading her favorite book in the hammock under the tree.
  - 3. We altered our claim bringing some peculiar details.
  - 4. The teacher told the students that a person should always be loyal.
  - 5. The man said to the policeman that he had not seen the accident.
  - 6. Children always require great energies from parents.
  - 7. That small restaurant in the next block serves fresh meals.
- 8. Gradually everyone reached the top of the mountain they had climbed before.
  - 9. Lawyers decide on documents such as contracts.
  - 10. The boys and girls like and adore both the puppies and the kittens.

## 6. Translate the sentences into English

- 1. Ей пообещали хорошую работу.
- 2. Ему дали новое задание (mission).
- 3. Ей дадут квартиру в этом доме.
- 4. Будет ли нам предоставлен определенный номер в отеле?
- 5. Ей продиктовали письмо и задали несколько вопросов.
- 6. Советую вам пойти на этот концерт: будут исполнены ваши любимые песни.
  - 7. Я не знал кому меня представляют.
  - 8. Игра была выиграна нашей командой в прошлом матче.

#### **Test 12**

#### I. Choose the correct item

П.

- 1. "... this week?" "No, she is on holiday."
- a) Is Susan working
- b) Does Susan work
- c) Does work Susan
- 2. ... some water in the glass
- a) There is not
- b) There are
- c) There is
- 3. She always gets up late ... Sundays
- a) in
- b) on
- c) at
- 4. ... I open the window?
- a) Will
- b) Am
- c) Has
- 5. What ... good time we had in Paris last year!
- a) the
- b) -
- c) a

- 6. She is not satisfied ...a) with her lifeb) at her life
- 7. I don't use cars. Public transport
- a) is the cheapest
- b) are cheaper

c) on her life

- c) is cheaper
- 8. Don't look surprised ...
- a) to my knowledge
- b) at my knowledge
- c) in my knowledge
- 9. Would you like ...?
- a) some salt
- b) any salt
- c) something
- 10. Ann is on holiday. She ...
- a) has been to London
- b) has gone to London
- c) goes to London

### II. Choose the right answer

- 1. She ..... her car.
- a) never drives
- b) never drive
- c) does drive
- 2. I ... a teacher when I leave school
- a) will
- b) am going to be
- c) wants to become
- 3. She always gets up late ... Sundays evenings.

- a) in
- b) on
- c) at
- 4. Why ... come to London?
- a) did you have to
- b) you had to
- c) had you to
- 5. If she ..., she will do her test very well.
- a) she work hard
- b) she works hard
- c) she will work hard
- 6. I ... get up early, when I was ten.
- a) used
- b) used to
- c) did used to
- 7. You ... smoke here!
- a) can
- b) mustn't
- c) can't
- 8. When it ..., he was driving very fast.
- a) happened
- b) had happened
- c) was happened
- 9. I want ...
- a) you help me
- b) me help you
- c) you to help me
- 10. The telephone is ringing? I ... it
- a) will answer
- b) am going to answer
- c) answered.

#### III. Circle the correct form of the verbs

- 1. What have made you come / made you come so early yesterday?
- 2. I cut myself when I *chopped / was chopping* the meat.
- 3. Mary has suffered / has been suffering from toothache since Monday.
- 4. He has written ten books / writes ten books.
- 5. What will you do / would you do, if you see a ghost?
- 6. When we arrived at the theatre, all seats *have been occupied* / all seats *had been occupied*.
  - 7. You *must be / must to be* at home before it gets dark!
- 8. Why do not you wear / do you not wear a helmet when you ride a motorbike?
  - 9. I'm not sure what does it happen / what happened.
  - 10. "What is he like / what does he look like?" "He is smart and great!"

#### IV. Make up the sentences using the following words

- 1. Been, to, has, Mary, never, Kiev.
- 2. Let, you, my, who, mobile, use, phone, will?
- 3. Play, well, Sergio, very, can, guitar, the.
- 4. So, me, were, why, you, angry, busy.
- 5. Please, reservation, like, I, make, would.
- 6. double, much, is, a, how?
- 7. World, all, English, people, all, over, speak, the.
- 8. Bath, I, when, home, will, get, have, a.
- 9. To, is, little, doll, girl, this, happy, have, new, a.
- 10. Last, a, trees, year, lot, in, there, were, of, street, this.

## V. Complete the sentences

- 1. If I have a chance, I ...
- 2. She saw ...
- 3. May I ...?
- 4. What do you ...?
- 5. I have never ...
- 6. When I was ten, I ...
- 7. What will she do, when ...
- 8. Would you like …?

9. I think, he will ... 10Why don't you ...?

Таблица неправильных глаголов с транскрипцией и переводом

| Infinitiv | ,u nenpuo | Past<br>Tense |             | Past  Participl | wen u nepeo              | Перевод               |
|-----------|-----------|---------------|-------------|-----------------|--------------------------|-----------------------|
| e         |           | 1 ense        |             | Participl<br>e  |                          |                       |
| arise     | [əˈraiz]  | arose         | [əˈrəuz]    | arisen          | [əˈriz(ə)n]              | возникать, появляться |
| awake     | [əˈweik]  | awoke         | [əˈwəuk]    | awoken          | [əˈwəukən                | будить,               |
|           |           |               |             |                 | ]                        | просыпаться           |
| be        | [bi:]     | was,wer       | [woz],      | been            | [bi:n]                   | быть                  |
|           |           | e             | [w3:]       |                 |                          |                       |
| bear      | [bɛə]     | bore          | [bo:]       | born            | [bɔ:n]                   | рождать,              |
|           |           |               |             |                 |                          | приносить             |
| beat      | [bi:t]    | beat          | [bi:t]      | beaten          | ['bi:tn]                 | бить                  |
| become    | [bɪ ˈkʌm] | became        | [bɪ         | become          | [bɪ ˈkʌm]                | становиться           |
|           |           |               | 'keım]      |                 |                          |                       |
| begin     | [bɪ ˈgɪn] | began         | [bɪ ˈgæn]   | begun           | [bɪ ˈgʌn]                | начинать(ся)          |
| bend      | [bend]    | bent          | [bent]      | bent            | [bent]                   | гнуть, сгибать        |
| bind      | [baind]   | bound         | [baond]     | bound           | [baund]                  | связывать             |
| bite      | [baɪt]    | bit           | [bɪt]       | bitten          | ['bɪtn]                  | кусать(ся)            |
| bleed     | [bli:d]   | bled          | [bled]      | bled            | [bled]                   | кровоточить           |
| blow      | [blou]    | blew          | [blu:]      | blown           | [bloun]                  | дуть                  |
| break     | [breik]   | broke         | [brouk]     | broken          | [ˈbroukən]               | ломать(ся)            |
| breed     | [bri:d]   | bred          | [bred]      | bred            | [bred]                   | воспитывать           |
| bring     | [brɪŋ]    | brought       | [bro:t]     | brought         | [brɔ:t]                  | приносить             |
| build     | [bɪld]    | built         | [bɪlt]      | built           | [bɪlt]                   | строить               |
| burn      | [pa:tu]   | burnt         | [b3:nt]     | burnt           | [b3:nt]                  | гореть, жечь          |
| burst     | [b3:st]   | burst         | [b3:st]     | burst           | [b3:st]                  | разразиться,          |
|           |           |               |             |                 |                          | взрывать(ся)          |
| buy       | [bai]     | bought        | [bɔ:t]      | bought          | [bo:t]                   | покупать              |
| cast      | [ka:st]   | cast          | [ka:st]     | cast            | [ka:st]                  | кинуть, лить          |
|           |           |               |             |                 |                          | (металл)              |
| catch     | [kætʃ]    | caught        | [kɔ:t]      | caught          | [kɔ:t]                   | ловить,               |
|           |           |               |             |                 |                          | схватывать            |
| choose    | [tʃu:z]   | chose         | [t∫ouz]     | chosen          | [ˈtʃouzən]               | выбирать,             |
|           |           |               |             |                 |                          | подбирать             |
| come      | [kʌm]     | came          | [keim]      | come            | [kʌm]                    | приходить             |
| cost      | [kɒst]    | cost          | [kɒst]      | cost            | [kɒst]                   | стоить                |
| cut       | [knt]     | cut           | [knt]       | cut             | [knt]                    | резать                |
| dig       | [dɪg]     | dug           | [d\lambdag] | dug             | [d\lambdag]              | рыть, копать          |
| do        | [du:]     | did           | [dɪd]       | done            | [d <sub>\lambda</sub> n] | делать                |
|           |           |               |             |                 |                          |                       |

| Infinitiv<br>e |           | Past<br>Tense |                | Past<br>Participl<br>e |             | Перевод                               |
|----------------|-----------|---------------|----------------|------------------------|-------------|---------------------------------------|
| draw           | [dro:]    | drew          | [dru:]         | drawn                  | [dro:n]     | рисовать,                             |
| dream          | [dri:m]   | dreamt        | [dremt]        | dreamt                 | [dremt]     | тащить<br>мечтать,<br>сниться         |
| drink          | [drɪŋk]   | drank         | [dræŋk]        | drunk                  | [drʌŋk]     | ПИТЬ                                  |
| drive          | [draiv]   | drove         | [drouv]        | driven                 | [ˈdrɪvən]   | водить                                |
| eat            | [i:t]     | ate           | [eɪt, et]      | eaten                  | ['i:tn]     | есть                                  |
| fall           | [fɔ:l]    | fell          | [fel]          | fallen                 | [ˈfɔ:lən]   | падать                                |
| feed           | [fi:d]    | fed           | [fed]          | fed                    | [fed]       | кормить                               |
| feel           | [fi:1]    | felt          | [felt]         | felt                   | [felt]      | чувствовать                           |
| fight          | [faɪt]    | fought        | [fɔ:t]         | fought                 | [fɔ:t]      | бороться                              |
| find           | [faind]   | found         | [faund]        | found                  | [faond]     | находить                              |
| fit            | [fit]     | fit           | [fit]          | fit                    | [fit]       | подходить по                          |
|                |           |               |                |                        |             | размеру                               |
| fly            | [flaɪ]    | flew          | [flu:]         | flown                  | [floun]     | летать                                |
| forget         | [fər'get] | forgot        | [fərˈgɒt]      | forgotte               | [fərˈgɒtn]  | забывать                              |
|                |           |               |                | n                      |             |                                       |
| forgive        | [fərˈgɪv] | forgave       | [fər<br>'geɪv] | forgiven               | [fərˈgɪvən] | прощать                               |
| freeze         | [fri:z]   | froze         | [frouz]        | frozen                 | [ˈfrouzən]  | замерзать                             |
| get            | [get]     | got           | [gpt]          | got                    | [gpt]       | получать                              |
| give           | [giv]     | gave          | [geiv]         | given                  | [ˈgɪvən]    | давать                                |
| go             | [gou]     | went          | [went]         | gone                   | [gvn]       | идти, ходить                          |
| grow           | [grou]    | grew          | [gru:]         | grown                  | [groun]     | расти                                 |
| hang           | [hæŋ]     | hung          | [hʌŋ]          | hung                   | [hʌŋ]       | висеть,                               |
|                |           |               |                |                        |             | развешивать                           |
| have           | [hæv]     | had           | [hæd]          | had                    | [hæd]       | иметь                                 |
| hear           | [hɪər]    | heard         | [h3:rd]        | heard                  | [h3:rd]     | слышать                               |
| hide           | [haɪd]    | hid           | [hɪd]          | hidden                 | [ˈhɪdn]     | прятать                               |
| hit            | [hɪt]     | hit           | [hɪt]          | hit                    | [hɪt]       | попадать в цель                       |
| hold           | [hould]   | held          | [held]         | held                   | [held]      | держать                               |
| hurt           | [hɜ:rt]   | hurt          | [h3:rt]        | hurt                   | [hɜ:rt]     | ранить,<br>ушибить                    |
| keep           | [ki:p]    | kept          | [kept]         | kept                   | [kept]      | держать,                              |
| kneel          | [ni:l]    | knelt         | [nelt]         | knelt                  | [nelt]      | сохранять<br>становиться на<br>колени |

| Infinitiv<br>e |            | Past<br>Tense |           | Past<br>Participl<br>e |                    | Перевод      |
|----------------|------------|---------------|-----------|------------------------|--------------------|--------------|
| knit           | [nɪt]      | knit          | [nɪt]     | knit                   | [nɪt]              | вязать       |
|                |            |               |           |                        |                    | (спицами)    |
| know           | [nou]      | knew          | [nu:]     | known                  | [noun]             | знать        |
| lay            | [lei]      | laid          | [leɪd]    | laid                   | [leɪd]             | класть,      |
|                | -44 45     |               |           |                        |                    | положить     |
| lead           | [li:d]     | led           | [led]     | led                    | [led]              | вести,       |
|                | F11 3      |               | F1 .3     | •                      | F1 - 3             | возглавлять  |
| lean           | [li:n]     | leant         | [lent]    | leant                  | [lent]             | наклоняться  |
| learn          | [ls:rn]    | learnt        | [la:rnt]  | learnt                 | [la:rnt]           | учить        |
| leave          | [li:v]     | left          | [left]    | left                   | [left]             | оставлять,   |
|                | r1 13      | 1             | F1 43     | 1 4                    | F1 43              | покидать     |
| lend           | [lend]     | len           | [lent]    | lent                   | [lent]             | занимать,    |
| 1.4            | [1-4]      | 1.4           | [1,4]     | 1.4                    | [1_4]              | одалживать   |
| let            | [let]      | let           | [let]     | let                    | [let]              | позволять    |
| lie<br>Lieba   | [lai]      | lay           | [leɪ]     | lain                   | [leɪn]             | лежать       |
| light          | [lait]     | lit           | [lit]     | lit                    | [lit]              | освещать,    |
| 1              | [[]]       | 14            | Γ1 α4]    | 14                     | [] 04]             | зажигать     |
| lose           | [lu:z]     | lost          | [lɒst]    | lost                   | [lost]             | терять       |
| make           | [meɪk]     | made          | [meɪd]    | made                   | [meid]             | делать       |
| mean           | [mi:n]     | meant         | [ment]    | meant                  | [ment]             | значить      |
| meet           | [mi:t]     | met           | [met]     | met                    | [met]              | встречать    |
| mistake        | [mis'teik] | mistook       | [mis'tuk] | mistake<br>n           | [mis'teik(e<br>)n] | ошибаться    |
| pay            | [peɪ]      | paid          | [peɪd]    | paid                   | [peɪd]             | платить      |
| put            | [pʊt]      | put           | [pot]     | put                    | [pot]              | класть,      |
| put            | [pot]      | put           | [pot]     | put                    | [bot]              | ставить      |
| read           | [ri:d]     | read          | [red]     | read                   | [red]              | читать       |
| ride           | [raid]     | rode          | [roud]    | ridden                 | [ˈrɪdn]            | ехать верхом |
| ring           | [rɪŋ]      | rang          | [ræŋ]     | rung                   | [rʌŋ]              | звонить,     |
| 8              | r 33       | - <b>8</b>    | L JJ      | <i>a 8</i>             | . 33               | звенеть      |
| rise           | [raiz]     | rose          | [rouz]    | risen                  | [ˈrɪzən]           | подниматься  |
| run            | [rʌn]      | ran           | [ræn]     | run                    | [rʌn]              | бежать       |
| say            | [sei]      | said          | [sed]     | said                   | [sed]              | говорить     |
| see            | [si:]      | saw           | [so:]     | seen                   | [si:n]             | видеть       |
| seek           | [si:k]     | sought        | [sɔ:t]    | sought                 | [sɔ:t]             | искать       |
| sell           | [sel]      | sold          | [sould]   | sold                   | [sould]            | продавать    |
| send           | [send]     | sent          | [sent]    | sent                   | [sent              | посылать     |
|                |            |               |           |                        | ]                  |              |

| Infinitiv<br>e |                 | Past<br>Tense |                     | Past<br>Participl<br>e |                           | Перевод                               |
|----------------|-----------------|---------------|---------------------|------------------------|---------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| set            | [set]           | set           | [set]               | set                    | [set]                     | класть,<br>ставить                    |
| shake          | [ʃeɪk]          | shook         | [ʃʊk]               | shaken                 | [ˈʃeɪkən]                 | трясти                                |
| shine          | [∫aɪn]          | shone         | [∫oun,              | shone                  | [∫oun,                    | светить, сиять,                       |
|                |                 |               | ∫ɒn]                |                        | ∫ɒn]                      | блестеть                              |
| shoot          | [ʃu:t]          | shot          | [∫ɒt]               | shot                   | [ʃɒt]                     | стрелять                              |
| show           | [∫ou]           | showed        | [ʃoud]              | shown                  | [ʃoun]                    | показывать                            |
| shrink         | [ʃriŋk]         | shrank        | [ʃræŋk]             | shrunk                 | [ʃrʌŋk]                   | садиться (о                           |
|                |                 |               |                     |                        |                           | материале),                           |
|                |                 |               |                     |                        |                           | уменьшать(ся)                         |
|                |                 |               |                     |                        |                           | ,                                     |
| shut           | [[]             | shut          | [ʃʌt]               | shut                   | [ʃʌt]                     | сокращать(ся)                         |
| sing           | [ʃʌt]<br>[sɪŋ]  | sang          | [sæŋ]               | sung                   | [sʌŋ]                     | закрывать<br>петь                     |
| sink           | [siŋ]<br>[siŋk] | sang<br>sank  | [sæŋ]               | sung<br>sunk           | [sʌŋ]                     | тонуть                                |
| sit            | [sit]           | sank          | [sæt]               | sat                    | [sæt]                     | сидеть                                |
| sleep          | [sli:p]         | slept         | [slept]             | slept                  | [slept]                   | спать                                 |
| smell          | [smel]          | smelt         | [smelt]             | smelt                  | [smelt]                   | нюхать,                               |
|                | [· · ]          |               | [· · · ·]           |                        | [: · · ·]                 | пахнуть                               |
| slide          | [slaid]         | slid          | [slid]              | slid                   | [slid]                    | скользить                             |
| sow            | [sou]           | sowed         | [soud]              | sown                   | [soun]                    | сеять, засевать                       |
| smell          | [smel]          | smelled       | [smeld]             | smelled                | [smeld]                   | нюхать,                               |
|                |                 |               |                     |                        |                           | пахнуть                               |
| speak          | [spi:k]         | spoke         | [spouk]             | spoken                 | ['spoukən]                | говорить                              |
| spell          | [spel]          | spelt         | [spelt]             | spelt                  | [spelt]                   | произносить                           |
| _              | - 4-            |               | _                   |                        | _                         | по буквам                             |
| spend          | [spend]         | spent         | [spent]             | spent                  | [spent]                   | тратить                               |
| spill          | [spil]          | spilt         | [spilt]             | spilt                  | [spilt]                   | проливать                             |
| spit           | [spit]          | spat          | [spæt]              | spat                   | [spæt]                    | плевать                               |
| split          | [split]         | split         | [split]             | split                  | [split]                   | расщеплять                            |
| spoil          | [spoil]         | spoilt        | [spoilt]            | spoilt                 | [spoilt]                  | портить                               |
| spread         | [spred]         | spread        | [spred]             | spread                 | [spred]                   | распространят ь(ся)                   |
| stand          | [stænd]         | stood         | [stod]              | stood                  | [stud]                    | стоять                                |
| steal          | [sti:1]         | stole         | [stoul]             | stolen                 | ['stoulən]                | воровать                              |
| stick          | [stik]          | stuck         | [st <sub>A</sub> k] | stuck                  | [st <sub>\lambda</sub> k] | приклеивать(с                         |
|                |                 |               |                     |                        |                           | я) застревать,<br>упорствовать        |
|                |                 |               |                     |                        |                           | J F 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 |

| Infinitiv<br>e |                | Past<br>Tense |                           | Past<br>Participl<br>e |                           | Перевод   |
|----------------|----------------|---------------|---------------------------|------------------------|---------------------------|---|
| sting          | [stiŋ]         | stung         | [staŋ]                    | stung                  | [staŋ                     | жалить  |
| strike         | [straɪk]       | struck        | [strʌk]                   | struck                 | [strak]                   | ударять,<br>бастовать                                 |
| strive         | [straɪv]       | strove        | [strəuv]                  | striven                | ['strɪvn]                 | стараться,<br>стремиться                              |
| swear          | [sweə]         | swore         | [swa:]                    | sworn                  | [swo:n]                   | давать клятву   |
| sweep          | [swi:p]        | swept         | [swept]                   | swept                  | [swept]                   | мести,<br>подметать                                   |
| swim           | [swim]         | swam          | [swæm]                    | swum                   | [sw <sub>\Lambda</sub> m] | плавать   |
| take           | [teik]         | took          | [tʊk]                     | taken                  | [ˈteɪkən]                 | брать, взять  |
| teach          | [ti:t∫]        | taught        | [to:t]                    | taught                 | [to:t]                    | учить   |
| tear           | [teər]         | tore          | [tor]                     | torn                   | [torn]                    | рвать   |
| tell           | [tel]          | told          | [tould]                   | told                   | [tould]                   | рассказывать  |
| think          | $[\theta ijk]$ | thought       | $[\theta \mathfrak{i}:t]$ | thought                | $[\theta \mathfrak{z}:t]$ | думать  |
| throw          | $[\theta rou]$ | thr           | [θru                      | thr                    | [θrou                     | бросать   |
|                |                | ew            | :]                        | own                    | n]                        |   |
| understa       | [ʌndərˈstæ     | understo      | [ʌndərˈst                 | understo               | [ʌndərˈstʊ                | понимать  |
| nd             | nd]            | od            | υd]                       | od                     | d]                        |   |
| upset          | [Ap'set]       | upset         | [Ap'set]                  | upset                  | [ʌpˈset]                  | опрокидывать,<br>расстраивать<br>(планы),<br>огорчать |
| wake           | [weik]         | woke          | [wouk]                    | woken                  | ['woukən]                 | просыпаться   |
| wear           | [weər]         | wore          | [wər]                     | worn                   | [worn]                    | носить  |
| weep           | [wi:p]         | wept          | [wept]                    | wept                   | [wept]                    | плакать   |
| wet            | [wet]          | wet           | [wet]                     | wet                    | [wet]                     | мочить,   |
|                |                |               |                           |                        |                           | увлажнять   |
| win            | [win]          | won           | [wʌn]                     | won                    | [wan]                     | выигрывать,   |
| wind           | [waind]        | wound         | [waund]                   | wound                  | [waund]                   | побеждать извиваться, обматывать, заводить            |
| writ           | [raɪt]         | wrote         | [rout]                    | written                | [ˈrɪtn]                   | (часы)<br>писать                                      |